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603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 ExL 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

December 11, 2020

His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to Retroactively amend existing contracts with the vendors listed in bold below for Recovery
Housing services and supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder (CUD), by exercising
renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $294,950 from $613,095 to $908,045
and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2020 to September 29, 2021 effective
retroactive to September 29, 2020 upon Govemor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council as indicated in the table
below.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

FIT/NHNH, Inc
#15773

0-8001
Manchester $195,795 $166,162 $361,957

0: 6/19/19

#298

Hope on
Haven Hill

#27511

9-B001
Rochester $200,300 $0 $200,300

O: 6/19/19

#298

Homeistead

Inn 1765, LLC

#31223

5-8001
Boscawen $117,000 $128,788 $245,788

O: 10/23/19

#18

Dismas Home

of New

Hampshire

#29006

1-B001
Manchester $100,000 $0 $100,000

0:6/19/19

#29B

Total: $613,095 $294,950 $908,045

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

Fiscal Detail Attached

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cituens to achieve health and independence.
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EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the Department could not have a lapse in services
for individuals with a substance use disorder. Additionally, there was a delay by the Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) in approving New Hampshire's
requests for continued State Opioid Response Grant funding, which resulted in the efforts to add
the state appropriations being delayed.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Recovery Housing services and
supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in safe-environment. New
Hampshire has minimal capacity to serve individuals In need of recovery housing options. There
are few options for specialty populations who have complex needs and/or gender-specific
housing. Services provided through the contracts reduce the number of individuals who seek
other types of services including hospital emergency rooms. This request will allow the contractors
to continue providing recovery housing services, statewide, to service specific populations with
Opioid Use Disorder, that include:

A Recovery Residence for females only;

•  A Recovery Residence for individuals who have complex criminal backgrounds that limit
access to other publicly funded housing options; and

•  Recovery Residences to serve the general population who are in need of housing in a
supported and, safe, recovery environment.

Approximately 150 individuals will be served from September 30, 2020 to September 29, 2021.

The Contractors have increased capacity to provide respite beds for individuals in crisis
situations. The individuals served benefit from having access to respite beds that enable them to
be housed in a safe environment which gives them a more stable foundation on which to pursue
treatment and recovery.

The Department will continue to monitor services through monthly reporting of de-
identified aggregate data including:

•  Number and demographics of clients served.

•  Average time in shelter.

•  Discharge reason and where the clients were discharged.

•  Staffing changes.

•  Reason for admission denials.

•  Time between requests for shelter and admission.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions, Section 3 of the original
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor
and Council approval. The Department is exercising Its option to renew services one (1) of the
two (2) years available.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, Recovery Housing
services and supports for individuals with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in a supported,
safe recovery housing environment may not be available, which could impede individuals'
recovery processes.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.788, FAIN #H79TI081685 and H79TI083326

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Deputy Director



05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEFT OF
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPIOID

RESPONSE GRANT

100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.788 FAIN H79TI081685 and H79TI083326

FiT/NHNH, Inc (#157730-B001)

State

Fiscal

Year Class Title

Class

Account

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Budget

Modified

Budget

2019

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 32,632.50 (29,662) 2,970.50

2020

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 130.530 (2,975) 127,555

2021

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 32,632.50 -0- 32,632.50

2021

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057046 -0- 36,799 36,799

2021

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057048 -0- 108,000 108,000

2022

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057048 -0- 54,000 54,000

Subtotal 195,795 166,162 361,957

Homestead Inn 1765, LLC (#312235—8001)

State

Fiscal

Year Class Title

Class

Account

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Budget

Modified

Budget

2020

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 94,122 (8,622) 85,500

2021

, Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 22,878 -0- 22,878

2021

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057046 -0- 25,411 25,411

2021

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057048 -0- 74,666 74,666

2022

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057048 -0- 37,333 37,333

Subtotal 117,000 128,788 245,788

Recovery Housing Services and Supports
Page 1 of 2



Hope on Haven Hill (#275119-B001)

State

Fiscal

Year Class Title

Class

Account

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Budget

Modified

Budget

2019

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 73,330 (37,998) 35,332

2020

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 100,000 (39,558) 60,442

2021

Contracts for -

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 26,970 -0- 26,970

2021

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057046 -0- 14,356 14,356

2021

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057048 -0- 42,133 42,133

2022

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057048 . -0- 21,067 21,067

Subtotal 200,300 -0- 200,300

Dismas Home of New Hampshire (#290061-B001) ,

State

Fiscal

Year Class Title

Class

Account

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Budget

Modified

Budget

2019

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 38,567 -0- 38,567

2020

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 49,146 -0- 49,146

2021

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057040 12,287 -0- 12,287

Subtotal 100,000 -0- 100,000

Total 613,095 294,950 908,045

Recovery Housir^g Services and Supports
Page 2 of 2



OocuSign Envelope 10; 2051F799-8CA9-4205-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD Contract

This 1® Amendment to the Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and FIT/NHNH, Inc. (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 122 Market St.
Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item 29B), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37 General Provisions. Paragraph 18 Amendment, and Exhibit C-1
Revisions to General Provisions, Section 3 Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of services, increase funding and extend the term of
the agreement to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$361,957.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services Section 2. Subsection 2.7, by adding Paragraph 2.7.19., to
read:

2.7.19. The Contractor shall ensure patients seeking services receive a Doorway referral for
substance use and ongoing care coordination if the individual:

2.7.19.1 Enters care directly through the Contractor; and

2.7.19.2 Consents to information sharing with the Doorway(s).

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4, to read:

4. Reporting Requirements

4.1 The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic
surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department
and/or SAMHSA.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by adding Section 5, Performance Measures, .to read;

5. Performance Measures

5.1 The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract
management, improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on
successful outcomes.

6. Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services, by adding Section 6, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant
Standards, to reaid:

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standard

FIT/NHNH, Inc Amendment#! Contractor initials

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A01 Page 1 of 5 Date
2020



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2051F7g9-6CA9^205^07C*62EA8C882680

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

6.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded
initiatives, the Contractor shall ensure each Site:

6.1.1. Establishes formal information sharing and referral agreements with all
Doorways for substance use services that comply with all applicable
confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

6.1.2. Completes client referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use
services within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the
program.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

6.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract implementation.

6.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

6.5. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs

funds and respite shelter funds are in compliance with the Department and SAMHSA
requirements.

6.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall assist clients with enrolling in public or
private health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage and will
have staff trained In Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid.

6.7. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall accept clients on Medicaid Assisted

Treatment (MAT) and facilitate access to MAT on-site or through referral for all clients
supported with SOR grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

6.8. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White
HIV/AIDs program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

6.9. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly
screened for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of
treatment planning.

6.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with
all appropriate Department, State of NH. Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA), and other Federal terms, conditions, and
requirement.

6.11. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

6.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder
(OUD).

6.11.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization
that provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of ^^eating
substance use or mental disorders.

FIT/NHNH, Inc Amendment #1 Contractor Initials |

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A01 Page 2 of 5 Date

I AiP



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2051F799^CA9-i205-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

6.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of

understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

6.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

6.11.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the

Department within thirty (30) days of contract approval.

6.12. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but
not limited to:

6.12.1. Invoicing;

6.12.2. Funding restrictions; and

6.12.3. Billing.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Modify Exhibit B-1 by reducing the total budget amount by $29,662, which is identified as unspent
funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY 21 as specified,
in part, in Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 NCE Budget.

9.. Modify Exhibit B-2 by reducing the total budget amount by $2,975, which is identified as unspent
funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY 21 as specified,
in part, in Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 NCE Budget.

10. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1, NCE Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

12. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #1, SOR 11 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

FIT/NHNH, Inc Amendment#! Contractor Initials

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A01 Page 3 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2051F799-8CA9-4205-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and

effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to September 29, 2020 upon the date of Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

-DocuSlgntd by:

12/21/2020
f

Date

Title. Director

FIT/NHNH, Inc
—OocuSkgncd by:

12/21/2020

Date Devlin

Title; President & CEO

FIT/NHNH, Inc Amendment #1

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV^2-A01 Page 4 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2051F799-6CA9-4205V\07C-62EA8C882680

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

12/22/2020
DoeuSMMd by:

Date ne Pi no's
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

FIT/NHNH, Inc Amendment #1

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A01 Page 5 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2051F799-8CA9-4205^07C-62EA8C882680

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for individuals with ODD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as

awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance

Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and

as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN

H79TI083326.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the

fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-6 Amendment #1 Budget.

3. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

3.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

3.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

3.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows:

3.3.1. Medicaid Care Management; If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization

(MCO), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the
MCO.

3.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

/  Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

3.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale
Program.

3.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,

charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)
working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for

authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. -Invoices shall
be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment.of this agreement.
The Contractor shall ensure:

4.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employ^g, worked for
wages reported under this contract.

FIT/NHNH, Inc Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A01 Page 1 of 4 Date,

Rev. 01/08/19 ^

Ml)
TT77I77U20



DocuSign Envelope 10; 2051F799-8CA9-4205^07C-62EA8CdB2680

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work

performed.
I

4.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request. i

4.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to;

4.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

4.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

4.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

4.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

4.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe! or-provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana. ,

4.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties. '

4.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference
grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the

FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to
exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

4.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

4.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year. !

4.1.5. Cost center reports. |

4.1.6. Profit and loss report. |
1

4.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon
request.

4.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

4.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department. . i

I

5. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complyipg-iwith further

FIT/NHNH, Inc Exhibit B Amer>dmenl#1 Contractor Initials kD
1Z77T72020

RFA-2019-BDAS^2-RECOV-02-A0l . Page 2 of 4 Date 1

Rev. 01/08/19



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2OS1F799-8CA9-42O&-A07C-62EA8C8B26d0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

6.

7.

8.

9.

restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FDA).

In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SCR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the
last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment. |

^  ' i
The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds are available.

The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract

completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

10. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance with
funding requirements.

11. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Scope of Services,

including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting

amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the
following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds

received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently

completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of

$1,000,000 or more.

FIT/NHNH, Inc

RFA-2019-8DAS-02-RECOV-02-A01

Rev. 01/08/19

Exhibit B Amendment #1

Page 3 of 4

Contractor Initials

OS

Date
1Z77T72020



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2051F799-6CA9-4205-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

13.1.3. Condition 0 - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and

Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by

an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days
after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year,, conducted in accordance with the

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the

Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the

Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding souijce, may be
required, at a minimum, ■ to submit annual financial audits performed by an

independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination iridicates the

Contractor is high-risk'. j
13.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is

understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for

any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments
made under the Contract to which exception has-been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception.

FIT/NHNH, Inc

RFA-2019-BDA$-02-RECOV-02-A01

Rev. 01/08/19

Exhibit B Amendment #1

Page 4 of 4

Contractor Initials.

Date
177W2020
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATB

I, Wililam M. Gardner, Secretary of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certiiy that FIT/NHNH, INC is a New
Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business In New Hampshire on May 13, 1994.1 further certify that all fees
and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is In good standing as far as this office Is
concemod.

Business ID; 207982

CcrUfKote Number: 0004885897

if*

i&i

"0
6^

INTHSTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

die Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of Apri! A.D, 2020.

WlUiom M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 , Scott Ellison . hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duty elected Cler1t/SecretaiYf6ffi^i>Df FIT/NHNH. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 16 . 2020 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Maria Devlin. President/CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of FIT/NHNH. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and ail
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed at>ove currently occupy the
po$ition(8) indicated and that .they have fui) authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In comets wit^e State of New Hampshire,
ail such'limltations are expressly stated herein. _ y n A ^

Dated: December 16. 2020
jre of Elected Officer

Name: Scott Ellison
Title: Board of Director, Chair

I

Rev. 03/24/20
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/\C:ORD
FAMIlNT-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DBEAUDOIN

DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an'ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ie$) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

Davis & Towie Morriil & Everett, Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

(aJc.nVExn: (603) 225-6611 | fyfic. noi;(603) 225-7935

INSURERISIAFFORDINO COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A Philadelohia Insurance ComDanv 23850
INSURED

FIT/NHNH, Inc.
122 Market St
Manchester, NH 03101

INSURER B
Cranll* St*t* Health Car* A Human Sarvieaa Sail Inaurad Group

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
AOOL
iNSg

SUBR

WYD POUCY NUMBER
POUCY EFF

fMMfOD/YYYYI
POLICY EXP

UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL G NERAL UABIUTY

)E OCCUR PHPK 1/1/2021 1/1/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MA DAMAGE TO RENTED j  1,000,000

MED EXP (Artv one Darsonl '
,  20,000

PFRSONAl a ADV INJURY
,  1,000,000

>11 AGGREGATE LIMnAPPI IF.S PFR

POLICY X I X 1 LOC
OTHER:

GENERAl. AGGRFGATF
s  3,000,000

PROnilCTR - COMP/OP AGG
,  3,000,000

$

A AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

PHPK 1/1/2021 1/1/2022

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT s  1,000,000
X ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

a(R^s only

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

MW

BODILY INJURY (Per oaraoni S

BODILY INJURY (Per acddRnil J
PROPERTY DAMAGE
iPer aecldftntT s

s

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHUB 1/1/2021 1/1/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
s  5,000,000

AGGREGATE s

DED X RETENTIONS 10,000 ,  5,000,000
B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY ^ ̂ ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEB/EXECUTIVE ["771

LnJ
II yas, datcriba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

HCHS20200000187

1

2/1/2020 2/1/2021

PER OTH-
RTATirrr fr

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
,  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE
,  1,000,000

E.L DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT
,  1,000,000

A

A

Professional Llablll

Professional Llablll

PHPK

PHPK

1/1/2021

1/1/2021

1/1/2022

1/1/2022

Each Occurrence

Aggregate

1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101. Addltlonij Schtdulc. cTiay !>• attAchid If iT>ort a Is rs<iulrtd)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire,' Department of Health & Human
Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCOROANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Families
in Transition

ci Ho'^t
i „ ■

50UF KITCHEN • FOOD PANTRY • HOMELESS SHELliRS

Our Mission

The mission of FIT/NHNH is to provide hunger relief,
emergency shelter, safe affordable housing, and
supportive services to individuals and families who are
homeless or in need, enabling them to gain self-
sufficiency and respect.
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BerryDunn
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

December 31, 2019

(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

With Independent Auditor's Report
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consoiidated financial statements of FIT/NHNH, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financlai position as of
December 31, 2019 and the related consoiidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consoiidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financlai Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consoiidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. ^

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consoiidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In
the consoiidated financlai statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consoiidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the consoiidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2019, and the
consolidated changes in their net assets and their consoiidated cash flows for the year then ended In
accordance with U.S. generaity accepted accounting principles.

Maine • Now Hampshire • Massachusetts • ConnocOcut • WostX^rginla • Arlzor^a

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH. Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2018 consolidated financial statements and. In our
report dated March 18, 2019, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2018 Is consistent. In all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

other Matters

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the
consolidating staternent of financial position as of December 31, 2019. and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
individual entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
Is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated In all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Changes In Accounting Principles

As discussed In Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2019 the Organization adopted new
accounting guidance. Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash, and FASB ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope of the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to these matters.

h^n^h[cyUA^f P' cUjLu^^ i-LJL.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 31, 2020
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

ASSETS

Current assets'

Gash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment In related entity
Asset held for sale

Property and equipment, net
Development in process
Other assets

Total assets

UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related entity
Line of credit

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized deferred costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions - controlling interest
Without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

. Total liabilities and net assets

2019

2,522,454 $
67,601

689,218
65,512

59.367

3,304,052

428,390
1,012,597
1,123,413

1,000

32,788,053
155,686
80.638

2018

1.598,033
52.211

786,343
80,007
35,613
48.110

2,600,317

336.578
718,154

1.336,584
1,000

429,779
28,530,819
3.605,450
198.473

$  38.893.829 $ 37.757.154

)  317,739 S:  1,116,180
157,557 249,907
372,038 346,095

- 35,613
- 145,000

59.671 82.475

917,005 1,977,270

15.610.670 13.604.ni7

16.527.676 15.581 287

19,284,224 17,778,833
2.602.333 3.209 39R

21,886,557 20.988,231

479.597 1.187 B36

22.366.164 22.175.867

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-
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(With

FFT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2019
Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

Hevww* and uippcn
Fidaral, lUld M oUw grant lufipM
R«nU Inceni*. fiM ol nemOn
TIMIMoraulM
PublD uipport
Ttx utdl rwanu*

Sp«eW mni*
OtvdtogariM
VkSTA pragram rrranM

gtti Qbm) on InvtitnxnU
0«h (toH) on dbpe^ ci umu
WorMtlMOflW
ItvkM dOAMOM
InvoMnwfil heono
ForgMnMiefOoM
ModiuU raMunonNnh
OitMrlnMino
Not uMU rdoaoM Cram raovwiono

WIihoUOonoiRoiWotloM Wttievl Donor RoaMcdon* Toul Wlhout Donor
'VWUftfllW IBtftfl • ti^oneertmftin Intarad RoBiiHlnm

WVt Donor

BtSdUHat

0,2S5.M3 t
2.W9.TU
S73.S»9

2.060,Ht
2M.23B
«tS.237
101.MS
TS.3M

2S3,401
210,tW
19,3a
106/t«4
21.969

131,267
074,K1
2a,e4o

_Q2ja

4,a9,3«3

Z}»9,7»
•73,)S«

2. WO,961

269231
619237
101,M6
76,969
U2.431
210,190
19228
109294
21.999
131267
874291
2a240

Tottf

2019

42a2i>
2269,739
rn.Ks

2269.991
2(9.09
it9.a7
191.649
79.369
292.431
210.1M
19,m
199264
21,961
131,M7
674,661
226,640

Tow

2016

6,116.194
2,021.489
616,989
666230
60,000
aa.6io
86263
9X734

(189249
(10.119)
39,634
14229
99,793

131267
921.997
279.420

Trial rovonuo trd ouDowi .  1X627290

Cxpontoi
Program letMHM

lazjiaa

Hotjilng
Tlvnttort

9,924,438
417263

9.624238
417983

9224231 9,390,928

Ftmdrridng
Mmoamord ond oofMrri

1.CC0.3e6
1.C78.712

9,642201
1,000266
1.076717

9.94X401
1.689.381

9,077,300
1,131.941

ToWoponiW 1X021901 12 0)1 M«

Exoou (doOrioneir) el rivonuo and luppoit evor
txpondo*

Qtonli ond eonlilbullxu fer ct»U pro^octi
Not tuoii relMnd lor cogtri gre)iei<
EITod or wnioMritan of iOMo
PdiVtorMp didilMona
TramAr of AoneomroCng IMorail roMdCng rrom dstctdlwt ol t
LMM Pi.lnonhto

809.789

299264 '

(6,669

2201M

(732)

C220,)t?1

806,769

289.864

(7,317)

(408.189)

(299264)

197,604

(XJlh

(841,937)

680,790

3,430,961

CMrgorinolioHti
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-4-
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

Program Activities

Housing Thrift Store Fundralsino

Salaries and benefits

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

Total salaries and

benefits

Other expenses
Advertising
Apf^lcation and permit fees
Bad debts

Bank charges
Condominium association fees
Consultants

Depreciation
Events

.Food

General insurance

Grant expense
Iriterest expense
(Management fees
(Meals and entertainment

(Membership dues
Merger expenses
Office supplies
Participant expenses
Postage
Printing
Professional fees

Rental subsidies

Repairs and maintenance
Shelter expense
Staff development
Taxes

Technology support
Telephone
Travel

Utilities

VISTA program
Workers' compensation

Total expenses

$ 4.042,182
430,575

299.750

4.772,507

248,403
11,728

19.882

280,013

400,818
41,883

30.036

(Management
and General

803,736
62.042
44.292

6.295,139
546,228
393.960

21,315 29,076 2,441 3.662
522 - 52 4.341

13,402 . •_

7,982 7,466 872 5.554
12,072 . .

37,115 2,714 4,168 5,377
1,024,398 10,304 131.224 73,404

1,789 385 145,581
124,080 .

146.654 2,331 15,214 11,245

218,845 660 1,615 538
6,724 1  "

3,498 - 486 783
6,728 . 757 1,136

110,014 . - 36,672
176,001 8,895 21,594 32,098
139,602 .

12,557 8 1,493 2,182
35,759 982 4.311 6,309

158.731 4,000 12,014 37,895
332,635 .

576,605 26,813 73,992 43,911

34,768 200 4,376 6,538
365,503 1,709 _ .

169,707 525 20,752 30,914
111,116 2,618 9,421 13,981
37,152 2.326 4,881 7,299

534,278 22,308 60,222 26,851
208,887 .

123.512 14.630 12205 17.957

) 9.524.438 S 417.963 S 1 000.388 $ 1.078.712

56,494
4,915

13,402
21,874
12,072
49.374

1,239,330
147,755
124,060
175,444

221,658
8,724
4,747
8,621

146,686
238,588
139,602
16,240
47,361
212,640
332,636
721.321

45,882
367,212
221,898
137,136
51,658

643.669
208,887
168.299

$12.021.501

2018

Total

4,882,814
517.504
353.589

472,737 710,070 6,235,327 5,553.907

59,032
1,620

28,100
20,865

29,481
1,111,930
167,049

155,880
59,149
229,713
6,622
6,122
15,989
137,747
370,155
117,718
13,365
40,717
169,823
332.270
462.762
166,891
39,034

315.920
244,611
112.921
54.172

613.495
320,859
148.356

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-5-
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

V

Cash flows from operating activities
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Grants and contributions for capital projects
Effect of consolidation of affiliate, net of cash held by consolidated affiliate

of $326,551
Forgiveness of debt
Unrealized (gain) loss on Investments
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
(Increase) decrease In:

Accounts recelvalDle

Grants and contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Other assets

(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related party
Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Repayments from (advances to) related parties
Proceeds from sale of investments
Investment in development in process
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Acquisition of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants and contributions for capital projects
Net (repayments on) borrowings from line of credit
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Payment of financing costs
Payments on long-lenn debt

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year

Breakdown of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year
Cash and cash equivalents
Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties

Supplemental disclosure

Property and equipment transferred from development In process
Interest paid

2019 2018

190,287 $ 3.149.914

$  3.963.441 $ 2.652.765

$  2,622,454
428,390

1.012.S97

$  3.963.441

$  3.972.896

$  221.658

$  1,598,033
336,578
718.154

$  2,652.765

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
f
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Organization

in May 1994, Families In Transition, inc. was incorporated as a New Hampshire nonprofit to provide
housing and comprehensive social services to individuals and families who are homeless or at risk of
becoming homeless in certain areas of southern New Hampshire.

Effective January 1, 2018, Families in Transition, inc. merged with New Horizons for New Hampshire
Inc. (NHNH) to form FiT/NHNH, Inc. (FIT/NHNH or the Organization). As a result of the mergeri
FIT/NHNH created an integrated system of care that provides an increased supply of affordable
housing for those most In need, sustains positive outcomes through the incorporation of evidence
based practices proven to meet identified needs and goals, identifies areas for systemic and
programmatic improvements through the use of consistent and accurate data to regularly measure
success, and provide an Integrated system of care to prevent homelessness when possible and rapidly
rehouse those who become homeless, including both the chronically homeless and families with
children. The merger resulted In a contribution of net assets in 2018 as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 326,551
Other current assets 63!438
Cash surrender value of life insurance 33'676
Investments 1,78o!456
Property and equipment, net 1,396,197
Accounts payable and accrued payroll (QslgSO)
Notes payable 173417^

Fair value of net assets acquired $ 3.430.951

The fair value of the identifiable assets exceeded the fair value of the liabilities assumed; as a result a
contribution was recognized. There was no consideration transferred from NHNH.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street,
Spruce Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing
facilities are owned and operated by several limited partnerships of which the Organization, or one of
Its subsidiaries, Is the sole general partner. These limited partnerships include Bicentennial Families
Concord Limited Partnership (Bicentennial), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord New
Hampshire; Family Bridge Limited Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in
Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on
South Beech Street in Manchester, New Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited
Partnerships).

During 2019, Bicentennial reached the end of its Initial 15-year low-income housing tax credit
compliance period. Effective September 20, 2019, New Hampshire Housing Equity Fund 2002 Limited
Partnership and JPMorgan Chase, the limited partners, and Bicentennial Families Concord. Inc.. the
general partner, dissolved Bicentennial. As a result, the non-controlling interest was eliminated and the
assets and liabilities of Bicentennial were transferred to the general partner. The general partner's
parent, FIT/NHNH, then caused the assets to be contributed to, and the liabilities assumed by Housing
Benefits, Inc. (Housing Benefits), a subsidiary of FIT/NHNH.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019 ^
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

In 2008, the Organization created Housing Benefits, a Community Development Housing Organization
to Identify and develop new housing units and refurbish existing units to meet the persistent need of
combating homelessness. Completed housing units are located on School & Third Street Lowell
Street. Belmont Street. Market Street (Millyard I and Millyard II). Spruce Street and Hayward Street In
Manchester, New Hampshire as well as additional housing facilities located on Central Avenue' in
Dover, New Hampshire (Dover), Lehner Street in Wolfeboro. New Hampshire (Hope House) and at
Bicentennial Square in Concord, New,Hampshire (Bicentennial).

On April 12, 2019, HB-AH, LLC (HB-AH) was legally formed as a limited liability company organized
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire which Is treated as a disregarded entity for federal
income tax purposes. HB-AH's purpose is to acquire, own, rent, operate and manage 23 residential
apartments located in Manchester. New Hampshire. HB-AH is to operate exclusively to further the
charitable purpose of Housing Benefits, HB-AH's sole member.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH), a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the
Manchester, New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter In Manchester, New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family Outfitters, LLC (Outfitters), a limited liability corporation.
At December 31, 2019, Outfitters operated an independent thrift store In Manchester. New Hampshire
with the sole purpose of generating'an alternate funding stream for the Organization. During 2018,
management made the decision to close a Concord, New Hampshire thrift store location.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End
Homelessness (NHCEH), a statewide entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for
homelessness through research, education and advocacy."

On May 25, 2018, the Organization organized Wilson Street Condominium Association (the
Association). The Association was established for the purpose of maintaining and preserving a five unit
premise located on Wilson Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The Organization is the majority
owner of the Association.

The Organization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Second Street Family Mill, Inc.
(Family Mill), and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General
Partners), all of which are New Hampshire corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent
the .01% sole general partners in the Limited Partnerships, whereby Family Mill is a general partner of
Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family Willows.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Newly Adopted Accounting Principle and Reclasslficatlons

In 2019, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
AccounUng Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-18, Restricted Casti. This ASU requires an entity to
present restricted cash with cash on the statement of cash flows. The Impact of adoption on the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31. 2018 Is a decrease in cash
used by investing activities of $40,338, and an increase in cash and restricted cash beainnina of
the year of $1,014,394.

in July 2018, FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, to clarify and improve the accounting
guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The amendments In this ASU assist
entitles in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions
(nonreclprocai transactions) within the scope of FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
Topic No. 958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other
accounting guidance, and (2) distinguishing between conditional contributions and unconditional
contributions. This ASU was adopted by the Organization for the year ended December 31 2019
Adoption of the ASU did not have a material Impact on the Organization's financial reporting!

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General-Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with FASB~
ASC Topic 810-20-25, Consolidation, the financial statements of the Limited Partnerships are
required to be consolidated with the Organization's consolidated financial statements The limited
partners' ownership Interest is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position as
noncontroiiing Interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of the Organization the Limited
Partnerships, Housing Benefits, HB-AH, MEN, Outfitters. NHCEH, the Association, and the
General Partners. Ail significant inter-entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information In total, but not by net asset classification. Such Information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation In conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such Information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
December 31, 2018 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized Information
was derived.

-9-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2051F799-8CA9-4205-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which require the Organization to report information regarding to Its consolidated
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classification:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-Imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained In perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases In net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statement of activities.

All contributions are considered to be available for general use unldss specifically restricted by the
donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions that Increases net assets with
donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is. when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction Is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions In the year of
the gift.

The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction on Its use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired
and placed in service.
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December 31, 2019
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)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid Investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to, be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains Its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential
risk at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes It is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Reserves are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for operating
costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for rental
properties as well as certain other social services and programs.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or. if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation, less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging from 5 to 30 years. Assets not in service are
not depreciated.

Rental Income

Rental revenue is recognized pro rata over each tenant's period of occupancy. A contract is
entered Into with a tenant and covers a period of twelve months. All rents are collected at the
tjeginning of each month and are nonrefundable. A tenant has an option to cancel a lease at any
time with a minimum of 30 days notice, at which time the Organization will prorate the final rent
payment through a tenant's expected move-out date.

When a contract is entered into with a tenant, the Organization collects a security deposit. The
security deposits are maintained in a separate cash account and a corresponding liability is
^recognized. Upon termination of a tenant's contract, the Organization assesses the condition of
the unit being vacated. If it is determined a unit is vacated in a condition equivalent to when the
tenant occupied the unit, the security deposit is refunded to the tenant. If a unit is determined to be
vacated in a condition less than equivalent to when the tenant occupied the unit, the security
deposit is retained and recognized as revenue.
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December 31, 2019
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/

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been Included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 Is
approximately $1,030,000 and $780,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated Include salaries and
benefits, depreciation, amortization, office and other expenses, which are allocated based on
direct payroll hours by functional cost centers.

Income Taxes .

The Organization Is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1){A)(vl) public charity as described In Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and Is exerhpt from federal Income taxes on
related Ihcome pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty In income taxes require the Organization to report
any uncertain tax positions and to adjust'its financial statements for the Impact thereof. As of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization determined that it had no tax positions that did not
meet the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority The
Organization files an informational return in the United States. This return Is generally subject to
examination by the federal government for up to three years.

No. provision for taxes on Income is made In the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since
as partnerships, all taxable Income and losses are allocated to the partners for Inclusion in their
respective tax retums.

The Association is not exempt from income taxes; however, the Code categorizes any profits
realized by the Association from Its memt)er activities as reductions of members* contributions
towards the operation of the condominium property and not as taxable Income of the Association
or Its members; Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in these consolidated
financial statements.
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2. Availabilitv and Llaulditv of Financial Assets

As of December 31, 2019, the Organization has working capital, excluding current assets with
donor restrictions of $454,597. of $1,932,450 and average days (based on normal expenditures)
cash and cash equivalents on hand of 85.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on mortgage notes payable, and capital
acquisitions not funded through replacement reserves or financed with debt, were as follows:

2019 2018

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,622,454 $ 1,598.033
Accounts receivable 67,601 52 211
Grants and contributions receivable 689,218 7861343
Due from related parties . 35'613 '-
Investments 1.123.413 1.336!5B4

Total financial assets 4,302,586 3,808,784

Donor-imposed restrictions:
Restricted funds (479.5971 f1.1B7.636^

Financial assets available at year end for .
current use $ 3.822.989 $ 2.621.148

The Organization also has a line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as described In Note
5.

The Organization has replacement reserves and designated cash reserves for properties as part
of Its debt financing with New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) which are only
available when approved by NHHFA. As a result, these replacement reserves and designated
cash reserves for properties are not considered available for general expenditure within the next
year and are not reflected in the amount above. The goal for the Organization is to maintain a
balanced budget while meeting the requirements of the various financing authorities.
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3. Property and Eauloment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

Land

Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Fumiture and fixtures

Equipment
Vehicles

Construction In progress

Less: accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

2019 2018

1  3,764,378 $ 3,646,598
650,360 602,600

39,119,498 34,123,494
920,936 731,590
604,426 558,032
361,163 347,711

8S0 12.229

45,421.600 40,022,254
12.633.647 11.491.435

32.788.053 $ 28.530.819

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization held $37,087,574 and $31,959,920,
respectively, of land, land improvements, and buildings and improvements for the purpose of
leasing to individuals. Accumulated depreciation on the land improvements, buildings and building
improvements at December 31, 2019 and 201B was $9,284,428 and $8,344,904, respectively.

4. Development in Process

At December 31, 2019, development in process consisted of various projects in process reiated to
all of the properties owned by the Organization. As December 31, 2018, development In process
consisted of costs related to the following:.

Familv Willows Recovery Housing Program

In response to the rising rates of opioid and other substance use issues throughout Manchester
New Hampshire and the State of New Hampshire, FiT/NHNH and Housing Benefits established
The Manchester Recovery and Treatment Center (the Faciilty), a large-scale facility to curb the
tide of substance misuse.

The Facility provides areas for agencies to provide substance use disorder treatments or services
to those at varying stages of recovery. The Faciilty also includes Housing Benefit's Family Willows
Recovery Housing Program (the Program) on the 2'^ and 3"" floors. This Program provides 19
units of sober recovery housing, and accommodates approximately 40-50 women and their
children. Residents in the Program have access to case management, continued outpatient
treatment, self-help groups, employment workshops, and social events. Funding for the Facility
was secured from the City of Manchester, NHHFA, Franklin Savings Bank, the Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) and private foundations. Construction was completed and
the Facility was placed into service in 2019.
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5. Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution In the amount of $350,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution
with a floor of 4% (4.75% at December 31, 2019). As of December 31. 2018, the outstanding
balance was $145,000. There was no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2019.

6. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
2019 2018

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
including Interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street.
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
full in January 2033. $ 50,142 $ 53,707

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is noninterest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note Is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 163,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $883,"including interest at 5.00% for five years. After five
years, the Interest rate adjusts to match the then current
Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston 5-year, 20-year amortizing
rate plus 2.50% The loan is collateralized by real estate on
Spruce Street, Manchester, New Hampshire and is due and
payable In full in May 2034. The Organization refinanced this
note in 2019. 104,019 113,185

A mortgage loan payable to TO Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,359, including interest at 4.1%. The loan is collateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan Is due and payable In full in November 2023. 48,028 59 226

A-mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, Including interest at 7.18%. The loan Is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street. Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable In full In April
2024. 207,307 217.397
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A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and Interest are fully paid with the final installment due and
payable on May 1.2034. 135,156 141.664

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA.
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2034. This Is
nonrecourse. 85,018 85.018

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note Is due and payable on May 28. 2033. This note Is
nonrecourse and is subordinate to the $85,018 note payable. 336,955 336.955

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to
Merrimack County, collateralized by Bicentennial property and
various financing instruments. The note is due and payable in
full in May 2033. 260,000 260,000

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Millyard II property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. ^
The note is due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the
property or in May 2031. This loan Is nonrecourse. 445,068 449,877

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Millyard II property. Monthly payments of
$1,729 Include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The
final installment is due and payable on September 1, 2032. 207,057 220,274

A note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, collateralized by Millyard II property and various
financing instruments. A payment of Interest shall be made
annually no later than August 1 each year based .on 42.5% of
the net cash flow, as defined. In any year where the Debt
Coverage Ratio, as defined, exceeds 1.15 to 1, principal
payments shall be made no later than August 1 in an amount
that will result in a 1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid
amounts are due and payable in full on August 1, 2031. This
note Is nonrecourse. 226 725 226 725
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A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund. Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by Millyard II property. Payment of principal is due and payable
on December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 250,000 250,000

A mortgage note payable by-Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by Millyard Families I real estate. The note Is noninterest
bearing and is due and payable In January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to CDFA,
collateralized by Millyard Families I real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final installment is due and payable on June' 15,

32,773 45,430

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is .to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30,2034. 850,000 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TO Bank, N.A..
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,953
Include principal and Interest at 4.33%. The note is payable In
full In November 27, 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT/NHNH Inc
and Family Mill. 415^323 432 921

A promissory note payable by Family. Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note Is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal Is due by October 1, 2034.
The note Is collateralized by real estate and Is nonrecourse. 600,000 600 000

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and Is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,

.  ' 616,277 543,384
A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester. New

Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal Is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse. 81 ̂517 gg ggg
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A note payable by Family WilloNVS to RBS Citizens Bank,
collaterallzed by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,882
include principal and interest at 4.75%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27. 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Big Shady Tree. 251,100 263,103

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collaterallzed by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of $2,775 include principal and
interest at 8% per annum. The note is due in February 2021. 40,664 69,285

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
cpllateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no Interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until
maturity in October 2039. 617,613 617,613

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collaterallzed by Belmont Street real estate and personal
property. The non-Interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to SOf/o of surplus cash. The note Is
payable in full by December 2040. 413,735 413,575

A privately-financed mortgage note collateralized by property
located at South Main Street In Concord, New Hampshire.
Monthly payments of $3,158 include principal and Interest at
6.25% per annum. The property was sold and the note was
paid In 2019. _ 332 432

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collaterallzed by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash.'The note is
payable In full In August 2040. 34,628 34,628

A second, noninterest bearing, mortgage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
collaterallzed by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$4,000 commenced In October 2012 and continue until the
maturity date in June 2041, 160,022 168,022
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

A nonlnterest bearing promissory note payable from Housing
Benefits to NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage" and security
agreement on Lowell Street real estate. The note Is to be
forgiven 1/15th annually over the low-income housing tax credit
compliance period which ends in 2026, subject to compliance
with certain requirements. During 2019 and 2018, $131,267
was recognized as revenue and support in the consolidated
statement of activities. 853,230 984,497

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Dover real estate and personal property. The
nonlnterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2028. 216,148 216,672

A nonlnterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 393-395 Spruce Street. Annual
payments of the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$5,000 are due annually by October 1. The note Is due in full by
October 1,2045. 572,808 582,808

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments
of $2,137 Include principal and Interest at 4.35%. The note is
due in full by April 2024. The Organization refinanced this note

386,216 388,731

A vehicle loan payable In monthly payments of $488, including
Interest at 4.06%. The loan is due in September 2020 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle. 4^237 9 B92

A vehicle loan payable In monthly payments of $760. including
Interest at 5.374%. The loan Is due in November 2020 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle. 5^989 13979

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $308, including
interest at 4.75%. The loan is due in October 2023 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle. 12,930
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue. Manchester. New Hampshire. The non-
Interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note Is payable in full by
June 2045. 750,000 750,000

A mortgage note payable to TO Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $1,091 Include principal and
interest at 4.25%. The note is due in full by January 2040. 177,428 183,016

A mortgage note payable to Peoples United Bank, collateralized by
Hope House. Monthly payments of $2,270 Include principal and
interest at 4.94%. The note is due In full by January 2027. 373,411 382,018

A construction loan payable to Franklin Savings Bank,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. Housing Beneftts has the ability
to draw up to $825,000 on the promissory note. Monthly
payments Including principal. Interest and escrow of $7,003 are
due over a 30 year period starting September 2018 at 4.90%
interest. 724,146 770,113

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street!
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of
$720,000. Annual payments in amounts equal to 25% of
surplus cash. The note is due in full by November 1, 2047. 720,000 692,891

Three vehicle loans collateralized by an activity bus payable to
Ford Credit In monthly payments of $392 at 5.90% annual
Interest rate. The loan is due and payable in March 2022. 28,611 40,633

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street, 2nd Floor. The note
has a borrowing limit of $1,655,323. As costs are incurred
Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of
Manchester. Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net
cash flow, as defined, or $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2019. The note is due In full by
October1,2047. 1,458,182 1,133,816
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

^  December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester, collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson
Street. 3rd Floor. The note is funded by the City of
Manchester's Community Improvement Program and the City
of Manchester's Affordable Housing Trust Funds. The note has
a borrowing limit of $531,252. As costs are incurred, Housing
Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual
payments in the amount of 25% of net cash flow, as defined,
are due by October 1 commencing October 1, 2019. The note
is due in full by December 1, 2047. 531,252 495,225

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located in Woifeboro. New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $780,000. Annual
payments in amounts equal to 25% of surplus cash. The note is
due In full by December 1. 2047. 780,000 780,000

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA and Is collateralized by the
real estate and personal property. The mortgage is insured by
the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development
through the Housing Finance Agency Risk Sharing Program
authorized by Section 542(c) of the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1992. Monthly payments of $6,745 are
due for principal and interest at 4.20%. All remaining principal
is due on May 1, 2059. 1,558,090

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support
to the Organization for renovations at Angle's Shelter. If the
renovation project is approved, NHHFA is expected to be the
lead lender on renovations. If the renovation project is not
approved NHHFA will forgive the borrowings. The noninterest
bearing note payable Is due at the time of closing on the
construction loan. 41,627 13 879

A noninterest bearing note payable to the City of Manchester
Community Improvement Program through the Affordable
Housing Trust Funds, collateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street. Annual payments of $6,000 are due by
October 1 commencing October 1. 2010. The note, was paid off
in 2019. . gQQQ
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019 -
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

A note payable to CDFA. collateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street, Manchester. New Hampshire. Principal
oniy payments are due for the first 18 months, at which time
monthly payments include principal and Interest at 2.0% will be
required until December 2021. 28.924 46 737

15,985,939 14.760.449

Less current portion 317,739 1,116,180
Less unamortlzed deferred costs 57.530 40^252

$ 15.610.670 $13.604017

Surplus cash for the purposes of these disclosures is as defined in the respective loan
agreements.

Principal maturities of the above notes over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2020 $ 317,739
2021 245,311
2022 223,202
2023 544.247
2024 663.538 .
Thereafter 13.991.902

$15.985.939

Interest expense charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $14 131 was
$221,658 and $229,713 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

7. Net Assets

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, net assets without donor restrictions are fully available to supoort
operations of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2019 2018

Investments to be maintained In
perpetuity, income is to support
general operations $ 25.000 $ 25 onn

Funds maintained with donor restrictions
temporary in nature:
The Family Place - services
Scholarships
VISTA program
Housing programs
Direct care for clients

Community Gardens
Hope House
Family Willows Recovery Housing

Program
NHNH merger
Substance use disorder services
NHNH programs
Passage of time

Total funds maintained with
donor restrictions temporary in
nature

Total net assets with donor

restrictions

81,933 53.540
8.764 8,264

- 48,118
37,600 .

88,784 95.410
- 10,333

21,067 131.440

. 264,238
12,779 345.003

119,760 170,677
17,344 35,613
66.666

454.697 1.162.636

:  479.697 $  1.187.636
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows;

2019 2018

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Operating releases

The Family Place - services $ 26,607 $
Scholarships 3.500
VISTA program 48,116 57.325
Direct care for clients 71,083 84.324
Community Gardens 2,000
Hope House 107,176

-

NHNH merger 122,810 96.706
Substance use disorder services 374,438 45.324
NHNH programs 107 5.746

752.336 292.925

Capital project releases
Hope House: . 216.016
Family Willows Recovery

Housing Program 264,238 143,796
NHNH programs 36.616 -

299.854 359.812

$  1.052.190 $ 652.737

8. Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership Is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $71,543 and $63,053 during the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

10. Noncontrolllno Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows:

.  Limited Partner Property 2019 2018

New Hampshire Housing
Equity Fund, Inc. Bicentennial $ - $ 105.749

JP Morgan Chase Bicentennial • 213,791
BCCC, Inc. Family Bridge 10 ' 10
Boston Capital Corporate Family Bridge 766,945, 970,818
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Capital Midway Family Willows 1.835.370 - 1.919.020

$  2.602.333 $ 3.209.398

11. Uncertainty

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, local, U.S., and world governments have encouraged self-
isolation to curtail -the spread of the global pandemic, coronavlrus disease (COVID-19), by
mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and imposing limitations on travel
and the size and duration of group meetings. Most sectors are experiencing disruption to business
operations and may feel further Impacts related to delayed government reimbursement, volatility in
investment returns, and reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented uncertainty
surrounding the duration of the pandemic. Its potential economic ramifications, and any
government actions to mitigate them. Accordingly, while management cannot quantify the financial
and other impacts to the Organization as of March 31, 2020, management believes that a material
Impact on the Organization's consolidated financial position and results of future operations is
reasonably possible.

12. Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements In conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 31, 2020,
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be Issued!
Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for Inclusion In the consolidated
financial statements.
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Families in Transition/New Horizons New Hampshire
Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Scott W. Ellison, Chair

COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Partner

Board member since 2018

Roy Tilsley, Vice Chair

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley, Treasurer

President, CPA, CEP, Bartley Financial Advisor

Board member since 2018

Frank Sagllo, Asst. Treasurer

Howe, Riley & Howe, PLLC.

Board member since 2018

KrIstI Scarpone, Secretary
First, Corporate and Foundation Relations

Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, At Large

President, Anagnost Companies

Board member since 2018

Heather Whitfleld, At Large

Vice President, Commercial Lending, People's United Bank
Board member since 2018

David Cassldy, Past Co-Chair

Senior Vice President, Eastern Bank

Board member since 2018

Charia Blzios Stevens, Past Co-Chair

Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Croup

McLane Middleton, Professional Association Esquire
Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone,

Sr. Director Employee Relations Greater Boston Area, Comcast

Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet Management, Associate Director of Sales Administration
Board member since 2018

Rev. 2/18/2020 RS
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AnnMarie French

Executive Director, NH Fiscal Policy Institute

Board member since 2018

Brian Hansen

Team Engineering, Project Manager

Board member since 2018

Brian Mikol

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Jack Olson

Retired

Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage

Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aidrlch

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations

Board member since,2018

Peter Telge
Owner, Stark Brewing Company

Board member since 2018

Roy Balientine

Executive Chairman, Balientine Partners, LLC

Board member since 2019

Sarah Jacobs

Manchester School District Coordinator

Board member since 2018

Sean Lelghton

Captain - Investigative Division Commander, City of Manchester Police Department

Board member since 2019

Wayne McCormIck, CFP

Steward Partners Managing Director Wealth Manager
Board member since 2018

Rev. Gayle Murphy

Minister At Large

Board member since 2020

Michael McCormIck

Anthem- Chief of Staff & Sales Effectiveness Director,
Commercial Business Division, Manchester NH

Board member since 2020

Rev. 2/18/2020 RS
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Maria Devlin
mmfm

Profi le

Tenured professional with extensive experience leading teams through building strategies and Initiatives to drive high performance.
Adept at developing and carrying out a strategic vision, particularly those that require buy-in from Internal and external stakeholders.
Expertise includes fundraising, change management, organizational leadership, budget management and improving team engagement.

Ski l ls/Exper.tlse

Experienced with Organizational
Budgeting Including Revenue &

Expense Accountability

Organizational Agility & Complexity
Management

Teamwork and Team Building Skills

External Relationships & Partnerships
Customer Service Oriented

Face of the organization
Mission Focused

Goal Oriented, Leads by Example,
Visionary and Focused

Program/Project Management Experience

President & CEO

[•amllies in Transillon - New Horizons, Mtuichosler NH 06/20'«'.fl - pre.sent

The President serves as Chief Executive Officer of Families In Transition-New Horizons and will have overall strategic and operating
responsibility for staff, planning, development, management and successful Implementation of programs and services, community
engagement and execution of strategic objectives and mission of the organization.

•  Establishing a vision for community impact that Is achieved through the efforts of a diverse team of high-performing leaders,
•  Responsible for overseeing the administration of programs to Include financial performance and viability, organization

mission and strategy, organizational operations, resource development and community impact.

Chief Executive Officer

American Red Cross of NH & VT, Concord, NH 03/2008-05/2020

Responsible for representing the American Red Cross In the community. Focus externally on core mission delivery, fundraising
and being the face of the Red Cross for the media, donors and their communities. Responsible for oversight and execution of a $5 million
operating budget.

•  Created overall strategic planning and oversight for 3 major transitions In Northern New England. Oversight of execution of
staff and board integration.

•  Lead organizational goals for service delivery, fundraising and external relations - for the past 4 years have met or exceeded
key performance indicators and revenue target of $1.2 - 2.5 million annually

•  Lead dual-state (NH/VT) operations with a team of 24 FTEs plus 1100 volunteers at multlpio locations - in August 2019,
began merger with Red Cross of Maine to align staffing, processes, procedures for a new 3-state region

•  Build lasting community partnerships with local corporations & groups to ensure mission delivery such as - Installing over
12,000 free smoke alarms In homes across the two states In 5 years

•  Ensure that volunteers, youth and young adults are engaged and retained - 93S of our volunteer workforce Is engaged in
providing at least one hour of volunteer time to mission within the last fiscal year

Interim Executive Director

Director of Public Affairs

Children's Alliance of New Hampshire, Concord, NH 01/2007-03/2008

The Children's Alliance (now New Futures Kids Count) advocates, educates and collaborates to Improve the health and wellness
of NH's residents. Collaborated with Board of Directors on organizational budget, development goals, policy initiatives and
organizational values and mission. Responsible for all operations: HR, P&L, Board Development, public policy advocacy initiatives
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Maria Devl in

•  Organized the Children's Advocacy Network - a diverse group of organizations and Individuals - dedicated to Improving the
life of children and families through legislative and public policy initiatives, such as statewide kindergarten, statewide
children's health insurance, greater access to Children in Need of Services (CHINS) and maintaining access to Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits

•  Acting as the Interim Executive Director supported by 3 paid staff and a board of directors with 12 members
•  Stabilized fundraising, operations and personnel to ensure positive transition to new leadership
•  in partnership with the Annie E. Casey Foundation, created & released the 2007 Kids Count data book for New Hampshire

an annual report which tracks child wellbeing. Data which is used to enrich local and state-level discussions around policy
change.

Director of Annual Giving

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH 10/2003-01/2007

Responsible for Increasing annual giving from SNHU alumni, family and friends through personalized outreach,
donor relationship building, and targeted fundraising events.

•  Successful $50,000 asks to build stronger scholarship program for students at university, developed moves management
plans for donors to increase donor engagerrient and support

•  Managed annual giving program including direct mall, Telefund (connecting with alumni through current students to raise
funds via phone calling) leadership and class giving, faculty/staff giving, class gift and related events

•  Coordinated all stewardship activities for University President and VP, Development with average gifts over $15,000
•  Managed stewardship for all scholarship donors with average gift of over $1,000

Director of Development & Program Services

Make-A-Wish Foundation of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH 05/1996-10/2003

•  Successfully developed. Implemented and executed a new volunteer management program to grow active volunteer base
from 100 to over 500 volunteers throughout the state

•  Managed &,grew special events fundraising from 15 events annually to over 160 events grossing over $1 million annually
•  Managed communications and public relations - created newsletters, managed website, pitched wish stories to media -

Increasing the number of families reached to grant over 250 wishes each year.

Education
Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH Springfield College, Manchester, NH (sateillte)
Master of Sdence, Organizational Leadership Master of Science In Human Services, Community Psychology

University of Maine, Orono, ME
Bachelor of Science, Child Development & Family Relations

Additional Certifications and Development
•  Certified Personal Trainer, National Academy of Sports Medicine, 2019

•  Adult First AId/CPR/AED-2-year Certification, American Red Cross, 2018

•  Leadership of Non-ProfIt Organizations, Graduate Certificate. Southern New Hampshire University, 2008

HonorsSt Achievements

•  2015 Community Service Award Winner, Turkish Cultural Center of NH

•  2014 Excellence In Non-ProfIt Award Recipient from NH Business Review
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Maria Devl in

2013 Business Leader of the Year PInnade Award Winner, Greater Concord Chamber of Commerce

2013 Presenter at the international Disaster Management Exhibition In Istanbul, Turkey
2013 Recognized as one of the Top Women-Led Non-Profits by Business NH Magazine

Community
Women's Resource Group founding member, American Red Cross 3/19-present
Governor's Coundl on Diversity and inclusion, 3/19-present
Waypolnt NH (formerly known as Child & Family Servlcles of NH) Trustee, 1/2015-present
Volunteer New Hampshire, Board Member 2014-2016

NH Volunteer Organizations Active in Disaster (NH VOAD), Board Member 2014-2016
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Meghan E. Shea, LICSW, MLAJDC

OBJECTIVE

Continue to utilize and expand the clinical and management skills have 1 attained &:om my
professional and academic training to secure a position in a nonprofit setting.

EDUCATION / LICENSURE

Master — Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor September 2010- Present

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker October 22, 2012-Pre8ent

Master of Social Work, Univcfsity of New Hampshire May 2010
■  Graduated witli an MSW from the Advanced Standing Program

Bachelor of Art, Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2006
■  Graduated with an BSW with GPA of 3.41

RMPLOYMENT ^ ^ ^

Vice President, Clinical & Supportive Services
Families in Transition-New Horizons December 20''", 2017 - present

■  Rcccivership-Intccim Executive Director of Serenity Place
■  Oversees all clinical and supporiivc iscrvices at Families in 'rransltion-Ncw Horizons including

emergency shelter, transitional and permanent supportive housing, Intensive Outpatient Services,
Outpatient services, Recovery Housing and programming.

■  Quality of control of healthcare facilities licensute.
■  Oversight of fidelity of evidence based practices and modck.
■  Oversight of staff competencies and required trainings for best practices across the agency.
■  Supervision of agency program managers and housing director,
•  Provide cliiucal supervisor for liccnsurc and certifications.

■  Quality control of all billing policies and procedures.
Clinical Director

Families in Transition Sept !•', 2016- December 2017
■  Oversee and manage Sr. Mousing Program Manager who supervises ihc supportive services department with up

to 25 staff providing housing (en^ctgcncy, transitional and permanent) and supportive services with capacity to
serve 200 homeless individual and families. Supportive services encompass iitdividual case management,
therapy, psycho-educational workshops, pro-social family activities and crisis intervention.

■  Oversee the Family Willows Program Manager who supervises 11 clinical staff who conduct co-occurring
treatment to women only

■  Develop and staff Recovery Mousing program and implementation of newest housing and supportive service
progratTtming

■  Develop and oversight Open Doon outpatient programming for all transitional housing programs of FIT
•  Ensure quality programming across Families in Transitions clinical department
•  Provide training within the organization and community on substance niisusc in NH.
•  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transition's various Supportive Service
■  Oversight of hilling coraponcnrs of all levels of Co-occurring treatment.

Therapist January 2014- Present
Bedford Family Therapy
•  Treat a caseload of 15 clients in a private outpatient group practice
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•  UtiliTc various evidence based practices CBT.DBT, and Seeking Safety skills to help clients meet their own
individual goals

■  Conduct Drug and Alcohol assessments
■  Active participant in pWl Offender Program providing mandated outpatient session for individuals coming

from the Impaired Drivers Program
■  Participate in weekly supervision with other licensed clinicians part of the private group pracdce.

Clinical & Supportive Service Manager March 2016- August 31«,2016
Families In Transition

■  Manage the day to day oi>erations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff members
■  Manage the day to day operations for the Housing program of Families in Transition consisdng of over 200

apartment units in New Hampshire.
■  Provide clinical ajid adminisirniivc supervision for n total of 14 staff for Families In Transition
•  Ensure compliance with budgetary and financial goals.
•  Maintain compliance with State, FcdcrnI, Accreditation, Contract and Insurance reguladoni.
•  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transirion's various Clinical Programs.

Program Manager of the Family Willow Substance Use Treatment Program September 2014-2016
Families In Transition

■  Manage the day to day opcradons for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff members
■  Transirioncd the program ffom grant funded to billing all commercial insurances
■  Increased accessibility of treatment from 86 clients in 2013 to 250 In 2016.
■  Provided clinical and administrative oversight of the PW Substance Use Treatment Program -
■  Carried a caseload of 12-15 individual clients providing co-occurring evidence base therapeutic intervenrions.
•  Facilitated Intensive Outpadcnt treatment in a group setting on a weekly l>asis to group of 12 women.
■  Provided treming and cdiicadon to staff on clinical intcrvcndon and best practices in the group setdng.

Therapist May 2010- September 2014
Families In Transition

"  Facilitated Intensive (Xitpadcnt Programing in a group setting daily for up to 12 clients
■  Carried n caseload of up to 1.5 people for Individual therapy.
"  Provided crisis services for the hotline of Families In Transidon

•  Conducted Substance Use Disorder Assessments for incoming clients
•  Produced treatment plans, progress notes and suppordng documentadon in a dmcly manner
■  Helped implement new curriculum chajigcs in the treaimeni programming

MSW Intcrft May 2009 to May 2010
Bedford Counseling - Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

■  Conducted intake interviews for new, adult clients and develop comprehensive psycho-social assessments to
include diagnosis and substance use assessments

•  Provided psychothcrapeudc intcrvcndon scrNdces to twenty-two individuals using brief treatment and cognitive
Ijchavioral intcrvendons

■  Attended ihcrapcudc workshops pertaining to dual-diagnosis, behavioral health and client driven treatment
planning

Case Manager June 2006- May 2010
Families In Transidon

•  Provided in home case management services to 30 individuals and families to enhance housing stability among
the homeless population.

■  Provided crisis hotline coverage for all clinical programming of Families In Transidon
■  Conducted program interviews for the community support program
■  Maintained id! files with updated documentadon, cleat and concise progress notes and treatment plans
•  Facilitated workshops to help enhance overall wcllncss to participants of the program
■  Collaborated with commutdty partners to increase referral resources

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
Providers Association Board of Directors-Vice President ofTreatment July 201.4 to Present
NI-I Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association January 2012 to Present
Member of the Manchester Substance Use Collaborative March 2012 to Present

PRRSRNTATIONS

NH Association for infant mental health workshop Helping Parents De Parents:
Addressing Substance Use and Trauma in a Family System- Loon Moimtain June 2015
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Providers Association: Addressmg Substance Misuse in the Home Environment March 31 ",2016 at
Weutworth Douglas Hospital in Dover, NH

RERER.ENCES - AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2051F799-8CA9^205^07C-62EA8C8B2680

Sarah Bernier, LICSW, MLADC

Skills

Education

Crisis intervsntion. Individual therapy, community outreach, treatment
planning, cognitive behavioral therapy, acceptance commitment therapy
and motivational Interviewing Interventions.

Masters In Social Work, May 2012
University of New Hampshire, Manchester NH

Bachelor's Degree in Social Work and Counseling,
Completed May 2009
Franklin Pierce University, Rindge NH, GPA 3.78

• Alpha. Chi. (2000)
• High Honors In Social Work (Franklin Pierce 2009)
• Outstanding Senior In Social Work Award (Franklin Pierce 2009)

Experience Counselor y Behavioral Health Consultant, Manchester Community
Health Center, Manchester
February 2015-PrGsent
•  Facilitates and organizes the medication assisted treatment program
•  Sen/es as a behavioral health consultant in the clinic working directly

with providers to assess and create plans of care for patients with
substance use and mental health needs.

• Connecting patients to resources and services
•  Individual clinical caseload of adolescents and adult patients
•  Supervising clinical notes for the medication assisted treatment

program

PREP Coordinator, Child Health Services. Manchester, NH
May 2012-Present
•  Facilitates, coordinates, recruits and retains adolescent teen girls in an

evidence-based, sexual health group.
• Mental health counseling with teens; including wrap around case

management with clients on caseload.
.  • Community outreach to promote medical homes

Advanced Clinical Intern, Cynthia Dav Family Center. Nashua, Auaust
2011-May2012
•  Providing direct support to women and children in recovery
•  Delivered dinloa! social work skills with dients on caseload
• Completed evidenced-based groups: Nurturing Parenting and Thinking
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for a Change, Seeking Safety '
• Completed bio-psychosodal assessments, mental health

assessments, and Alcohol Severity Index (ASI) with clients

Intern, Teen Health Clinic. Manchester, NH
August 2010-May 2011
• Met with patients and assess social service needs
• Made referrals for patients to community resources
• Group work, outreach, and program development

Per Diem Residential Counselor, Briaids Crossino.
Lowell, MA 2010^an 2012
•  Supen/lsing adolescent girts with their children in a residential setting
•  Completing daily tasks set up by the program
•  Encouraging independent living skills

Intern, Court Appointed Special Advocates. Keene, NH
2008-2009, 2010

• Organized Paperwork and Mail & Resource Cabinet
•  Represented Child in Court including Monthly Visits with Child
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Amy M. Pettengill. M.S.W LADC

Education;

JUcensed Alcohol Drug Counselor (LADp)*"
New Hampshire License # 0957- , ■

University of New Hampshire
Durham, NH
-Master of Social Work- 2016

College of New RocHelle
New Rochelle, NY
- Badielor of Social Work- 2004

- Minor in Sociology

Awards:

NHChmren*s Trust

UnsiingHero Award-2019

Boards and Committee Experience

* Greater Manchester Council on Domestic and Sexual Violence

Elected Co-Chair 2017- present

* Manchester Family Justice Center

Member at Large 2017- present

*Nffffunian Trafficking Collaborative Task Force
Member 2017-present

Work Experience:

Director of Crisis Services
YWCA NH, Manchester, NH (Jniy 2015- Present)
- Supervise all Staff, Interns, Volunteers, and Americorp members
- Ensure thai effective services are being provided to over 5,000 clients annually
- Manage the Emergency Domestic Violence Sheltei*
- Speak with media when needed
- Participate in regularly scheduled community meetings sudi as the Participating Member Council through NH
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Domestic
and the Sexual Assault Response Team

- Provide Case Management and Drug and Alcohol Counseling
- Facilitate staff meetings and trainings
- Grant Writing and reporting

Program Coordinator of the Supervised Visitation and Child Exchange Center
YWCA NH, Manchester, NH (November 2013- July 2015)
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- Condiictod intake assessments to determine progr^ eligibility
■ Provided program staff supervision
- Monitored supervised visits and exchanges
- Maintained family files
- Provided monthly and annual statistics of families using the center

Supervisor
TCA Crossroads, HavGrhiU, MA (January 2012 - March 2013)
- Provided weekly staff supervision
- Ensured the saf^ and well-being of 9 teenaged boys
- Conducted weekly primary sessions with residents
- Facilitated a variety of therapeutic groups

Case Worker

Child and Family Services, Concord, NH (June 2011 - December 2012)
- Coordinated therapeutic treatment for youth on probation
- Facilitated weekly independent living groups
- Provided weekly 1:1 counseling to youth
- Wrote treatment plans and monthly rqiorts

Substance Abuse Counselor

Farnnm Center, Manchester, NH (January 2009 - June 2011)
- Provided regular counseling to substance abusing adults
- Facilitated weekly femily education groups
- Completed mulUple assessments on cli^ts
- Made community referrals with discharge planning

1:1 Counselor

Daro Family Services, Newburyport, MA (Mny 2008 - June 2010)
- Taught and monitored parenting skills to pregnant and parenting teens
- Provided weekly individual counseling
- Communicated and collaborate with all treatment professionals involved with the client
- Transported and attended medical tqjpointments with residents

MSWIntern

NH State Prison for Women, Ooffstown, NH (May 2007 - May 2008)
- Facilitated weekly substance abuse, victim impact, and eating disorder groups
•• Assisted inmates with after care planning
- Attended regular court and parole hearings

Case Manager
Commanity Partners, Rochester, NH (May 2006 - May 2008)
- Provided in home mental illness managemeot to children aged 4-18
- Assisted families with developing goals and a treatment plan
- Facilitated State of NH CHiild Impact Seminar

Case Manager
Onr House for Girls, Dover, NH (May 2004 - Mny 2006)
- Assisted with the creation of resident treatment plans
- Facilitated quarterly case planning meetings
- Met weekly with individual clients to discuss pfogross and goals
- Monitored residents during dally activities
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FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Maria Devlin President/CEO 180,000 0% -

Meghan Shea Chief Programs Officer 105,000 30% 31,500

Sarah Bernier Program Manager iOP 74,492 100% 74,492

Amy Pettengill Program Manager TLP 57,222 100% 57,222
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Kaija S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VORIAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301

,  603-271.9544 1-800-952-3345 ExL 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 16. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division For Behavorial Health, to enter
into agreements with the vendors listed below, in an amount not to exceed $496,096, to provide Recovery
Housing services and supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) effective upon Governor
and Council approval, through September 29, 2020. 100% Federal Funds. .

Vendor Name Vendor Number Location Contract

Amount

Dismas Home of New

Hampshire
#290061-8001 102 Fourth Street Manchester,

NH 03102
$100,001

Families In Transition #157730-6001 122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101
$195,795

Hope on Haven Hill #275119-8001 326 Rochester Hill Road

Rochester, NH 03867
$200,300

Total: $496,096

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2019, and are anticipated to be
available in State Fiscal Year 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust-amounts within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT.

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total

Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $144,529

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $279,678

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $71,889

Total: $496,096
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide Recovery Housing services and supports to individuals
with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in a supported and safe recovery housing environment. New
Hampshire has minimal capacity to serve individuals in need of recovery housing. There are few options
for specialty populations who have complex needs and/or gender-specific housing. This request will fund
recovery housing statewide to service specific populations with Opioid Use Disorder that includes

•  A Recovery Residence for females only;

•  A Recovery Residence for individuals who have complex criminal backgrounds
that limit access to other publicly funded housing options; and

•  Recovery Residences to serve the general population who are in need of housing
in a supported, safe, recovery environment,

The State of New Hampshire received funding through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration State Opioid Response grant opportunity. This grant is t>eing used to make
critical investments in the Substance Use Disorder system in order to reduce unmet treatment needs,
reduce opioid overdose fatalities and increase access to Medication Assisted Treatment over the next
two (2) years. The State is implementing evidence-based methods to expand treatment, recovery and
prevention, services to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder. These funds will strengthen established
programs that have had a positive impact on the opioid crisis as well as expand the capacity for programs
to assist individuals struggling with an Opioid Use Disorder.

The Department is contracting for these services for the first time. The Contractors are expected
to serve a maximum of eighty-four (84) Individuals on any given day. The Department will be closely
monitoring the numbers actually served as well as the lengths of stay and the coordination of care for
other health and social services.

The Doorways are responsible for providing comprehensive assessments at several time
intervals, specifically at intake, three (3) months, six (6) months, and upon discharge; specifically data on
client-related outcomes including, but not limited to recovery status, criminal justice involvement,
employment, and housing needs at the time intervals listed above. This data will enable the Department
to measure short and long-term outcomes associated with State Opioid Response-funded initiatives and
to determine which programs are generating the t:>est results for the clients served.

The three (3) vendors included in this requested action were selected for this project through a
competitive bid process. This request represents three (3) of the selected four (4) vendors. The
Department anticipates awarding one (1) additional contract that will be submitted to Governor and
Executive Council for approval for the next scheduled meeting. A Request for Applications was posted
on the Department of Health and Human Services' website from October 22, 2018 through November
13, 2018. In addition, on October 23, 2018 an email of notification of the RFA was distributed to
stakeholders throughout the State. The Department received six (6) applications. The applications were
reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program-specific knowledge. The review included a
thorough discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the applications. The Score Summary is
attached.

As referenced in the Request for Applications and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, Recovery Housing
services and supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in a supported, safe
recovery housing environment may not be available, which could result in individuals backsliding during
their road to recovery, which would intensify the Opioid Crisis and lead to an increase in overdose deaths
inNH.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Administration. State Opioid Response Grant, {CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI081685)

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

fey A. Meyers
imissioner

The Deparimenl o/ Health and Human Scniccs' Mission is toJoin communities and /amilies
in providing opportunities [or citizens to achieve health and independence.
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/

Subject: M^A^20i»BDAS^2.|^COV.Q2yRecoverv Housing for Individuals with PUD
FORM NUiytBER P-37 (ycrsioQ ̂ 5}

Notice: This agreement and dl bnisstlachmenlsshall ̂ conM'public u^tnibmissl(m.(6<^vaTipr^
Executive Owml rorip^<^. Any infotiiinailtu thai b private, or pniprietaiy'muA

- be deoriy'i^rdJfied to the egoicy ehd agr^ to in.writing priw.to signii^ the contract.

^  AGREEMENT
The Stale of New llampdilrc and Ihc'Contractor hereby mutually agree qsToI1o>V£

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTlhCATION.
1.1 Stale ̂ ojcy l^me,
NK ofHcalth and Hur^ Sctvlca

\

13' Slate Agency Addr^
129 Pleasant Street

Concoiid. NH 0330U38S7

13 Gontrixtor Name

irr/NHNH, Inc.
1.4 - pontroctor Address
122 Market StreM'

Manchester, NH 03101

13 Contractor nionc

Numba

603:^1-9441

1.6' Account Number

b5r093^92-920510^7040- '
0000-102.500731

1.7 Completion Dde 1 1.8 Price Limitation-
SepicmhCTW.JOCb J
Scptc[hber3-0;202g^. ' M S195.793

1.9 C^ri^j^pntber for State^ency
Nall^ p. WhJti^'pirector
Bureao of Contracts arid Procurement

1.10 Stole Agency Telephone Number
603-271-^31

Lit ConlroctorSignature I.I2 Name and Title.of CMtracior Sistaipry

Maureen Beauregartj, President

1.13 Adcnowledgcment: Stale of Naw Hsmpahirq County of HiOsborough .

ph Mai^ 15,- 2019 , before the underagn^b(Ticer,perMhdly&]^^ inblo^ Ln.pi.wisfacibrily
proven'lo be the pcr^ whose name Is signed In block 1.11 . and ackoowtedged th^ s/tie exccuteti this docuntcol ihlite'cap&cliy
indicated in block 1.12;

L13.1 Signature ofNotary Public or Justice of the Pcke
'  V ' RinMA.SYR^NotBiyrtibec
f  ] 1 , ^Cqowiito

1.133 Name and Titlc.of Nbli^wTuflicc of the Peace
Rylh Syrek. Admin. Assl!, Not^ Pubfic

1.14 Stale Agerwy Signature"

bae^Mln
1.15 Name arid Tlllc of Stale Ag^y SIgiiaiory

1.16 Approval by the NJI: Department of AdmlnistJiuIon, Division of Personobh'|^e'pp//c0b/qj • »

B:^; Dinxtbr, Oh:
y'

1.17 Approval by Attorney Gcrtcril (Form, Subtfahee and.Execution) (!/applicable)

1.18 Approval by.lhe^Qovemor and Executive CouodI (if pppUeablt^

By: On:
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (verslOD 5/8/15)

Subject: RFA-26l9-bDA5;:b2-RECQV-0'?/Rcc6v^rv Ho^ for Ihdivi^lMals with QVB
Notice: ITus agrccment.ond all of Its-aUachmcnLs shall become public

Ex'ccutiw.Council for approval- Any infprniaiion th^ is,pri\^ic, cprifldchlial or proprictaiy musl
be cleariy.idcnlified.toihe agcricy and agrebd lo m'wrilin8_pri6r.[o;si^ing tte contract.

agreement

The Stale oyNcw'U^pshife i^^ the Cdmracior hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENEKAE PROVISIONS

1. identification. -

hi State AgCTicy Name
NH b^artmcnl biHcalih and Humii:n_^rvicc.s

12 Sta'tc Agency Address;
129,Plea-sani Street

Concord: NH 63301-3857

1J. Contractor Nariw-
Flt/l^H, liic,

1.4 ̂ Contractor Address
122 Market Slre^ct
MaiKhesier/NH 03101

1.5 "(^niractpr Phone
•"Number

(W3-^T-W41

\ .6 Acwunt Number

05-095.-092-920510-7040-
0000^102-506731

1 .-7, Completion Date

Sbpicmbcr.SO, 2620

1.8 Price Limitatiuo

St?'5.7.95

1,9 iGbntrnctidg Officer IbrSwte Agency
>{^an b". Whi^. ttrcctor;
Bu'i^u of Contracts and Procurement

1.1 QyStalc Agency TclephphcNiiiitber
603-27 l-9b3.i -

,1.11 ContrMtCtf SigjMitur^" 1.12 Name and Title.pf Cbnttnctor Signatory

Maureen B'eauregard. President

1.1-3 -Acknpwiedgcracm:- -State of Now Hampshire County oT Hlllsborough

On March .15;2019 , beforc ihc undersigned ofdccr, personally,appeared the pci^ identilicd in b\U\i 1. 12^;pr-^l?rac|orily
proven tb be thc pefiton' name^is.sign^ .in blbck 1.) 1; and acknowledged lhai-s'hc executed this document iii thc capacliy
Indicatcd'in bldck-l:l2^

I.l3.r Si^t,ui*,brNpl.^ Public or|usiicc'6f the Peac^^

1S<

RUtH A BYl^ .Not^PufaOo
MyComrnla^Eqifr^

1.1^4; NainearidTitlebfNdtaryCr,^

Ruihi.Syrek.- ■^mlhiyAssL;'Npt^ Public •'
1.14- S^ic Agci^ Sigitalu«. 1.15 Name and Title otSlatc Agency Signatory

^ ::
1.16 Approval.by"theN.H. Dcpanmcriiof Admininralion; Divi.donofPersonnHJfi/o^/^//

yy- Director,On:

PersonnH//7/'o;>/^//cflWe/

1.17 Approval by,^AnorneyTGcneral (Fprm,.Substtmcc and lixecuiioh) p/qpplicahle)

1.18_ Approsil by thc^bdirnto'r'end Executive Council (^oppHaihk)
By: Oh:..
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CO^TT^Cri TO
BE PERFbR^1Ep. TKcSiaiisofNcw Ham^^^^
throu^ itic agency idOTtified in bjotk-l .l _(''Siai€ ), engages.'
c.onuaapr ldcntin.(^;inb!ock.'l3 f perform;
■aiid lhc Cpritriclpr stoll 'inform,'the. work or s^c ofgoodvor
^'boi^ idcntifi'^'and raorc'^^^^ in the aitachcd
:E^IB1T A which islihcojpbrated herein by reference-
/^Seh'ices**).

,3. EFFECTIVE DATFiCOMPLETlpN OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwlhsanding any provision of this.Agrccmcni lo the

•.contrary, and subject to the approyaJ of thc.OovcfniOT'^d.
Exccuiiye.Gouncil.oflhcStatc.dfNcwH^ if
applicable, this,Agrccrncnt;;apd an:obllgalions of the parties
bcrcunder, shall become cfTecUye on the date ifcpoyerndr
and Exccijyve'Council,:approvc'^ i^ecmcnt^^ mdiCaicd Inblock l:li, uh!^ no.such 'a^^^ .is r^uired, in which case
the Agrecr^t.sl^ t^bme,eff»ti\'con the ddie the;
Agnxmenl t.s jngh^ by the StaeAgcncy as sho block
I. j 4 ("EfTcctive'Uate'').*
3';2 If pnOrio the
Effwiiw Oal'^r.air by ilw Coniraclpr prior
to the Efr«(iW pide:,S^^^^ tit the sole- risk of the
Cphtriictdr.' arid in thei^cnt that tfiis Agreemciit docs not
^omc effective; the State sh^l have ho llabiiity to the
Cdmrnctor,' includuig without limitation, any. obli^lion to.pay
the ConirMtor for<any costs incuncd or Services pprfprmcd.
Contfactqr.rnust.complete all SeiAdccs by the Cdmpiclioh Dale
specified in.block l-X.

4. CONDrnONAl. nature OF AGKEEhniiNl';.
^NotWithstan^ng tmy pfoyistcn of this Agreement ,io .the;
cdntrap'Vuii obl'B'H'O'H
wiihotit limittdion, liiecontiriua^ ofpaym^^ bcTOirylcr, are
continent upon the ayailabiii^ty' an^^ cohlln'ucd ^propriation
of fundi'ahdjD ob^ the Slate be liable for any.
pa^cnis.hercuhdcrm.«cessbf:suchavjuiab^
fuhtis. ;iathc."d''cnrora M of
apprippnated'fluids,.the State shall hayc the righi io withhold
paymCTt'unlirsuchTunds'becomc aNaiiablc;^^ and shall
Iwve'ihc Vighl.io tcnhi.natc tWs'Agreement immediately Upon
-gi.vMngiheCohfra«ohioticcof.sVch.ierihm^^
'fhall.hot be r^uir^;idW from any-other account
to the Account identified In block. 1.6 in ihe-,c\-cnV funds th that
Accounfarc reduced or unavailable;

5. co^muc^ PRic^ibcE LiMrrAtiON/
•PAVhlEfsT.
j. 5.1 Thecoh^i phcc, of payment, and t.ernis of
fwjTiicnt are idchiifici rnprc piuiiculaiiy dcsc in

nBIT B/which.is i.ntp^ herein by.reference.
5'.2'The'pay!^CT^^^ be the
only and the comi>letc.reithbur.sdnicni to the'Contraclor forioll
cxpww.», ofjWhatcw nature, incurred.by the ContrKtor in the
p^orihancc hcicdt, tod shall bc.ihebhly and the compjcic
cprhpcnsatioh tp thc,Gphirac|6r for'thc Service: The State
shall have no Habilily tothc Contractor other than ihc contract
price.

5:3 The State rcscn'.es'thc right taoff^' from any.amounis
otherwise pa>^blei6 the Coniracidr under this Agreement
those iiquidatbd^amounlsVequii^ or pcimiiicd by N.H. RSA
'80:7 thrbiigli.RSA 8(3:7^c or any other provislpn' oMaw.
;5.4;Nbtwjihstandlhg any pfpvisibn iri.ihls Ag^ment to the
cbnirafy, anil hotWithstandin^ circum^ccs, in
no event shall the total of all payiricnts authorized, or actually
inadc hercuridcf, exceed .the Price Limitation:sct forth in bloek
'\£ '

d COMPIJANCE BY CONTRAGTOKWITH LAWS
REGUliAtlONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMEN1

opportunity.
'6. l iii connection with the performance of the Service, .the
Coriimcior shall,comply with all staluleis, taWs.-regulations,

^ ahd 'orders of federal, State,.county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or dirty uponihe'Cpntracipf,,
Including, but not limited to, civil nghis and cqiial oppbrtuhiiy
laws.; this may include rthc requuernCTt' iq.im^
aids and scr\nccs to ensure that perabns with communication
disabilities, inciu^ing Visi.on; hcsuing aind'sp^^
cpmmunicatc'wiili, iwcivc tnfbrmatibh.frbih,' imd cbnvey
information ipHhc Gbhtraa !h aditibn, IhcGoniri^
shiil cbmplyWitb allapp.i^^^^^^^^
6.2 nhiring lhe icrrn of this Agrixmenl, live Coniracior. .shall
not di^itiinaic against 'cmpl^e« or hpAlicanis for
emplo^cni because of race, color, rcli^on, crccd, age: scxv
handicap, ̂ xual .oncritaiion, or riailon^ origin and will lake
afiinnativc action to prcycmi;such duscrimiitt^
6;3 If this Agreement is. funded In toy part by moDie.s oflhc
Uniic,d S.tatcs, the Gontremor shall com^^ all the
prpvnsibris of ii.xecutlvc.GrderNo. 11246t'',^pal
Employmeht.Opportunity7),'qs,supplemEniti^ by the
r^latibnsiorihc Unil^Statcs't^r^ <41
CJ^IL'.Part 66);,and wih any rulM,; rcgula^^^
as thc'Siaic of N^v Hampshlre;6r the United Stales is^c'to
impicraent thc.sc regulations- The Contitotpr. furthCT agrees to
-pemiiuhc State or Uiiiicd Sjmes'cw any dfthc
tthtrncipr'is'^^ records and .accounts for the purpose of
^o.sccriaiiung,complitocey.ith^a^ rui«; regulations and orders^
•and ihc.coveuaitt.S;.icTntS tod c^diiipps.ofthi.s Agreement

7.:PE1^QNNEL,.
7.1 tiic,Contractor shall at its own expen.sc,provide all
pcftohhci necessary to:pcrfprrn the Services. The Cbntracior.
W^tots that'ail pcfsbnrici engaged In tte Services shtdl be
q^ificd to perforrn the Services; and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorizcd.to do so under all applicable
law;s; ,
'7.2 Unl^s otherwise tuilhorizcd in writing,.during thetcrm of
this Agreement,-and for a'pori^ bfiix .(61 m.onths after the

vCpmpletion Date iii b^ck il7,'tiie.epn^ slial) hot lure,
jarid.sl'iall riot pcmtii.any sulkbnlratt^^ firinbr
cbf^riiiidn with wh'orn it is engaged in a-cbrhbincd effort to
perform the Services to hirc,-Wy penwn whb isa Stale
emplbycc.or.offici.al, who isVm'icriaJiy involved in the
prpCurctncni, tsdniinitrtrauori or pcffqrmance of thi.s'
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Agreement, this pro\i^on>hair siiryiye; this
:Agi«ment.
7:3 iiw ConiraaihgOniCcr ! ̂9, or hisor
her succ^rrshall,bVtitc Sw^^^ In the event
brVnyidiWut^ cbncc^nltf
the Contracting iOfflwrs'dM

S: EVENT OF DEFAULT/RKMEDtliS. ,
:,8;l Any. one' cr-morc of iheitbllowing Kts or.omis^oiisbf the
i Coritr^or shall constitute an event of default heneurtdcr
("Event ofDefiult^):- - .
8.i:t failure to peiform lhCvScrviccs satl^actorily or on
•schaiu'c; , . . .
8;!^' failurc.lo subrnit any iTS^rt rcquir^^hcTcuMer;-^
S.ItJ failure to pcrform^yipthcr.coy^^
ofthis.^fccmtmi.
812 Upon ibe rKcurrciiw bf any'Evejit.'of Dcfaull, the State
may.take any OnCjOr morci.^brlalli oiithcjojlow

|iVc Ihi Con^
of DcCaiult and rc'i7wdicd,,wi^hini in the
absCTcc of Q®).
day^ ib'in&dateV f thcEvcnt of l^fault is
hbi'tirncly rcmedicivtcrmlnatclhis
(2) da^ bftcf'^ving Ac Cbntractornodcc of w
8;2.2 gjyc ihe'GqnOTcior a vvrittcn notice#<xifying ihc Eye^^^
"of Default and suspci^ing all under this

and.ordenhgiKai ibie pprtionqrine^c^
which'wouid'olhcfwiselMcmc,
^nod fTOm lh"e'datc:S^^^^ until such limcias thc Sm
dctenTiihes'th^ thc,Coritroctbrhas,curcd the Event of Default
.sKajlnevcr be paid'ib the ̂ hiractor;-,
;g?2'3 ngaihst'tm oihcr.ohngfltiph.s ihclSial^ to
iltC;Cori1njL'ibr.ahy^damiigcs;Uj^^
,EvctUof lifefautt; M
'^ilA tr^ ihcA^ecmc^^^^ and pursuc.any:of its
rcrhi^ik'at'Jaw^bf 'in equityl| or both;.

: 9.; DATA/ACCESS/C0NF11>1OTAUTY/
PRESERVATION.
'9Vr.As us^^n.thislAgreement the word "data" shall mean all,
ihfoiThatibh and ihi li^'dcveloj^d or obtained during: the

• hcrfonnance of prufquiredor dcvclqi^
Agrecnient,-including, but not liniited tOi all,studies, reports,
files; ,formu[ae,"Surycys,* mapsi'chaits,-^uiid rcebnJings, vitlco
recordings, pictprial ri^rpducjiions, ,dniwings,>anaiy?ics,
"graphic 'rcprfseniaiioriij, conipu^^^ computer
prinloui^.n'«c.'t, irtimrrricm^
•^1 whether" finish"^ 0^^

data aiid ahy'propciiy which haVbeep received from
thcisidie brliuitha^i'with^^^^
.undCTthisVA^ecmctjC bc.ihc property of the Siatc, and
sliail beTcj.iinicd to tHbSiate.uppn dcmand or upon,
tcnfiinaiion of.thi.s Agfceincnt;.fpr'aDy rea.wn.
9.yp)nfidchliality^b^ ^all |t< goycn^ hy'N.Hl USA
chapter 9YMbVolhW.exi^ng;la^ bfdata
ri^uircs^'pnor'wiittcn apprpval.of the Stale,

iO".TERhiiNATiON.Tn ihb.cychi of an cariy tcrminaiion of
thisAgreetncht for any rea.^n ,oiher than the coinpleiion ofthc
Scrsnces.'the .Cbhtractof'shall ■dcliver.to'iheContrac

.  i perfbnri^,,^ ;
,and including tKe'dateoTicrm^ ThOfonri, subject
matter,■cpnieot., and huniber of copies ol the Termination
Report shalfbc.idcim^^^^ Report
d^frbcd in the attacked EXHIBII A;
11.CONTRACTOR'S REUTlpN TO THE STAT^^^ Iri
the pcrforniancc of this'Agreement the Conit^pr.i^ in ̂ 1!respects an indep;CJideni.contrttctor, Md is licilhcr an^ agent nor

. an employee of the Siate.^ Ncither.thc Cpniracibr nofany of its
ofnccfS, employees, agcnts.or mcmkcnj^hall haw^authpnty't^

-bind the State or receivc-any Benefits, yl'priccrs'.oo^pensa^^^^
or other emoluments proWdcd by the State to itsicnnployees.,

12. ASSIG^UC^/bElXCAll0N/SpB^
ThcCphtminor si^n nialt.a^igt^^^

■ intercjrtjn'iWsAgTecraehly.'ithpMt the prior writt^^^
cpnschi.bfihc Siaie. Nbhcpf theServiccsshall be
^bcontraci^ Vy the CbnlJ^tor
nbticc and coiiscnt pfthc'SU^

13. INpENLNIFICATIpN.;T>c.Cowracior shall defend,
ihdcmtufy.and hold Kanhjcss tlie'Statc, iis.ofnccrS .and
employees, frpm-bh^ imy;and alMo^s suffered by the
Siaief itslofficers;and ci^loyee^'^and.My^.^^^^ all claims;
liakiHbcs.orpenaltics'aswnedlagb^ ih'c'Staity its.officers
knd employccs,,by 6r oh;bchalf;,of,any of,<
basH or resulting from, ^sing put of (or which may be
claimed to an\w bui'qtythcacts bfbmisimhs'of the
Contractor. Noiuith|iiiihbing;ih^^ noihihghcrcin
cbhuiitied sKall bc;deeined.ip-c6rtstitu^
sovereign immunity immunity is.:l>ercby
r^tybd ib. thc Siatc.'HTtis CO in partgraph I J shaJI
isurvTve the tcrmiiiatjon.ortl^:^^^

U. INSURANiCE,
14",1 Tfie Cpritraclpr'shall, at.iis^sole crpcri«, obtain and
rn.ainlaih inTorcV,;ahd;shal^ rbquife any subcpmrocior or
•aMigkct to obtain' and.maintain in force, the follbwing
insurance: .
14.) .1 cbtnpitlKrisivc:gencral liability insurance againsl.all
claims of bodily injury/dcalh or piojicrty damagc^m
of noi'Icss than .$ COOO.Odppet occurrence

^aggregate; and
14:1.2,specibick^ of cbvcrage'fbrm covering all
propeity subj^t to .suBp^hgraph ,9,.2 hVrein, in M kmbunt nol
less than 8p%^bf ihc'ivho^^ N-aluc Of the pk^perty ;"i4!2The j»iici«'descril^.d insubparagraphU.l^h^

ibe on policy fofiks and'CTdpkse'irKrnls^^^^^
^StalcjofN.evk-,Hampshire-By of.
; Insufwci^ .and issut^ b/lnsurcfs li«?ensed in the State of New
.Hampshire,

initials
Date



DocuSign Envelope 10: 2051F799-8CA9-4205-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

.14.3 the CpntTMibr funiish'to ihe Cqhtracimg OfHcer
identified in block;!.9,'or his.or'^.succewOT. ace^
btinwrwcc foriaiiii^urance
Cphiracldr 'shall;®!..-® furnish ioihc'CbntracringO"^^
Identified
irisufinbc TqrVI^ or inOTrimcc required under ihis
.Agr^niemno laiCr thM iiiirty (30) daj^prior.tothc cxplrotipn
dale rifachbhhc insurance policib^ :thc.ccrtificaie(s) of
' insurimce and ahy rcncvk-als.thcrcdf shall bciaiiached smd arc
Incprpbraied herein by reference; 'Each certific^iKs) pf
insiir^e ̂ 11 contain a .clause rt^uiring t^ insitrer to
provide the Gontracting.OillcCT identified in bl^k-1.9,.6r his
or her successqrrnoj'css than ihirty (30) da^^pn^ written
notice .of cancellatipn .ur modificalib.n of Ok policy,

15. WORKE^V^OMPEIV?^^^
15.1 By.signihg iWs.asrccmCT the eqnirocior;agi^,
certifies and u-arnmis.t.l^ the Contractor i.<in cpr^lioncc with"
or cxerapi from, lhe;rcquircmcnts'6f NJd..^A ch^icr 281 -A
("iygrkers' Compenxaiioh ").

to.lhcCTtchl iIm Cpn^cior Is subject to.the
i^mraniCTisjbf N jl.VR^ chaptcr'281-A, Contractor shall
maihtmn,"'ahd r^uircfanY;Sub^^ assignee to.secure
and maintain,iphymchl of Workers' Compensation in
cp.rincPUdn wth'^acdvi the perron proposes to
uridcriakx pursuani to this Agreement. .Contttwtqr. shall
turoish Ihi Gontracling Officer Identiflcd.in block 1.9^ or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation In the
manncr.describcd in N.i:l. I^A'.cMpter iZRI.-A and any
.applicable reaew'al(s) ihqc6t which shall.bc aiif^hed and arc
iricorpdratcd Herein by-rercrcncc. 'l"hc;Staic shall not be.
res'pphsihic for paymeni ofany-Workers' Compensation
premiums or.for.any other claim or benefit for. Coniractqr. or
any ̂bconttaciot'Or.cmployeeof Coniracio.r, Which might
;^sc under .^pliMblc'Siaic'drNcwHan^ Workers'
'Cdrnpensitibh laws in cbnriection. with the performance of the
• SeKnccs uhderthiSjA:^^

16. WAlVtJ^ OF BREACn. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hcrcof-after any.Ev-ent of Default .shall
be Bccnicd a waivcfofils rights wth regqd.to that Event of

. Default, or ariy EvetU of Default.^ No expres.s:
. failure to eiiforcciany Event of Default shall be deemed a-
wai ver of iheiright of the State to enforce cach and.all of the
provisions hcrcbrupon any Ajrthcr or other Event nrpcfault
on ihc part of the Contractor.

17. NdTliCE.,Any n6lice;by'a pariy Kcfcto to the i^er
shallfie deemed to KaW-bcCh 'duly delimcd qr^givcnial the'
tiihc of mailing by certified mii!^^ prepaid, in a United
States.PosfOfTicc'^drc^^ itf the.parties at the addresses
givchihblqcks 1.2 and 1,4, hercjri."

18. AIStENU.MENT.fhis Agreement.may Wamqidcd;
w-aivi^.or di.scb^'ed;on]y by an inslromcnt In.vsTiting .signed
by the parties hereto arid only after approval of-such
amendment^ ivaiycr or.discharge,by Ihc-Gdvcm^^ and
Executive;,Council df the'Staic of New i iahipshirc unless no

such approved is required undcrihe.eireumaanccs pursuant to
State law, ruie'pr policy.

19. CONSTRDCTI.QN of AGREEMENT AND TERMS,
this. Agrtanent .shall bccdnstruedjih accordance withthc
jlaw of the Stale of New Hamplshirq^ahd is binding upon and
inures to ihe.bencfit of the partia and their respective
'succc.^n». and assi^. The wording used in this Agreement
is tlw wording chosen by ihe'partics.to cxprcss.lhcir rnulual

■ intent, and narulc of constniclion shall be appiicd.agalnst.pr
in favor of any p^y.

20. THIRD parties. The parties^hCTcto do not.intend to
.benefit any third parties and this Agreement shalkpot be
consirticd to confer any such bcnefif.

21. UE'ADINGS; "The. headlngsihroughoui the Agnre'nicnl.
are for reference purpo^pnjy,'Md the words.epntainrt
therein shall in rip vt-ay be held tP exphnhj modify, amplify,or
aid in the inicrprqjUion;^con.'tttuciipn or meaning of the
provisions, of ihisvAyecTnchL

22. SPECIAL provisions;: Additional prpvisionssct
forih in'lhc attached ExVuBn" C arc ihcprporalcd herein by
reference;

23. SEVERABI LITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agrecmqti are held l;)y:a cpurt of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to a'nystaic or (Wcr^. law, the rcmainihg •
prpvislon.s of this Agreement still rcmam in fiiU force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEAiEr^r,;niis Agreement, whi.ch may
bc.Mccuted 'in a number of.counie^art.s, each of which shall
be.decrncd an original, constitutes ihc eiUirc'Agrcethpiit and
undcTsiandifig bqWeen the p^ies, and supchiedeiall prior
Agreemcnt-s and undcj^andirigs rclailng

.Page 4 of 4
.Contracior Initials.

Date

Itlal-S.Pfi^
Hfltp 3-1S-?15:2019



DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 2051F799-8CA9-4205-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

New Hifflpshlr© bcpaf^iai'nt of Health end Huniah Sefv|c
Rocoverv Housing for Individuals with Opiold Use Disorder

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1, Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1 The Gohlra'ctor shall submit a detailed descnptibn of the languegb assistance

services they: \Mli provide to persons with lirnlted English profidehcy to ensure
meaningful access: to their programs and/or ̂^ervices withiri ten (10) da)^ of
the.cphtract f^ecjjye date.

4.2; The Contractor agrees that, to the :e^ent future legislative action by the New,
Hampshire General Court or federal :6r state court orders, may have an impact
dh thd Seivices described herein, the-State Agency has the light to modify
Ser/ice pripntles and expenditure requirements under this. Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3: Nphvithstanding any other, provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
seyvlces- shail cohtiriue aflisr June 30. 2019, and the Department shall hot be:
liable,:for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and
until an apprppriatipn for these services ;has. been receiv^ from the'slate
fegi^lure:and Sjnds'encumbered for the Sf^ 2020-2021 blennla.

1.4. the .Contractor shall pro^de one (1) Recovery Residence to serve females only
v^lh Opioid- IJse bisbrder. (6up) who are in need of housing in a supported,
safe, recovery hoUdhg environrnent in <^mpiiance with the appropriate
National Alliance fbr Recovery Residences (NARR) standard.

2. Scope of Sefvlces

2.1. The Conlraclorshall provide.a physical recovery housing fadlity to Include, but
Is not limited to:

?2:i.1. AsSistaricstp individualstp trBnsitlpn to.independent living;

2:1.2. Safe, stable arid sober.envirpnrrient.

:2.1.3. Meeting state and/pf Ipcal pccupancy r^uirPmehts.
:2:2.- The ■ GoriVractor shall meet :the needs of appjicants/resldents .requiring

Arrieric^ns with Disabilities Act (ADA) accdrrimbdations. Additionally, 'tpe
Gbritractprshall:

2:2r1. provide documerilatiori and maintain the property is in compliance
with local health and safety codes.

2.2.2. Ensure thOiresidence meets all Life arid Safety codes, as required.
2.2.3. Erisure that all house rnanagers and/or staff are trained to deliver

Naibxohe in the case of an' p'verdpse.

2.2:4. -Meet all informatibn security and privacy fequiremerits as set by the
bepartmerit.

prr/NHNH ExHlbilA .Cbntradbf Initialsj#
-  - . 3-15-2019

RFA.20iarBDAS^TRECOV-O2 PageloiS Date^^— .



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2051F799-8CA9-4205-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

Nw HaiTip^lWbcjwrtnieht;bf Heatth.and Hunian Saivlc^;
Rbcover^ Housing,for Individuals .wl^ Olspidbr

Exhibit A

2.3' The Gontractor .sKatl ensure Nalpxorie is ayailahle-an0 accessible In the
resjdehce.

2.4. brQahizational/Admlhistrative Standards
>2;4.iv: the Contractbr shall be a^iegal busjness;entity.,

.2.4.2. The^ppntractor shall have a written mission and vision,statement;
2.4.3. The^Gdntractbr shall have a viTritten code of ethics for tlie Recovery

Residence.

2:4.4. the:Contractor shall carry general liabilityjnsurarice,
2.4v5. The Gpritrabtpr^all comply with state and federal requirerhents. If

requifbd,;.dbcurtientsVsuch as licerises and.eteitifrcates.bf occupancy
must be visible for public view.

2;4:6; The Contractor shall cleariyJdentifV the responsible person(s)
responsible for the Recovery Residence .to all residents;

2:4.7. the Cpntractor shall provide a rfilnimum qualificatlbhs.;dutipste
respqhSib|litids;for to qf the residerice. This
Information rhust be present in a job description and/qrcon^act.

2.4:8. The Goritra^pr shall ensure the living enviroriment is ffbe from drugs
and alcohol.

;2.'4.9. The Gontractor shaltestablish procedures for cohtlnudus quality-
improverneht to Include, but is hot limited to;

2.4.9,1. CPIIect; eyaluate.and report accurate process.

2;4.9.2, Gbitect eyaluale and reportp

.;2;4.i 6. The Cpntractor shall provide proof of written peimissiph t^^^ P
Recpyery.ReSidence p,n toe'propertyTtom the land owher/lahdiprd, if
applicable.

2.5. Fiscal ManaQement Standards

■2:51. The Contractor shall keep accurate .reGprds and must have the ability
to provide residents with staternenlb upbn requests TheTecpfds
arid/pr statements shall include, but are not lirfiited to:
2,5.1:1. Gqthplete repords of charges.
2.5 1,.2i Payments.

2.5.1.3. deposits.
2.6: Oberatibh Standards

■2.61. the Contractor shall ensure emefgericy procedures along with staff
nurtibefs are ppsted in a conspicuous location.

•'Exhibit A ^Contractor,InitialsFft/NHNH
o  i. ri' natA 3-15^2019RFA-2019-BDAS-02-REGOV-02 Rage 2 of 6 ^



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2051F799-8CA9^205V<07C-62EA8C8B2680

New Hampshire Departmerrt of Health>nd Human.Servlces
Recovery Housing for Indlvlduais wl^ Opiold Use Disorder

Exhibit A

27. Recovery SupDort'Standards

27:1. The Contractor shall maintain a staffing pjan.
.27.2. The Cpnfractor shall ensure an applicant scfeenlng process that will

maihtain a safe and supportive environinent for spedfic groujDS of
Individuals In recovery.

2.7.3.. The-Cpritfactbr shall ensure confideritiality laws are.adher^ tb;
- 2 7.4.' The Contractor shall keep residents records secure frorn

unauthprjzed access;

27.5. ThaContractpr shall esteblish and admiriister a grievance policy and
procedufe,

2'7,6. fhe/Gontraptor shall provide a safe.'Strudufed pnd re^ypry
supporljyp environnrtent through established and written.residents
rights arid fepuiremehts..

2.7.7. The Contradtof shall establisH an intake/assessment protocol for
accepting new clients,

2.7:8. The Coritractof shall establish anforientation process that will ensure
all fees arid charges residents incurare presented to applicants prior
to residency. Contractor shall ensure policies are presented to
potential applicants in writing arid are vertaally explained in a simple
aiideasy rrianrier conducive to'the individual's uhderstandihg.

2.'7.9. The Cpritractor shall provide a mutually supportive and recovery-
orienti^ relationships betvyeen residents and/or staff through:

2.7.9.1. Peer-based iriteractioris;

2.7.9.2. House meetings;

27;9.3. Community gatherings;

2.7;9.'4.' Recreational events; arid/or

2.7;9;5^ social activities;

2:7.rib. The.Cbritractdr shall adopt recoyefy7Suppprtiye. alcbhol and drug-free
environments through vyritten and enforced policies arid procedures
trial address the follpvying:

2.7..10.1; Residents that return to alcohol and/or drug use;

27.10'.2.:Hazardous Item searches;

2.7.10:3; Drug-screening and or toxicology prptbcols; arid

2.7;10;4! Pfescription and non-prescription medication usage; and;

2.7.16.5. Pre.scripUon and nonrprescriptiori .storage.

fjt/nhnH ^iblt A Contractor IrilUals

RFA-201^BDAS^2:REC0^^2' ^09® ̂  of 6-



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2051F799-8CA9-4205-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

New Hampshire Oepar^wt of Hmih and Human ServiMs
RecoveiV' Housing for Individuals Oplpld Use Dlspnler

Exhibit A

2:7.11. The Cpntraptor Shall with residents to develop and participate iri
an Individualized recovery plan.

2.7:12. The ,Contractor ̂ all inform residents on tfie wWe rarige of Iqcal
fr̂ tment and r^very support servicesavaiiabte to them.

2;7.13. The Contractor shall provide hbhclihical, recovery suppprt and related
sen/ices.

2.7.14: The!CbHtraCtbr shall encourage residents to attend supportive,^seif-
help groups;and/or outside professional services:

2.7.15. Thepqntiactor shall provide access to scheduled arid staictured
peer-baS^ services such as didaptic presentations.

2.7:16; The Gpntractor shall provide thitd party clinical services,

2.7.17. The Contractor Shall provide life skills deveiopmerii services.
2i7:18. The Cbritractdr shali provideqccess tp. d^ sen/ices.

2.8, Property Standards

2.8.1. The Contractor shall ensure the: residence meets all life, safety, health
arid building codes.

2.8.2. The Contractor shall provide residents yirith storage for food and
personal items.

:2.8.3. The Cbntraptor shall provide fully-functioning fire extinguishers in plain
sight and7o>c|earty marked locations.

2;8.4, The Contractor shaji irnstall operational smoke deteclorS:

2.8.5. The'Contractor shall install operational carbon monoxide detectors if
gas appliances are present.

:2;8.6.; The Contractor shall ensure a smoke/toba'cCb-free iritemal living
enwrorimerit.

,2:8.7. The Contractor shall provide a large community rbqm that will
accbrnniodate house meelingis.

v2i8.8. The Contractor shall provide sleeping quarters that adhere to local
'and state square footage require'rhents;

2.8:9. Th^ Pontractor shall provide lavatory facilities !that adhere to' local and
stateirequirariients if applicable. If there^are no requiremerits,
Contractor shall provide one (1)'sirik, one (1) toilet and one (1) shower

■per six(6) residents.
2.8.10. The Contractor ishall provide on-sife laundry services.
2.8.11. The Copyactor shall maintain the interior and exterior of the residence

in.a functional, safe; and clean manner.

f:.IT/NHNH A . ICdnlraclor Initials
«  . 3-15^2019RFA-2019-BDAS-02-REGOV-02 . Pago4,of6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2051F799-8CA9^20&-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

Now Hampshire Department of HeaUh an^ HMman Servit^
Recovery Housing for Individuals With pplbid Disorder

.Cwklkl^.A^hiblt A

>2.8.12. The ̂ritfactorishall provide spaceslo hold meetings accessible to all
residents.

2'8:i3. The Coritractor shall provide appliances In a good and working
condition;

2.8.14. The Contractor shall provide furniture in good condition.

.2i8;15. The'Cphtractpr shall provide routjne;,and ehieigency repaire.to all
aspectisiof the residehce.,

2.9. Good Neighbor Standards
2;9.T . The Gohtractor shall provide the residence's responsible parties

inforrhatidh to heighboro upon r^uest. The^ntractor shall ensure
the responsible party responds to heighb6r:s 'complaints,

2;9/2. The;p6hU:actpr;shall eslablish and enforce rules regarding the
following:

:2;9.2.1. Noise;

2.9.2.2. Smoking;

^2;9.2:3^ Loiieriiig; and

2;9.2.4". Parking.

2.9;3. the Contractor shall establish and enforce parking rules when,
warranted;

3; Complete Criminal Background Check
3.1. The Gpnb"act6f shall provide to the Department dpcumentatipn 9iat ensures

each Contractbremployee, who may haye direct contact vyith blients under this
agredrheht; has unde^bpe a GriminarBackground Check which demonstrates
no corivlctions fohthe following crimes:

3.1.1. A felony of any individual or negjeck spousal abuse, any crifyid
agblhst:children'; child pompgraphy, rape, .sexual assault,, or homicide,
but not including.other physibal assault or battery;

■311,2. A viojent or-sexually-related crime against a child or an adult whichshovvb thdt the person might be reasonabiy expected to pose a threat
to any individual;

3;1.3. A felpny for physical assault, battery, or a dnJQ-feiate*^
.that felony conviction was committed within the past five (5) years In
ackibrdance. with'^ .USC 671 (a)(20j(A]j(ii).

'3 2 The Contractor-shall provide the'required dbcumentatipn to the pepat^ent
prior to any :such Contractor employee cbrnmencing Wortc. subject to
Departm ent approval.

FIT/NHNH Exhibit A Cohlr^of Inilials
_  nptn3-1&-2019
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Now Hampshire bepfartment of Health and Human Serylcw
Rewvery Housing for Individuals wltti Opipid Use Plsorder.

Exhibit'A

4. State bpjoid Response (SOR) Grant Standards
4.1. the Contractor shall provide the Department wth tirhelines and

implementation plans assbdate^d with SOR funded activitjes to erisure services
.are.in place witHin thirty (30) days of the contract effective date.:
4.i .1. if the Cbntractpr Is unable to offer services within the required

limeframerthe &ntrador shall submrt ah updated ifpplem
plan to ,the Department for appfoval to outline anticipated service start
dates.

4.1.2. The Departmentiesefves the right to terminate ̂ e contract and
liquidate unspent funds If services are not In plac^: within ninety (90)
:days.6f;thec6ntra,d effective

4 2. The Cqntractor shall ensure that clients reiving financial aid for recovery
hdusing utilizing SOR funds shall only be In a fecb'very hQusing facility that is
aligned^ with the'National Alliance for Recovery Reddences standahts and.
registered Of New HarhpShire. Bureau of Drug .apd Alcohol
Seryices.in accprdance with current NH Admihistfative Rules.

4.3:. The Contractor shall assist clients with enrolling in public or private/health
Insurance, if the dierit is determined eligible for such coverage.

4.4. The.Cdritfactor 'Shair accept clients for MAT and facilitate access to MAT on-
site or through refohal for .all clIeTils.-supported vVith SOR Grant funds, as
.dinicaliy appropriate;

4.5. The,;GdnU"actor'Shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White Hl.V/AIDs prpgram for
idiertts identified es at HIV/AIDS.

4.6. The Cohtractor shall ensure that all clierits are regularly screen^ for tobacco
use, treatment needs arid referral to the QuitLine as part of treatmentplanning.

FIT/NHNH 'EihibltA. Cbntr^oHniliali
3  nw3-'15-2019RFA-2019-BOAS-02-REGOy-02,- PageeofS: ozxe—
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Recover Housing for Iridlvjduals With Opipid Use.Ofeordor

ExhlbllA-i

NARR

Standard Tor Recovery Residences

Version 1.0

September 2011

RFA-20t9^0AS^:R£COV
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New Hsmpthlre DepsftiMnt of He»im and Human,S«ry|ct«
>RaMvery Houaing for bidlyldusis with'Optold Um Otsorder

Eihiblt A-1.

nProVFRY RESmENCE LEVELS OF SUPPORT

x? LEVEL 1 LEVEL 11 LEVEL U! ILEVEL IV

TOARR Peer*Run Mc^tprad Supe^ryised .S^ce Provider

i

i  * 4

i

OemocraUcaHy run

Warwal or PS P
fejJdeni-

■  . ' '■' ..''f

• .w ^

• ''Orgaii^tiOTt^ hiararchy'
•Adrnlnls^.li^o^^rsigW Ipr
s^tais prdvldarti ""
Poth^ and Pro<^^».

• Ueanslng varies Irom state
Ip state

Overseen organtzational
hiersrchy

Qinical. and .admbilslratiye
supervision
F^y and prcK^ures
Licensing: varies from slate
(6 stale

1 f;^RyiCEsi

Drug Scrieenli^

House meeiinigs

helpmadln^

• House rules provide
' structural

Peer run group's
Drug Scraping

• House meoUngs

• Life sun'developcTient
mphasis;

Clinical'Seryices utflbod lr>
outside,nmmuniiy

■ Sen^'hours provided In
hduM^

Clii^l servii^ and
pr^amming'are provided
in house

Life sklQ de'volopment

• Involvemenrin seH help.
end/or treairrimt servt^'

. Gbierany tl^lc fa'mily;
-rasWetices "

• Priinariiy single lamOy
te^enMS
Possibly eparyiwnts.or
6^r,^|iir»g ly^;

'•^.VarttsV-afl^Wwdfr
mSdontlaisctiiri^'*

?

M types -:o^ a'step
down pfiase wilhin care-
continuufn o( a titsaim^
ce^er

May be-a moreihstituiioral
In wWdnment-

No pek) ppdilprtt. within i}>e
' re^ehca

an o^rs^no
.'C^oir

t oortibni.  ;,u

t

• FacHiiy manager,'

'Cerdfted stoff dr'Mse-
-miinagers

' 0 ' •
Crebentjaiodsiaff!'
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 2051F799^CA9-4205-A07C-62EA8C8B2680

National Assodatioh of Recovery Residences

Member Standa^ds^

i; Orgariizadonal/Admihisti^tive'Standar^^^^^^ Level'l :  Levol ll Levellll' Level IV

11.1. Recovery ReskJences are l^al busfness entldeCas
evidenced by bu^nessjiceri^s or ihwrppralipn
documents:.

•Strofigly^
Recorrimend

Strongly
Recommend

X X.

"1.2. Recovery Residences have'iafvimtten missip^^ vision
statement;

X X X X

1.3. Rewvery Resldences tavera written code of eihice; X, X X .X

1.4..Rec6vj^ RosidenMS prope_^ j^ers/operaWrs cany
general iiabiiity'insuren^j

Strongly
Recommend

Strongly
Recommend

X X

i.S. Reco'vefy Residences state and, federal
f^uiremwts.

ff required, documents such as licenses and certificates
Of'obcupan^.are visiblefor public.view;

X X X, X

lie; .Recovery Resldences-cleady W the responsible
.persori{s) In charge of the Recovery Re^dehce. to all
■residents;

■X- X X X

1.7- Recovery Residences;cleariy state.the/mlnirhufn-
'quallfwMtipnsi duties,
'responsible pers6h(sj in .a written job description,and/or
■qontr^

n/a ri/a X X

• 1.6;Reooyery Residences-provlde drug and alcohol free-
environments;

X X X X

1.9. Recovery Residences collect-and report ac^
• process .and outcome .date for conlihuous quajity
■improvement;

Strongly
, Ftecpmrnerid

Strongly
Recommend

X X:

1.10. Recovery, Residences:have.written permission from the
' owner of record to operate-a Reojvefy.Reisid.ehce ori
their property;

X . X X X.

'ZXRscarManagdment Standards
.  • '"k." • , 1 • "

Uejyel 1 "Lovpl M ,Level in .Leyeify^

2;1. Recovery Residehces mainlain .an accounting system
that fully documents all,reSid^t finahciai'bansacUo^^^
such as fees, payments arid deposits;

X X X X

i; , ' .f.
<3j Operation Standards, Level 1- Level II

1  '
Level lir LeyeriV.

■3.1. Recovery Re^dences post emergency procedurps afid
staff.phorie number In conspicuous locations;

rVa n/a X X

3:Z Recovery Residencespp^ numbers,
pretbcolsiarid eS^,cuaiipri map^ X ^x. n/a n/a

)v/v2Qi>abASrW^ •ExhiWlA-l
Pafllo;3of6
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 2051F799-8CA9^205^07C-62EA8C8B2680

National Assbdation of Recovery Residences

Member Standards

4^tRbcpvoiy-'5up^ ■ Cevel'l Level II LeVbt III 'Level ly

•4.1. RecpviBry Riesidences maintain a:staffir»g plan;- If-AppjicaBie if Applicable ̂ X X

•:4.2. Recoveiy. Residences,use.an applicant weening
pfocesis that helps maintain a safe ahd:supporliye.
efwlranment for a specific group of perMhs in recovey;

X X X X,

;4.i.-Recovery Residen^stadhere W
confideritiatity laws:

X X X x

4:4. Recovery Residences>eep ̂ identVeSirds s"^re with
accessilmiteci to,autiipH2ed siaOorily;

X X X. X

• 4.5. Recov^ Resideir^s haye'e'grievance.pd
procedure.fpr reHdents;: X X X X

4;6: Recovery Resjd^ws create-a.Mfe,:^
recowry sup^rtjye en^^ vyritten and
enforced rpsidehis' iights:'and requirements:"

X. X ■X.' X

4.7. Recoyefy Resldehws lia^ an oHentation process that
clearty wmmunicates resident^ rijghls'end r^uirements
prior lo'them signing ariy agr;eemehts;;C»ll8ds
demographic and jBmergencywntiact Information^
proyldds.riew.residents with written Ihsbiiclio^ns bp
'emergency,pirbcebures end staff contact,information:

-X X X X

4.8. Recovery Residences foster^ mylually,suppo"rtive';aiid
recoveryTOriented relatJonshipS'between residents and/or
'staiff through peer-based IrrteracUons. house meethgs.
ccimmuni.ty gaiherirtgsy ̂  events, and/or other

:s6cial activities;

X X X X

4;9. Recovery Residerices-foster recovery-supportlvo.
alcbhbt arid drug-free environments through written"and
'enfbr^d policies arid prpc^ures that:address: residents
who fetum to alcbhbl and/or drog use: hazardoys item
.searches;-clrug:screenif\g and or,toxicology protocols;
and prescription and non-prescription mbdicalioris usage

: and storage;

X X X X

!4.i6.'Recovery Reslderices encourage ea.ch rosident to
develop, arid par^clpatejn iHeIr own f^rsdhallzed
recovery plan;

X X X X

,^4.-11". Recovery Residences inforiri residents oh the wide
rangeofibcai^tteatme andreOTvery suppprt s^^
avallabie-.tb them Vriclydihjg:^ 12(steb;or om'er m'uiual '
support groups, recover cornmuriity ceiilere. reco^
mlhisljies. rero^/efy^fbcuwd ielsure activities and
recovery edvc^cy pppb'rttjriitles]

X X X X

RFA-2019-BDAS^24lECOV ExNWt.A-l
P^e 4.pf &.

Cbntroctor'initial
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 2051F799-8CA9-4205-A07C-62eA8C8B2680

National Association of Recovery Residences

Member Standards

,'4;. Recove^Suppprt'^S't^ ilevel J Level II liewl lll , Loybuy''

4;12; Recovery, Rwidehces:pw^ recq^CV
support and related se'ryiiMs:

X X X X:

4.13. Recovery Resldenciss.'eniMurage residents to attend
mutu^lyiupportive, Mlf help^grpups and/or.quteide
profession^) i^h^ces;

X X X 'X

,4.14. Recdvery ResidencesfproVlde'acce^
structure peer-iased sef^ces'such'as'didactic
presentatiohs;

.ni/a n/a X X

4.15. Recovery Re^ences provide ,acq^ party
diiiical serviws in;accprdance to State Jaws;

. rVa . n/a X X

4.16.-Re6overy Reddences.pffer life ̂ lls deifeibp^ent
wr^ces;

nVa n/a X X

4.'i 7.,FUcbvefy .Residences bffer'cllni^^^^ sefvices In
^ordanMto Stalelaws;

rVa n/a n/a X

5. Rrbpe^ys^n^srds;: (lievet,! 'Level ti. 1 Level III. Lbvel'lVi

5 1. Recove'ry Residences abide by all local building and fire
Safety code's:

X X X X

5.2. Recovery ResWences pro\^de each residents with food
and personaTitern storage;'

X X; .X X

Recovery Reddencbs place.fuhct^ fire
-extinguishes Ih.plaihsibbt arKJ/pr'ih cl^rly marked
Ibca^tibhs;

X X .X X

!5.4. Recdveiy Re,sidences;Haye"func^^^
'InSlBjlbd: If iHeTeSide'n^^^^
funciibning carbon monbxlde'detedlpi^^a^^

X X X X

-5:6. Recovery Residences pro^nde a hdn smoldn^
livirig envlronrnenl:

X X X :x-

5:6;' Recovery Residences;rtaye axbmmuriUy robmlarge
:enougti td bccbmrnodale house meeiir^S and sleeping
rooms that^adhere to-loMl^nd slate square footage

, requiremente;:

X X X X

■ 5:7. Recbye^. Residences,have one sinkr'loilel and shower
per six residents qr adhere^^ local and state ■
re'quiremerits;

'X X X X

S.B. Reboyeiy ReSidenoes have laundry se^ that are
accessible tp.all rodents;

X X X X

RFA-201 ̂B0AS^2-RE.C0y
Paoe,5'of'8'

Contfa^ Inltote jlM
DatQ>tg«w
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National Associatiori of Recovery Residences

Member Standards

5; -Property; lievei 1 ■! Uevet'li Level III LeWi IV'

5.9. -Recov^ Residences mainbin the ihi^ and exterior
of tfie prop'ei^ in.'a fy hctional. rafe and cb manor thai
■b,8prn|»Ubie\withVtHe;,neighb6^^

X X X X

,5.i6. Recpwry ResidenceVhave.mMti^^^^
accpmmodab

X X X X

5.'l V R^*^^ Residences ha^ applian'c^^^
\wrWlng orde.r and fumilure'thatis Ingpodconditipri; X X X X

5,i2=:R^yery Resid^cM address rpuUne: and emergency
repaire In ,a;ti'mely fashiph; X X X X

:;6: Gobd Nelghb'or Standards;: '  lieyel 1 Leyelil' Lcvpi ?ii Level iV^

6.1. Recovery Residences proV^© nelght^«;wib.UNe
re^dnsible,perepn{s)'cdnb Irrfdrrnalion upon requesl.
the'resppnstole pereQn(s) re^^
icbmplsirits.r.even if it Is not possible to revive be issue;

X ■x X X

6.2;;Re'cdyery Residences .have mjes riegarding fipise,
smoking, lolterihgand parking'thsiareresponsive to"
ne^htor'sr'e^onabie complaints;

SVohgly
Recdmmervd

Strongly
Re^rhmend X X

els. fjecoyery Rwldences have;and eriforce.parking
courtesy,rules.where street parking iS'^rce; X ■X; X X

■ RF/V2019-BDAS^2-ReCOV
iPago 6 of 9

Cbniractbr NUals
Da\a7T5:2019
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Hiimah Services
I?ecove^ Hpuslng forIndividuals with Oplbid Use Disorder

Exhibit 8

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

T),. The State shall, .pay the " Goritractpr an amount not to excebd the' Form" p,-37, Bloqk-1.8, Price
"  Limitation for the^.r^ices-proyid^ by the iContractor pursuant to Exhibit A,. Scope of Services.

1/1. - This Agreement Is'fundedwilh funds from the.Substance M and Meinial Health Services,
Admihis^ralidnVS'tate Opi^^ Response Grant, dFDA #93.788, FAIN TI081685,,

1/2. The Cohtractpf agrees to; provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service In compllanlce
wit^ fu'ndir^ requirements.. FallOre tp^meeLthe. sc^^ may jeopardize^the'funded
Gontractoi^s currehLaHd/o.r futufe/fiihdlng.

2) Payrrient for said seryices'shall be made monthly as foll6\^:

2.1. ^aymeni. shall be;-on ;a :cost reimbureemeht basis, for actual expenditures'incurred .in, the
filfillfnent of this Agreement,rend shall be:ln accbrdahce 'with the apprpyeb line item.

2;2. The Gontraclor will submit an Invojce In a form-satisfactpry to the ;State: .l?y the ■ twentieth (20*^)
Wprkiiig/diay ofveach; month,, which identifies and ,reque.sis rejmbu(^ment;fpr.,au^^^
expenses'iticuiT^ in the prior month. The invoice, ni'ust. be.ppmpleted, signed, dated and
irelurneb • tO{TheT^ to iriitiate, payment The Gdhtiractdr agrees to. keep
rdcbfds ofThei.r a^iylties related to Department programs and services..

'2.3' The State/shell 'rnaKe . p^yrnerit: t6)1tie 'Cbntractor within thirty ;(30') :^ays::of receipt of/each ■
invoice, spbseque^.to^^ of the submitted invoice, and iTsufficienl funds are'available;
Jhe/Gphlrdrto^ detailed records of their actMileirelated to..DHHS-funded programs
and s'ervic^sv

2:4. The fiharinyoice shalibe due .to the State no later than forty'(40) .days after the contract Forrri
P-37.B,lpck/1.7.@^

;2.5, In lieu df-hard 6bples,.;all invoices may "be assigned an electronic signature arid .emailed to
Melissa"/Girrird@dhHs:rih.Qdv. or Invbices may be mailed to:

Meiissa Girard,.,iSiOR Finance Manager
Depadmeril bf.Health and Human Services
BDAS/ZS'tate Opipid Response
l29.,Pieasarit-Street;3"' Floor
iCbricord^NH 03301

i2.§. : Payrtierits' may be:withhe!d pending receipt, of required reports or dbcurrieritatibn as Identified
:iri Exhibit ;A',"'Scope;p^^^^ and in this Exhibit B.

';3) Notwithstandinlg/pa -18 of-lhe General Provisions. P-37,.changes. limited to adjusting, amounts;
^t^eh'^budge^^^ line "rtems', .rblated item's, ameridments; of' related 'budget exhibits. viflthin the prtcp-
iimitatibrt, arid to'/adjusting. ehcumbrarices, betNyeeri .StatP ;Fisca| Years, may t^e madp by written

i agreemeril.sbf botJT parties and may be. rtiade without bbtainihg approval of the Governor arid
Executive Council.,

itials'Cfe|?.FIT/NHNH. Ific; E^ibilB. .Conlre.ctor Initials
"3-15^2019

' RFP-2blfr8bAiS^2^EC6v- Psge 1 of 1 Date ^
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New'Hamp«hlre Department of HMlth and Human Services
Exhibit C'

SPFriAL PRQVISIQNS

Contractors Obligations: the Conbactor covenants and agrees that alf funds,received byjlhe'Contractor
under. the'Contract shall be used orily.as payment to the Contractor for ser^^ces.provic^ tp eligible
Individuals arid. In the furtherance of aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby cbwnahts and
agrees as.foilows:

'1.. ;CompI»aince with Fpdei-ai anS St^e Lavrs: |f the Cphtractor is pertriltted to detefinihe the .eligibility
otihdividuais suchelfglbiiity^deterrh^ tie madein ac^ndance'with applicablefederal;arid
statajawsrr^ulations.lbfders. guid^^ policies and procedures,

2.' Time and Manner of C^torminatlon: Eligibility determinations ̂ 11 be made on forms provided by
the.'Oepartrhaht fdr'U^^^^^ be made and remade at such times as are 'pre^ibed by
Ih'e.Depar^eh^^

f3. Documentation:. In addition.tp;the determ)r\atibn forms required by Ihe pepartment; the Contractor
^shall.maint^n a data fife on each recipient of services hereuhder, vwhich'file shall include all
information neces^ry to support ah eligibility determination and "such, other information: as the
Depaitment requests. The,Contractor shall fumlsh the Department with all fprms and'documentation
regarding eijgibili^-determirraiions that the Depaidnent may request or require.

-4. Folr.Hearings: The Contractor understands that all.applicants for.sefyiws hereunder. as well as
Individuals,dedar^ ineligible have:a right to a fair hearing regarding lhat determihatiori. The
:Cdhtractof her:eby cover^nts and agrees that all applicants for services he permitted to fill put
an .application fo'rm arid that MCh appllcanl or re^pplicant shall be Informed of hls^er right to afalr
hearing in accordahce-wilh bepaiiment regulations.

r5. Gratuities or" Kickbadrs: .The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accppt or
make a payment, gratuily,or pffer;of ernploymenl pn behalf bf pie Contractor. any Sub^.bhtrac.lor or
;the State Ih'prdertblrifluence'the perifpmianceof the Sa>pe pfWork;de)ailed In ̂
•Cdfi'tract. Tlw'State may're end any subcontract or sub-pgrbe'ment if it is
detenmmed Oiat payments; !gfaUj or offers of empJoyment bfany kind were'bffered or received by

• any.bffidals, officers,'employees bf agehts of.the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

'6^ Rbtroactlve Payments: Notwi'thstanding anything to the contrary contained In lh0,eontrac,l or in any
other document, coritr8.ct or^understandiog, It is expressly understood and agreed by,th"e-parties|
hereto, that no payments v.^11 be made hereunder to, reimburse, the'Cbntrector for costs Incurred fbr
iany purpose'pr fbf any services provided to any individual prior to the'EffecUve Date of.ttie Coritract'
:ahd no paym'ente shall be mede;!for expenses Incurred by the Gbhtractbr for any:services "proyldecJ;
•pfipflo the date on.which'lhe individual "applies for services of;,(excepl.as,6ttiefWlse provided by:lhe-
federal regulations) piior too determlhallori that the individual is eligible for su<^ seri/ices.

'7. CondlOons pf ,Purchase: NotwitHsteriding anything to Uio contrary cpnlaihed in the Contract,riolhlng
herein.contained'shal,I be deemed ib obligatb or require th'e Department to purchase services
hereunder at a fate.y^ich reimburses the'Cphtractbr In excess of pie C.bntractora costs; at a rate
•v^i^'exbe.eds the amounts reasortable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate whi^ exbrod^ by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third pariy.^
furiders for such'. If at an/lime'during the term bf-this Contract or after receipt of.the Final
;Ej^nditure'Repor1 hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has.useb
■pa^erits hereundbr.'-to reimburse itemsof expense otiier lhan,such costs, or has received payment
In expess of such costs, or In excess of-such rates charged by the Contioctor to Ineligible ihdividuais

'or,Other thlrdpartyfu the.bbp.Sftment may'electto:

Renegptlate'the rates for payment hereunder, In which event new rates shall be established:
D^uct frpm any future" payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

4#.

7.1.
7.2.

excess of costs;
ExMbil C -.Spodai Provlslona Contractor Initials.

,^3-^5-2019
..ovtinB; Pflsjolofs
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Naw Hampshlre Depai^Ofrt of.Hearth and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. bciTiand repayment of the.excess.payment by the:Contractor in which;eyent failure to make
• such repayment shall constitute,an Event o'f Default hereunder. When the Cohtractor is
j;«rmit;^ed;tb dete^^ Individuals for services. the 'Contractor agrees.to
.■;reimbume;the Departmentfor all funds paid.by the Department to the Contraclonfor services
provided,.to,an^ Departrhent to be Ineligible for such servlcesat

"any time dunrig the pe'ripd of retention of records established, herein.

f^ECOFipS; MAlNTENANGE; FtETEINfTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND .CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.. Majntenance^of Records: In to the'eligibility re<:»fds specl^^ the'Contractor
:c6venants a'nS.ag^^ maintain ̂ e fpllowirig rewrdsdurihglhel^Cpntra^
.8:1, Fis^l F^^rds: books, recp'rds,;.documents and.p^ar dala':eyid arid reflecting ail costs -

• and d^er exprenseslncurred by^e.Contractor In the perfoririance.ipf the Cpritra^, .arid all
vincorne rpceiy^ pr cojlected-^ the .Contract Peri^, Mid recbnds.tp be
maintained In,accbi^ance.iA^ accounting,procedures and practices vitiich su arid

, prbpeHy reflect all .sp^^ costs and e>^n^s.. and, v^lcH are .'acceptable^ and
to tricludei'wllhout iirriitatlon, all ledgers; books, re'cordsv and crrigiriai evidence,of costs

•purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inyeritpries, valuations.of
, In-kind .contributions,, labor tlrrie cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Departriient.

8.2. ■ Statistiwj f^.ecordsr/Slatisbcal. enrollment, attendance. or visit records for each redplent of
; ,sefyibes .d.uiing^e,Cpritmd "yvhlch records sfwH Include.all records of application and
•eligibility (iricluding^al! fprniS required to detehnine eligibiljty for each;such recipient), records,
regarding the provisipn of senrioes arid all invoices.submjtted to the Department to obtain

: payment for such services.
8.3.' • MediwI f^ecorts:-Wherat apprppriate and as prescribed by (he Department regulailbns, the

'Cbntraclorshall retain medical records on each patlenlt/recipienl of services.

.9. ^dl.t:"C6(itrad^^ submit an annual audit to the pepatlnient.ynthln.M days after (he close ofthe
agency (i^I .year. It is recpmmbri'd^ report be, prepari^ in accordance with the proyislpn of •
Office pf Managemerit and Budget Circular A-^133; rAudltSrOf.States; Local GoVefhntents. bnd Non
Proftt.brganlMOpns" arid the pravrisioris of Standards for Audit of Govemniental brgariizailbns,
Pr6gramsi^;^tiwiie$ and Funciions.-'issued by.the US'General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
Ihey pei1airi;.to finarrcialcorriplianceaudits.-

9,i; Auditerid.RewewVC^^ term of this'Gontract and the.penod for retentiori hereunder, the
fbepartrnenl, the. Onited Stales Department of Healih^.and Human Services..and any of their
{designated representatives sKail have access to all repbrls and records maintained pursuantto
the ;^nlracLfpr_pulppses.df audit, examination, excerpls^and tra^

9.2: .Audit jJabiniies; In addition lo.and r>ot iri any way in lirriitalipn.of obligaljons of the Contract,It Is
yuridersip^ and agre^ by.the Gpntractor that the CpntractoDshall be held liable f6r any;state
■;pr.federal audit exceptions ̂ sbali, return to;the Department, all payments rtiade:under the
-Goritracito which ekcepiiori has been taken or which have been disallowed t>ecau.se bf such an
texcepliori.

ib. Cbnfidenrtalt^yof Records; All Irifonnalion, reporte.'arid records.rnairitairied hereunder.bf cpllecled.
In cpnnection.wito the performance;of.the:services.'and the Gbnlr.act bhall be confidenUarand shallnot
be disclpsed.by.the Contractor, provided however, tfiat pursuant to state laws and the regulalibris of
the pepartfrierit.regarding the.use,and disclosure of such |nformatlon.-disclosure may be made to'
publiCybfficialsVequIn^ Infortnatton in conriecliori with their;offic|al duties and "forpurppses
dlrectty.cbrin'ected lo.the.adrtiinisbation.of the servip^^^^ the G.bnlf.act: and'provided further, that
toe use or.dlsclqsure'by anypartypf-ariy infonrriatipn cbncernihg a recipient foranyipurpo^ hot
direptly.connecjed wih toe of ihepepartmentprtoe^ntractoPsresporislbllitiee
respOTl tp. 'pu'r^«^^ services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent oT the recipient, his
attorney; orguardian. lu

ExhfWt C-Spsciat Provtetefis ContrBCtorlnitiats

Page2QJ..5
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New HampshirejOepartment of Health and Human Services
ExhIbltC

Notwilhstandlng'anything to Iheconlrary contained herejnthe covenants'arid Mndilions^contained in
the Paragraph shail survive.the termlnation of the Contract for any reason whats'oever.

11.-.Reporte: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following repoHs at the following
times If request^ by the Department
•11.1. Ihterim Financial Reports: Wntten interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all cbste.ahd non-allov^bie expenses Incuri-ed by the Contractor to the date.of'the report and
^ntairiih^^^^^ other Inforrnatibn as shall be.deemed satisfactory by the,Department to
juistify tbeWe of paj^e'nt her^hdb^^ :Such Rnancial Repbr^ shall be submit^,on the form
designated by the Pepai^'ent;of deemed satisfactory by the Department.

1T.2. nhal Rejwrt A firiat^ be'submitted^wilhih thirty (30) dayis.after the end of Ihe.term
of Ms Contract. The FtharR^^ shall be In rtfoM'satisfwlory tpthe Department and shall
contain a sufnih'ary s^Mr|eiit dt progress toward goals arid .ot^ecMes stated In the Propd^l
anrtothw InfbrmaUgri fequji^ by IheOepartrhent!

12. Compjetlon of-Services: Drsallowance of Costs: Upx>n the purchase by the Department of the
maidrnum number of .units proykted for in the Contract and upgn payment of the'price liniitation
hereuhdert the Coritract and all the bbllgations of the partles'hereunder (except such obligations as,
by terms of lhe'Cbntracl^are to.be performed after,the end of the lerrh df-this Contract and/or
survive,the termination of the.,Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review .ofthe
Flhar Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
co$ts_hereunder.the Department.shall retain the right.el Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expense as.ere disallowed or to recover such sums ftom the Contractor;

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases; research repoils arid olher.materiais prepared
during or i^iilting from the performance of the services of the Contract"shall include Ihefollowlng
staterhent:
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with thei^ate

bf.Nevv. Harnpshire, Department of Health and.Hurnari iOrvlces, with funds, provide,d.in pari
by .the\Stiiie\pf New Hampshire and/or such other fuiiding sources as yyereiavaliable or
required, e.g.,'^V.Uni(ed,S^ Departne'nt^of Healtharid Human,Services.

14. Prior i^proval and 'Copyright Ovvnershlp: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or <
purchased.under the contract shall have prior approval DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. the DHHS vrill retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, Including, but not llmlted-to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters,'prreports..Contr8cM' shall not reproduce any materials produced.under the con tract s^thout
prior wriiien approval from DHHS".

15. .Operation of Facilities: Comptiance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Cohtractqr shall.comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
stale; county and municipal 8uth'<mties and with any direction of any Pubiic.pfficer or officers
pursuant to laws ̂ jch shall impose an order or duty upon the.contractor with respect to the
d^raUdrt;bf the faciiily or provision of the services .at such facility, if atiy govemrnental license or
permit shall be requlred (or the opera^^^^ of;ihe said-facility of the performance of the said.sefvices,
the Cqfcctpr wiil prwure'^id license or permit, and will.al.all times comply wi^'.lhe.terms.and
conditions of each such,licenseqf^/nilt. In corinectjon with the foregoing reqult^menls/lhe
Contf.acllx hereby covenants and'agrees that/durlng the term of this-Contract the facilities shall
comply,vw]h all njles,,orders..regulations. and requirements of the,State Office'^pf the Fire Marshal and
the local fife protection agency; and shall be in conformance.with local building and s^ihg codes, by
laws arid reflations.

16. Eguat Employrnqnt Opportunity Plan (EEpP): Thie Contractor wfll provide,an Equal Ernployrnenl
Op'pbrtuhlty Ptart(EE6p) to the-jp for Civil Rlghb..pffice of Justice Programs (OCR),'"if it has
recent a single award of $500,660 of more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has^ or

Csriibil C - Spixlpl Provisions Conlrsctor Initials.
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more employees, il will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Edification Form to the
■CKiR, certifyl^ lhat fts'EEOR Is on file. For recipienls.recelving less than $25,600. or public grantees'
wtf> fey«r-,ih^n^ employees.-.regardless of the amount.of the award. Ihe redplent will provide an
EEOP .Gerti.fi^tion Form to.the.OCR certfying it is not required to submll or maintain an.EEOP. Non-
■fimfit or^anlj^lons.-Indian Tribes.-ar^ and.edu<»tional Institutions .are exempt from the
,EEOP r^Criremeht, but ,are^required ,lo;submit a certification form to the^OCR to .claim the exemption.
EEpRErtifi^fion Foims'are avaiiaW htip-7/www.ojp.usd^about/ocr/pdfs/certpdf.

17.sLlmltod English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executiye 'Crder 13166. Improving Access; to
Limit^ Ertglfsh Proficiency, arid resulting agency guidance, natibnalorigin

:diSCTmlriation" includes:disc^minaU^^ the bails of lirhlted English proficiency (LEP)'. To.ehsufe
oompUance;v^th the Ornnibus CrimeEnM and 'Efe' Sb^M of -l OeS/ahd Title VI of the.CWil
f^ghts].^ reasonable sjeps "to artsure that LEP persbris ha^re
meaningful ac^as.to. its'pf;bgra^m^^^

18. Pliot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstleblower Protections: The
following shall appjy to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acqulslilon Threshbld'as defined In48
GFR 2.101 (currendy. $156;d06)

iCb^RACTOR ENffSLOYEE WER RlGKTS AND REOU'iREMENT TO INFORM EMPUOYEES OF
Whistleblower Rights {SEP 2013)

(a) This rontract arid, employes wrKlng on this contra^ wilibe subject to the WistJeblo'wer rights
.and remedi^ In the pilol program.dn Conlreclpr employee.whlstleblower protcfciions established at
Avy.S.C. 4712 by.sectidn 828:of the National Defense Authonzatibn Act for Rscal Year20i3 (Pub L
112-239) and FAR .3;908.

(b).The.j,C6htra<rtor shall Inform j^employees In writing, in the,predpnilnant language.of the vyorkforce.
pf'efnployee v^jstieblpw^ under .4iU.S.C. 47i2.a's descdbed In secdon
8.3)08 of the'Federal i^uisi^^

(c) 11w Con^ctor shall Ihsert the substance of this clause. Including this.paragraph (c). In ail
^ubcbntracts.over tKe.simplified acquisition threshotd. i

19. Subcontractor: DHHS rec^hlzes;ihat the Contractor rhay ph<w^-lo. use subcontractors with
9'^83l6F.65^rtise to.pertbnri certain care services,or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but toeljbntrac^^^ shail retaln ihe responslbiuiyand accountabiiuy for toe funcd^^ Prior to
subrontractingi the,.Cpn^aclor shall es^lua the sul>contracto.r.'s ability to perfomi the delegated
toric8on(s). thisls ac^^^ a wriUen.agreement that spedfies:^^^^^^ arid reporthg
resjronsiblti.Uw ofto prdvldeVfor revoidrig thetoelegatipn'pf Irnposlhg wnd^^toe su^k^ tractor's pbYformani^ !ienbt .'adequate., S'ubconiractors a^ subjei^ to. the sarhe .contractual
cphallibris aslthe Contractor arid the Wntoaclor is responsible to ensure subconiractbr compliance,
with those conditions..

• .* .• c

When toe Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Con^actor shall do the following:

19.1.' Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activiiies, before delegaiing
the function " . . .

19.2.-. Haye:a;>^tten agreement ywth toe subcontractor lhat speclfies activities ahdreporling
responsibiiities-ahd.how sanctions/revocation will be rrianaged if jhe subctoritractor's
performance is not adequate

19'3.. Monitor toe subcontractor's performance on.an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Spodal Providotis 'Contractoi'trntisls
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A9A. Provide to pHHS'an'annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities. and;When the subcontractor's peiforTfiance.will be:reviewed

1915.-' DHHS shall,?at its discretion; review and approve-all subcontracts.

if.the'Gontractor identines deflciertcles or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor, shall
take corrective,action.

^.^Coritra^ Definftiphs:'

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean'those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be.altbyvable and reimttursaWe cn.accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in:acc6^ance With' state and federal laws,^ regulations..rules and o^ers.

20.2.. pEPARTMEffT: NH C^p.artmehl.pf Health and Human Services..

2b;l: PROPCjSAL Jfapplic^le, shall mean the doc.umenl submitted by the."Contractor on,a
form ,pr fdrms requir^ by^the.bepartrnenl and containing a descriptjbn of lhe,.i5e|vices:and/pr
gobdsjo;bd'pro^ed.by the Cpntfactor In 8c^ the
C.pritract and setting fprtb 'the'to^^^^ sources Of reveriu.ejfbroach service" to t»
undertha^ntract:

20.4.- UNIT:!Foneach service that the Contractor is to provide t0'eligibl6'indiv4duals hereunder. shall
rnean;th'at peri^ 6f tifne:or that specifiod.aclivlty determined by the department and spebified
In Exhibit B of, the Contract

20.5., FEDEF^l^TAJE;LAW: Wherever federal pr slate jaws, reguiatipns, rules, o.rders, and
ppilcies.fetc.-are.'refeiT^^to In the Cohlraci, the.sald reforefTic« shall be'deenied to mean
ail such'layys.- regulationis.^'e^ they. m"ay be, amended or revised.from time to time".

20,6, SUPPl^tlNG'pTHEp FEDERAL.FUNDS; Funds proWded'to the.Contractor under this
Contract vvril) not supplaniany existing federal funds available fpr these services.

ExhltMl'C - Spedol Provisions Cohtredw IruUolsliliols
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

i.. Subparagraph 4 of the Genera) Provisions of (his contract, Gondltional Nature.of Agreement, is
replaced as'foliows:

4: GpNOmbN^ NATURE OF AGREEfiflENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
'hereunder, indudirig without iimitation. the continuance of payments.. irS whole or in pail
uhder.this Agreement .are-.contingent upon continu^ appfppriaUon or availability .of funds,
^including any subsequent .changes' to the-apprpp^ation or. availability of funds aifected by
fpny state or federal je^ executive .action that reduces,--eliminates, ̂pr otherwse,
rnMifies-.the..'apprdpri^ or avaiiabiiity of furidihg for this Agreement end the S^pe. of
i.Sennces p^yid^. in Exhibit A,.Scdpe pf SenACjM; in wtibie orin part. In"ho eyent' shali the'
S^ie.'te liable for any payments hereunder In'excess of apprppnat^ pr.availabieTun In
the'event'Of a redurtpn'jeTOihatldh d^m^c^ appropriated or'ayaiiable funds,-the

• Slate ehail haW lhe i^ht tbl^ ufitirsuch funds bdi»me'.ayailaW if evdr. The
.Siile .ihalrhave the' right to, reduce, .terrhinate er modify services; under this Agre'errieht
imm^iately uppn'gfving'th.e"Contractor nptice of such reduction, termiha^pn pi; modification.
The^ State ̂ .aif not be required to transfer funds frorh any b^er source or aaouhl into the

:;Accpuht(s)'ldenUfied-ih-block '1.6 of the General. Proylsiohs, Account Number, or any other
: account, (n the event funds'are reduced or una>^iiable.'

2. Sut^aragraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, Is amended by.adding the
fofiowihglahguage:

10.1 The. Stale may terminate the Agreement at any lime for any reason, at the sple discretjon of
the State; 30 da^ aftergiylng the Contractor vwitt^ npiice-that the State;ie exercising its;
•opiion td,terminate tfie Agreeme

10'.2 In the event of early termihatlon. the Contractor.^^shatii within'15 .days of notice of eariy
;.lerminatioh. deveipp arid' 'submit to tfiie State a Transition Plan for''^sefvl.ces under the,
=Agfeement'. includihg but not limited to, idehlifyihg the :pre'sent":and future needs or''cliehts
r^iyi.hg services..under the Agreement and .esta.bilsheslb proce^ to meet those needs.

10.3 The.':Cphtractpr i^ail fuiiy cooperate with Uie'State'-and shall promptly provide detail^
.ihfo.rrn'atioh. to isupport the transition Plan Including,' but not .limited.to, any Info'rTTiatioh or
data/eguested by.the. Sjale related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
:and 'sHali pro>ride'Pngplng re>risipris of the Trahsition Pjan to the Slate-as
requ.es'ted."

10.4 . In theje.vent lhat:seiviceS;Under the Agreement. Iriduding but not lirnlted to ciients-'receiving
i^'fyices under lhe ,Agree Iransi.tioned to haying services delivered by ariPther entity
' indudihg contracted prcvlders the- State, 'the ^htractor 'shall proWde-a process for
:uriinteiTupled delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor .'shall establish a method of notifying clientSnand other affected Individuals
/about, the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in Its
Transliipn plan submitted'ip'the-Stateas.descfibedabove.

3. Renewal:

The; Department reserves the right to extend'Uiis Agrepm'erit for ub tb twb (2) .additibnal .years;
cp.n.ting'ent^yppn'sa^^ delivery df services,- ayailabte funding, 'agreement of the parties and
approval of jhe-Gpyernpr end Execuli^^^

Exhibit C-1 - Revfsions to'Standard Provisions ' Contractor InHiatsials (\^
ciwrtfiyiino P^ldi Data 3-15r2019'
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CERTIFICATION REQARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMEffTS

theiConlractpr.ldeptified In Section rl.3 of the General Provisions agrees to,comply witt) the provisions.of
^tibns 5i51-5166-6f the Dhj^ree Workplace Act of 1W8 (Pub. L.-;l b(>690; Title V. Subtitle D; .41
U.S.C.^TOI.et seq.-), and hj^her.-^rees tq.have.the.Contractor's riepre^ntative..as ideniiiled in Sections
r/li-and 1.12 Of. the.General Pf9vlsipnS;ex^^^ the follbwing Certification:

Alternative i r for giwntees other than indiyiduals

us departmeNt of.health and human services - contractors
US department OF EDUCATiON - CONTRACTORS
us DEPARTMENT, OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This'ce'rlification is required by the regulations irnplernentirrg Sections'5151-5160 ofthe Drug-Free
Workplace of 19M'(PubVL.^ipo-b Subtitie D: 41 aS'.C. 701. et the.January 3.1.
1989 regulations were arnerided and punished as Part ILof the May ̂5.1996'FederarRegister (pages
21681-21691), arid require. certirK^tibn by grbntees (and by Infererice. sub-grantees-and sub-
contractore), prior to award; that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Sectibn-30i7.630(c) of the
r^ulatibn provides that a grantee (and by. inference, sub-grantees and sub-coritr^ctors)' that is a 'State
may el^t.to make pnecertltiMtion fo the Departrnent In each federal fiscal year In lieu of certiikates for
each grant du'rihg^theTedere^fiscaryear covered by .the,certiti^lion. The certificate, set out below Is a .
fhat^ial.'representaUon.pf ̂ ct upO^n v4i>ch reliarrcb is placed v^eh the agency awards.^th'e granL Falser
ceftitica^h or yiolation bf the.^cei^r^^ shail be grounds for. suspension of payments, suspensfpn or
termir^tipn.of.grantb, or gbyemrrient;wlde'suspension or deb'arment. Cpntrectbrs .Using this form should
sendit.tb;

Cprhmissibner,
NH Department of Health andiHiiman Sennces
129.Pleasant Street;
Concord. NH 03301^505

1. Theigrantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide.a dnjg-free workplace by:
1.1:'' Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing.-possession .or use'of a controlled.substance Is prohibited (n-the grantee's
■ workplace and speclfyl'ng the.actions that wit! i>e'taken against employees for violation of such
. prohibctlpn;

i  EStablh^Ing an origbirig driig-frw awareness prograrn to. inform .employees, about
1.2:1, The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;:
1.2;2. Thegraritee'spoiicyof rriaintalhing a drug-ifree workplace;

'■1.;2;3; Any ayallablAdfugc^ rehabilitatipn.aridemployee,assistance prpgrams;and
' 1.2.4; the^riattles that may.be Iniposed upon erriployees for drug abuse viplations

occurring In ,^e workplace:
i'.3'.> ..Making ila requiremeriVth^a^^^^ employee to be engaged In the pbrformance'df the grant be

i^gVen a copy of the'state'ment required by paragraph (a);
1.4. ' Notifying',the..employee;m the istatemerit required by paragraph (a) that as a condition of

empioyrrent under.the grant, the erriployee will
:.Til.1. -'Abide;by the "terms of the statement: and
• T.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her-conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute.;Occurring'in the:workplace;no later.than five calendardays-after such
.-cpnvlcllon:\

i .5. Nptiiying the'agehcy In writitig, within ten calendar days after rieceivirig notice under
•■subparagraph '1;4.2'from'ari otherwise retreivihg actual notice of such convictton.
Ernpioyers 6/ cortvlcted.employees must provide notice, including position'titie, to every grarit
^.oifflcer on whose.grant activity the convicted .employee .was working, unless the Federal agency

iOgZ.'Exntbfl D -:Ceniflc8t)on rvgarding Drug Free : Contractor InHiab.
.  , ' .WorHplacoReqinremonts' ^ q ic-orno

cuwHMtw.jj of7 • Datit O'tO-^UiV.
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
,  , identificallon num^r(s) of each affected grant;

TaWng one of the folto^hg actions, within 30 calendar days of.receiving notice under
^bparagraph'1.4v^ wlh resf^ct to any employee wtio Is so convicted
1.6.1; ■ Takirig appropriate personnel action against suchan employee, up lb and including

terminaybn, wrisisteni.^th the-requlremerits ofthe Rehabiiitatlori Actof'i'973. as
amended;'or

1.6.2. Requiring such ef^ satisfactorijy ih a drug abuse assistance oi"
•rehaljilitation program approved for such pur^ses by a Federal, Statei'dr local health,
■law enforcement, Qr-other a'pijrppriate agenc^^

1:7. Makifig a good fai^ effori tb cphtinue to maintain a drug-free,vvorkplace thr^ough
Implementatioh of paragraphs i.lV V.2, ^3,^l;4.1.5, and i.6. '

2. The grantee may Insert in the^ace provided below the site(s) for the'perforrriance.of wprk.done in
conrlection vrith the specliic gmnl: ' ' '

Place of Performance (street address." city, county.- state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file;thal are not Identifi^ here.

Contractor Name: FIT^NHKIh. Inc.

March 15. 2019.—
.  ,

■  NarhB: Maureen Beauregaro'^Title.., President

ExttB)! 0 - Certifiutlon r^anjtng.Dnjg Fr»e ConlTactof Initials
, V/ortcpla>c«; Raqitlrements
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CERtinCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Jhe Gbn^ctof identin^ In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions.of
S^on 319 of Public L^ io.^12'1, Government wide Guldance.for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C{ 13S2.^ahd,hjrther^rees. to;haye the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1:11
"and l .12 of the General Provisiohs.execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT-bF. HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT.bF EDUeATION r CbNTRAefORS
US pEPARTMENr.OF AbRICULTU^

Prograhis (ihdicate.applicable prpgrarh covered):
^^emporary Assistance to Ne^y-pamilies under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enfprcern'ent P'rogram under Title IV-D
•Social Services. Blp^ Grant.Pr^ram und Tide ̂
•Medicaid Program und^^
•Cdrnmunily Services iBlbck Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Oeveiopmenl Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned ceitifies, to the best of his.or her knowledge and belief, thaL

.1. No peder.al;apprppnated'fu'nds!Have.been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the,undersigned,- to
any person for ihnuenclng.prattempd 'toTnfiuence ah office; or erhployee/of any agency, a Member
of Congre^, an'officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection vvith the awarding pf.any Federal contract, conUhuation. renewal, amendment, or
modification.of any Federal contracL grant, loan, or cooperative agreement .(and by specific mention
sub^rahtee or sut>rcdntractorV

2. irany ̂fuh.ds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid .or v/ill be paid to any person for,
Influencing 'or .atternpting officer or emplbyea of any, agency, a Merhb'er'of. Congress;
an bfficer or employee of Corigm bran employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contracL grant. ioan.Pf cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub^rantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disctosune Form to
Report Lobbying,. In accordance with Its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

!• The. uhderelgned •shall re,quire;that the.lan'guage of this ce.rtificaUpn'be Included In the.av^rd
document for sub-awards at ali'tiers (including subcontracts, sub^rants; and contracts under gmn^;
loans, and cooperativ'e agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This cehificatlp.njs;'a rnatbrlal representation of fbct upon Which reliance.was,placed when this tran^ctlbn
yi^s made.or entereb'lntpi Submission of this certification is a prer^uisite fbr making or entering Into .this
tran;^tibn.in:)pbsed ̂  Title 31. U.S. .Code. Any persbn who'falls to file the required
certification shall t>e'subject to a civil penalty of hot less than $10,000 and hot rhbfe thani $100,006 for
each su^ faHure.^

Conb-actor Name: ,FIT-NHNH, Inc.

March 15. 2019 ^
Dale Name: ■ Maureen Beauregard "

Titlp- ■ -
President

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbyfrtg Contractor Initlah
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENt. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS "

The'Contractor Idenbfied in 'Section 1.3 of the General Provisions .agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Ofnce of the-President, Executive Girder 12549 and 45 CFF^ Part 76 regarding Oebarment,
Suspension, and .pther Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
represeritatfveras identified in.'S'ecticns I'.il and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute.the following
Cerbficatior^

INSTRUCTIONS FOR.CE^^^^
1. By/sfgniiig a.ridjs proposal (contract), the, prp'specbve primary participant is providing the

TOi^n^tiob 'out below.

. 2. Thejn^ility of a per^n to.pmyide, the rartincalion requir^'beloNv will not necessanly result in denial
of ̂ .i^dpadon in this covered trah^ction; If nc^ssary, ,the prpsp^ve partcipant ishail sUbrhit .aii'
explanation of wHy it canhpt provide the certifiMtion. The cerdfication or:explan■atioh.v^rtll be '
cpnddered in.conhectiom DeparlrTnentof Heafth^nd Human ServiceV (PHHS)
determinatipn <^ether to enter into this transaction.' However; failure of the prospective piimary
pahidpant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disquali^ such person from'participation in
this transaction.'

3. The certifi^Uon .ih tfiis clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the.prospective
pnmairy padidpant knowingly rendered,an eh-oneous certification, in addition to other rem^ies.
available to the Federal Goyerhnient. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause o'r default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate'written notice to the DHHS agency to
whqm-.thls, 'proposal (contract), is submitted if at any time the prospective primary pai^lpant teams
that its certification wias erroneous ^en submitted of has becorhe erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The.terms "covered transaction," *debaiTed;" "suspended," "inellgible.r "lower.tier covered
tra'ns^pn,"'particlpPnti" rpers^^ covered transaction," -principal,' "pro^sal." arid,
-voluntaHiy excluded,'^'as used jn this clause; have the nieanlngs set oiti In the Definitions and
Coverage'sections of the ruleslmplementing Executive Order -12549:45 GFR Part 76; See the
attached defihilions:

6. The prospective prirnary participant agrees by submltting-.this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed .^yered jransaction.be eriter^ Into, it shall not knowingly enter'into any lower tier covered
^HMction v/ith .a person who is debarred^ suspended, decteredlheligible, or voluntarily ex^uded'
^om participation in this.covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. -The. p/pspTCtiye primary participant'further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the.
clause^titled 'Certificati.on R.egardihg Oebarment, Suspensjon,' Iheligibility and Voluntary Exdyslon -
Lpwr tier'C^vered tfanMcUpnsl" provided liy DHHS, without rhodifkration, In all.lower tier covered
transactions and In all splidtatiphs for Ibvror tier covered^

8. A participant In a covered transition may rely.upon a certification of;.a protective participarit In a
Ipwer.tier covered transaction th.at it.is not.deirred, ispehdi,.ineiigible, or invo|yntarity excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certiiication IS;efroneous. A participant may'
icido.the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibliliy of its principals. Each
participant rhay. but is not.requiri to. check the-Nonprocuremerit List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing cbritafned in the foregoing shall be construed to require estat^ishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by.this clause, the knowledge and

'' -ExhibH.F - Certificalion Regordir^ Otb'annOTt. Suspension /Controclof Inftlah ]
AhdOthorRespon'slbartyMatters^ ' q on-iQ

cumisnicjis Page i of 2 ' DaU» y'l0-201,9
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inforrnation of a paitidpant is; not required to exceed that-which Is nonnally possessed bya prudent
person'in the ordihary course of business ded^^

'10. Except fpr transactions authorized under paragraph 6.of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction khowingly-enters into a lower tierxqvered transacUon with a person'who is,
suspended, debarred, jneligible, or yduntarily excluded from participation in .this transaction, in
addition t6:other remedies avaliabie to the. Federal govemrhent, DHHSmay terminate thisJransaction
foricaiise or default

PRIMARV COVERS
TV. The'prpspective-prirriefy'part^^ to the,best of Its knpwledge'and be|lef; that'lt and its

prindpalS:
11;i. • afe.hpt pVeScntlylde.b'a^ prppb^^d for'debafrheht, declar^ ifteiigible, .or

.ypiuritarily exdyd^ frpmfroyen^ Ira by.^ny Federal departrhehtoir.agency;
1V.2.. heve;not.wM a.tHree.^ye^ preceding this prpppsal.{contfact^ pf.of Had

"a''dvi|,]udgrnent 'rendered against them for commission.of fraud or a crimlhal offense in
. (^necdph wiUi'bb.^ to'bbtain, or peiToriming a public (FederSI.'Stcite or local)
transaction or a contract under a public tran'sactipn; vibb Federal or'State antitrust
.statutes orcpmniissfpnpf embezzlement-, theh, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records,.making fais.e:8tatements,.or receiving stolen.property;

:.-are not preseritiy Indlct^.for otherwise criminally.or dviily charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State or local) With comrrilssion of any of the-offenses.enurtiefated lh paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification: and ,

11.4.: h'ave ribtwilhin a'^three^yearperiod preceding this applicatiorifproposal Had one ..or more public
transactions'(Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or defaults

12. Whera the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in friis
certificatidh, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to'this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED

By, signing arid submi^ng thislo proposal (contract), the. pfbspectlve lower tier participant, as
' defined in 45 GFR.Paft-76, w/Ufies to the best of its kriowiedge and belief that'it'and Its prind^
13:1. are hot'preseriUy debam^, suspended, proj:k)sed for-debarrrieht, declar^ ineligible,- or
. ., 'voluhWnly exduded frbm-partidpation in thiStransactiori'by any federal department or agency.

il 3;2. where'lhe prospwtive lowerder partidpant Is unable to certify lo any.bf the above.-.such'
prospective participant shall'attach an explanation to this proposal .(contract).

14..The prospec^ve lov^^r.tieripaftc|pant further agrees bysubmltting this proposal (contract) that It will
Include this dauS^ R^ardlrig Debarment, Susperislbri. Ineligibliity, and
Voluntary delusion.- Lower Her Covered trahsactioris," without^mqdification in all lower tier^covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: FIT-NHNH, .lnc.

March-15-. ■2.019. JXXlOUPO^/^ (l^oa/n
Date.: B^uregafd. ^

Trtie: prgsjjgnt

ExhM F - CftrtincsUon.Rogardloi) Ddbdrmont, Siisp^ftston Contr&c<orjnltlfi|s
And CXhef RespdnistbtLfy Matters' , J
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDE^L NONDISCRIMINATIQN. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Conlrador idenlified in STOtlon 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the GenerarProvislbh's/ to execute the'following
certification;

Cdntraclpr will comply^ and will require any subgrentees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal hondjscrirhlnatibn requirements; which may Include;

- the OrnnibusGrim Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d)'which prohibits
recipients of^eral funding' under this statute from .discrirhinatiiig, eithdr In emplbyh^ent pfactices.or in
thedelivery of^ryiceS^ benefits, on; the basis of ra^ce;. color, religiph, national ongih, and'sex, The^L
fequir^ Mrtain r^pien^ produce/ari Equal Ernplbyment Opportunity Plan:

■ .-■the:'JuvBhUe Justice'Delinquen Act of 2002 (42 US.C, Section' ̂ 72(b)) v^ich adopts by
re^reh'ce. U^e civil rights obligabonVbf^ Stre'dts Act. Recipients of federal Ending under this
stahrte are prohibited from dis^ either ih'empldyment practice&'or in the delivery of 'sefvlces br
benefitsrdh the;b^^^^ fei'Sl'pn. national origin, and wit, The Act includes^Equal.
Ernpio^ent'Opportun^
-the'Glvil Rights Act of 19^ (42 U.S.G. Sectiort 2000d, which prohibits recipientsof federal financial
awistance from.'di^mlnatlng on thebasis ofraice, oolor. or national origin In any program or acdvity);
-the Rehabilltatjon Act of-1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794),.which prohibits recipients of Federal fmancial
assistance ffprhidi^'min'attng'on the basis of disability, In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, In any program or activity;

- Ui"e Americaris-withGisa^^^ Act of 1^0 (42 U:S;C. Sections 12.131-34), v^ich prohibits
dfscrirhinato'n and ensures^^ua) opportunity for pdrsons With dlsabil(des;ln emplbyjo^ and local
gbve'rnrhent services',:public:a<x»rhrnpdaliohs. cpmrherciarfedlitles. and transport
• the Educadbn^endmehtvbf 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections ICOi; 1663,1685r86); Whlch prohibits
di.sCnrhlHabon on'the basis dr^x.in federally as^sted educatibri prograrh's;
T th"e:Age.piscrtmlna'Upn'Acfto 1976 (42 U.'S.C- Section's 6l06-^7). which prohibits.discriifiinatran or^ the.'
basls pf age ln'(3'rp^ reiving Federal fihanclal assistance. It dbes^n'olinclude
e'rtiplpyrhent diMriniin^^^^
- 28;C.F;R. pL ,31 (UiS.'pepartrneht Of Justice Regulations - OJJDP .Grant Programs); 28.C.F.R. pt. 42
(M;S:;p.eparbnent!bf.J^ Noridiscrirhiriatlpn; Equal Erhploymeht.pp'po.rturiity; Pplicies
and Procedures):, Ex Np; 13279 (equal prdtectiph pf lhe lavvs fpr'fafth-based and community
brganlzajo^ 13559, which provide ^ndaniehtal principles and pblicy-rriaklrig"criteria;^; pa^erships w neighborhood organizations;;
-;28 C.FiR. pL 38 (U-S.'pepartment of Justice Regulatioris - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
drganiz^'ions);.and Whislieblpwer proteblions 41 U.S.(j. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDM) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub.,L 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancerhent of .Contract Employee vyiiistieblower Protections;, which protects employees against
reprisal for cerUim 'wHistle. bloVnng activities In connection with federal grants and .contracts.

The;certifibate^sef^ rriaterial representation of fact upton wtiich reliance is placed when the^
agency awards .the'grariL False certification or violation ,bf the^certindalibri shali be'groiirids for
^spehslbn Of payfnehls. suspension:or terrhinatlbn of grarils, or government v^de,suspension or
deba'rmehL

.ExtiibD.G
. . . . .. . ,, , . Cofitractof lnlU«h

cf imn rvqi»r<'irwt»"p»*uirtrio"o r«<wri> No^icrMniS^'f ti««im«n;o< r«mve«M4 Orea&toM
' - . " .«fB VW*lHbto«iw 'prB>«ct>or»' "

'  3-1^-2010f>^8lof2,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
•  Exhibit G

In the everitVf=ederal or State cou administrative agency makes a Hnding of
disbrtrhiratidn efter a'duapr^^^^ the grounds of race; wlor.
abaihs\'a>^pteht;6f furidsrthe'recjpierit will forward a copy of the firidmg to the Office for Cnnl Righfs jo.

. the'applicaWf wntracling agen^ or division wllhin.the Oepartmenl of Health and Human.Services, arid
to .the Depar^ent df Health' ahd Human Services Office of Ihe.Ombudsm'an.

The Contractor identified in Section. i:3'of the General Pravision^.agrees b/slgnature df
^pfesentetive=ai"'a'OTUned In. Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Gerier^il prbvisipns. to execute, the following
certificatidh:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the .Cdntractbr agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated ;abov8.

March 15, 2019-

Oate ' Wa*e:"Maureen Beauregard
President

Contractor Name: 'FIT-NHNH, Inc.

fran9rH

Exhibit G
Cofltractprlnitias

C*ftI!icMC« 0» b P-Ort ManJiWW#^. l.tWrbhior
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Sorylces
ExhIbltH

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Pubic Law.103;^2:27. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as tti'e;Pra^hildren ̂ .of 1994
(Actji:requirbs that smoking not be permitted in any portion of.ariy Indoor faality pwnpd or lM«d or
co'ntr^ed fw by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health..day "i^re, educatjon.
pVlibrary s^r^cesHo' underthe age of18, if the service^are fund^ by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, wntract, loan, or Ipari gu^ntee; The
law'does not'apply to chndrenls services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Meditare'br Medicald fundsr and jsdrtipns of facilities used for in'patient'dfug br alcohol treatment Failure
tb ccmply.with the provislbns'bf.the'law may result in the Irnposition of a dvll monetary p^alty of up to
SlOOO.per day and/or the Imposition of ari"administrative domptiance order on,the responsible entity.

The Conlraclbf identified Irt Sectionfl.S'of the General Provisions agrees, by signature pf the Contractor's
representetive as identified in &^on T and l'.12'of the Gener^ Provisions, to execute the following
ceiwicatibn:

r.- By. signing and submitting this cbhlract, the Contractor agr^s to make reasonable efforts to comply
^fli aU applicable prbvislo^ of-Publlc Law 103^227. Part C, known as the Pro^Chlldren Act of 1994.

ContractorNamerFIT-NHNH. inc.

fyiarch 1.5; 2019 f f
Date y.®, • ^Maureen Beauregard ^

President

i

■  H -.C«rtincalk)h Regarding .Contf'aclbr Iniii8l|
>environnwntal Tobacco Smoke ort-n

cUioHKani07«3 "Page l of 'i --Pay >15-2Q1g
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Exhibit I

UFA' TH IMSURANCF PQRTABIUTY ACT
RUSINESS AfiytnniATE AGREEMENT

The^Gontractorideritin^^^ 1 -,3 of the General Provisipns.of the^greement ag^^s to
comply vwth the. Health'Insurance^ PbrtabJII^^^^ A^ppritabllity Act, Public Law 104-191 aM
with'thp Standards'for Privacy andlSecurl^ of Individually Idehttfiable Hpalth imonrtatipn, 45
CFR Parts 16P'and ̂164 applies to business associates.; As-defined hbrein, .'business.
Associate" shailmeart^^^^ subcontractbre.ahd agpntsbf the ConUactpr.thai
rec«i\/e.'use^r heallh-lnfomiatlon under this Agreemeht and •Covered
Ehtit/ihalirhean lpelState^ of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definttlons.

3- 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the.term "Breach- ih:sectipn'164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Fedefaj Reguiattons>

b: "Busihess'Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 166.103 of title"45.,.Gode
of Federal Regulations:

p.- "Covered EntitV has the:meaning given .such term in sectjon 160.103 of ntte45.
Code of Federal R^ulations.

'Designated Record Set"shall have the same nieaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 GFR:Section 164.501.

<e. "Data Aaoreaation". shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregatipn'' ih 45CFR.
[Section 164.501.

I  ̂ "Heaith Gare Goerations" shall haV.e the sanie, meaning as the: term 'hea.lth:care 6perallons"'
in'45,CFR Section 164.501.

■ g. "HITEGH Act""means:the Health Ihfprmatipn.technojogy for Economi'c:ahd Clinical Health
' ;Actr.Titl^lll,'S,u^^^ &-2>6f the'American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of

■■2669:

h. "HIPAA" means thOHealth,Insurance Portability and Accduritabijlty Act ,pf1996, Public Law10.4-19i "and the'Standards:fpr Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable. Health
Irifdrmetipn. 45.'CFR Paris I'eO, T62 8nd 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "IndiVlduar shall havP'tKe same meaning as the term "individuar In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and.shall include a 1^ Whb qualifies as a per^na) representative In accordance with 45
GFR-Secti6nt6K56l(g^

J: ' "^Privacy Rule' 'shall.mean the {Standards for Priyac:?. of Individually Ideritifiable Health
'  infpimation.at 45'cM'Parts ,^feO and;i64..prbrh"uigat6d under HIPAA,.by .lhe.UnitedStates

bepahm'ent pf'HealtKand Human Services.

It. "iprbtected Health Information' shall have thevsame meaning as the term "proteded health'
iriformatibh" in 0 GFR,:SeCti6h 160^^ llmjied to the Ihtprmation created or received by
Business-Associate from or oh "behalfof Covered Entity'. .n

^14 Exhibit t Contrador Initials
Health Insurance Rortflbifity Act
Business Assodale Agfeemeni 1Q

Page.t of.;e: Date >
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ExhibH I

1. '"ReoOired by Law" .shall have meaning as the term "required by law" in 45CFR
.SMiioh 1,64.103.

m.V TSecretarv" shall rheah the Secretai^of lhe Departmeht .of Healthand Human Servlcesor
His/her designee.,

n. - ^Security Rule> shali mean the^Security Standards for the .Prbt^oh of Electronic Protected
Health Jnfprniatidn Part l^. Subpart C,- and amendments thereto.

"Unsecured Prdtectki'Health lhformatiori" means protected health Information that is not
secured by,a .techrioldg^.'standard that renders protected health information unusable. _
unreadable;, orindecipherable, to unauthorized individuals and is develpped or.e.nddrsed by
a Standards^ organization that is accredited by the Americah National Staridards
Institute:

p; Other Defih'itlohs - All lerrns nolptherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
' established under 45 C;^ 1.60.162;and:i64. as amended from^ time to time, and the

HITECH
Act.

(2) pufiiness Associate Use and Disclosura of Protected Health InformatlQn.

•a. Busfness.Aasodate shall not use. disclose, maihlain or transmit Protected Health
.lnformatl6h,(PHl);excdpt;as reasonably necessary.to-provid.e'the ser^^^^^
^Eihibit A;pHhe:Agr0em Further. Busiriess-Asspciate, ihcludihg but not limited to all.
ttsdiredbrs, officers, employees and agents, shall not maintain or transmit
:PHI In any manner that would constitute ;a violation pf the Privapy' apd SGCurity Rule.

;b- .Business Associate maV-Use or disclose PHI;
i. For ,the prppfer management and administration of the Busjness Ass^iate;
■|[. 'Ai'required by law, pursuant .to-ihe terms se't forthMn paragraphd.^^ or
III. . .For data aggregation purposes fpr lhe health care operations of C^vered

' Entity.
<

p. Tpithe. extent.Business:Associate is-pernriifted under the^'A^reemeriVto dlsp^ lo-a
third pady.; Business Associate, mush obtain, prior to making ehy. such disclosure, (I)
reasbna'bie'd^ third party-that'such PHl vyill be,held cpnfidepb^ljy shd.
used dr-hjWer'>disdb^^ by law or. for the puipose for which it was.

idisclbsed to ihelhird pai^ such mird party to notify Business
.Assbciate, irt .:acc6fdahce with the HIPAA Privacy. Secuiity, and Breach .Notification
Ruies'"of any brb^ of the cphfidentiallty'df the PHI. to the'extent it has obtained.
kn6wiedge:6f such" breach.

d. The Business A^spdate.sha^^^^ hot. unlesSSuch disclosure is reasonably necessary tpprovide services under Bihibit A bf :the,Agfeementi'disc|bsb any PHI in response to ,a
request for discibsure on the basl's. that it is^required by la\v, without first notifying
Gpvered Eritlty-Sb thai"^^^ Entity has ,an, opportunity to" object to the disclosure and
tb seekpppropriate relidt lf Cpvered Ent^^^^ disclosure. theBuslhess ■

3/2014 I  Contractor tnttiais.
Hesttn Insuranco Portability Act

-BuUhcss Assbdalo Agreement v jV on-o
Pa^' 2;of,6 Oa.to ^^5-2019
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-;As^|ate,shall refrain from disclosing the RHI uhtll;G6verey Entity has.exhausted.all
remedies.

e. If 'the^Goverdd EnUty hbtifies the;Busiriess;Assbciate; that Gw^ has agreed to,
be bound by additional resfectiohs over and aboW^^ of disclosure.s of security
.safeguards of pHI pursuant to' the Privacy arid Secuflty Rute. the-Busirte^
■sh'all bd tound'by^.such additional restrictions and:shall not dlscldse. PHI in vidJaliph■ sucKdi^ditlo abide by any additional Mcufi^.safeguards.

(3) Obiiaatiohs and Activities of Business AssQClfltQ.

a.. Th^ Business Assodate'shall notify the Covered EhtlVs Pi^acY Qffi(^f imn^^
afier-the Busihe^ As^ becomes aware of any use or dls(^sdfe.6f pfpteqted
hedlth'ihfdrrhalion h by'the'Agreement.including breaches of uhsecufed
protected health irifpfmation and/or any security incident thai'may have an impact oh the
protected healtdjhfdrmatibn ,6f the, Gpyered Entity;

lb. The Business /Associate shaH irnmediately "p«ifpfm-,a',Hsk' asse^^^ wrtipn 'f ̂ comeSevvdre of,anypf the above situations; The risk.assessment shall Ihclude, b'ut not be
limited to;

p The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved. Including the"
types .of Identifiers and the likelihood .of re^idehlificalion;

o. The uhauthorized person'used the protected health information"" or to w/hdm the
'disclbsure.vras made;

o Whether the protected health Infofrnatlpn was actually acquired or viewed
d the extent to wh'icb the risk to the protected health irifbrrnation has been

rriitigated...

,the Business, AsSbclateehall complete the risk assessment yi,athin :4-8 hours of the
brbach^and immediately reboXtt^sfitd^
Gbvered Enli^i'

c; The Bysiness:A^p,ciate shail comply v^h all sections.df the Privacy; Security, and
.Breach'^

d. BuSinessAsspciate .shall niake.available all of itsfriterhai [x>lic|es and procedures, books
and records rel3tit^;io the.use.and disclbsufe of PHI received frorpi or created orreceiyed'by'theBusiness^Assbciate pn'behalf pf'Co.vered.Entity tp the ^cretary for >
purposes of deterniiriihg Cbvered.Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Priyacyend,
Security Rule;

e, . Business Associate shall require all of Its busihesS 'assbbialesdhat receiye. yseo^^ have
• access ip' PHI .uride.f.^ agree in writing to adhere to. the.same. ^
festrictlbris 'aridOonditiprisfoh the use-end disclosure.of PHhcontained herejn, Including
the du^'tb return br deslfOy the'PHI as pfoylded under SectJ^ the-Coyefed Entity
shall tw;ponsidered a direct third party tkhefldaiy.bfTKe;:^^^ business associate

..agreefrients'.wilh'Conifactor'sJrilended business assdclaies. who will be receiving PHf
3/2014 .Exhibit.I 'Cbiitfacbrl'tlikals.

.Health Insurancg Portability,Act
BiiiUnoss Assodsle Agreorneni 'o' 4 c ori'i a

P^dof.6 Dale
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p.ureuafiMp mis Agreeme^ rights of eriforcement and indemnification from
busirie^.asst^ates vriio'shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13,pf the star>dprd
.asntracl prbvisions^^^ of this Agreement for the purpo^ of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f.. VViUiin five (5) business days of receipt of a-writteh request from Covered Entity,
Busines's.Assbclate shall make avallable during normal business hours at its.pffices qll
rdcprdsV bbbVal agredm policies and procedures relating to the, use:anddisclpsure
of PHI to tbe CoYefed Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associaie!s .cbmpliance. with the temis.bf the:Agreement.

g. WiUlin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from CpVered Entity,
'  Business Assc«iate shall provide access to PHI. iri a beslgnated Rqcbrd Spt to the

Gqyered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In d/de,rjb meet the •
requirements, under 45.:CTR: Section 164.524.

h. WHhin ten (10) biisiness.days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHi .or a 'record about an Indiyiduai cqntained In a Designated Record
Set. Itw Business. Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendmeniand incorporate.any such ame.ndrhent to enable ̂ .yered Entity tp fulfill its
.obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

[. Business-Associate:,shall document Such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such.disclosures'as would be r^uired for Covered Entity to respbrid to a request by an
:ihdividpal for an:accpunting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45..CFR Section
164.528. '

j. Within teh (i p) business days of receiving a vvritten request from Covered Entity for a
^request for an accounting^df disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall makeayailable
:tq Cpvbred'Entity as Oivered Entity may require to fulfill its dtjli^artibns
to prpvide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR~
Section'164.528.

ki In the event any indiWdual requests'access tb. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
;direpily:frpm the:Business Associate, the Business.Assbciate shali.yri.tNn two (2)
busihe^idays forward such request to Covered Entity. Gbvered Entity,shall have.the
Tespbhsibiljty'p^ to forwa.rded requests. However. If fonwaibing .the ̂
indiVidubis request tb Covered Entity ca.use Covered Entity or-lhe Business
Associate to viblatb HiPM and the P'riva.cty and Security Rulerthe Business Associate
vshall instead respo.nd.tathe individuarsVequest as" required b'y such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soori as pracliwble,

j. Within ten.(10) business.days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Assbciate shall return or destroy, asepec'ified. by .Cover'e.d Entity, all PHI
received frpm, or created or received by the.Business Associate In cbhnecfion v^.th the

^A^reer^1e^it, and shall pot retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI; If return'or
destruction is nbt,febsibie". or the .dlsppsHibn of'the PHI has bpen othenvise" agreed toin
the Agreemeni,.Bu8irie&.As'sociate shaH cpntihge to extend the. protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses.and dlsclpsures of.such PHI to lhose
. purposes that makethe return or destruction iPfeasible. fbr-sb .long.as■Business:

3/2014 Eihiblll Cwnr^rlrttials.
"Hoollh InauninM Port^ity AcJ
BysijVBS Assoctel© AgreofTOnt . -'3:^15-2019
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;As^ate'malntaihs:5uch,PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sblp discreUp;n..requlreV that the
'BUslhesSiAs^ciale/destfp^ Business Associate shall certify to
/Cbvered Eriti'ty that'thb^ has treeh;deslroyed,

(4) Obiiaations df Coverfld Entitv

a. Gpyered Entity,ishail ndti^ Business-Associate of.an/'chahgep'or lirni,tatioh{s) in its
Noti^'of Privac^'Pract](^s;prpvlded to individuals In^ccordahce y/lth ̂ S CFRS^liori

tp the^extbht-tt^^^ or limitation may affect Business Associate's ■
usedrdisdosuredf PHIv

b. -Covered Entity shall prorfiptly notify Business Asspciate.pf any cHan pr revocation
of'perrnissipn provided to Covered Entity by ihdividuajs whose PHI may t^ usedpr
discipsed by Business Asspciate under this ̂ reement, pursyant;td,45 CFR S^tlpn
1^:506: or 45 GFR Section 164.508.;

c.. Gbver^ ehtityfshali prdmptly notify.Busine'ss:Associate.of any restrictions.pn me use-pr
diScidSure of PHI that^C^^^ has .agr^d to In accordance wth 45 GFR 164.522-,
to the extent lhatsuch restriction nvay affect Busifiess Assoclatejs use or disclosure of
PHjv

(5) T>>rrhlnationfQr Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard;terms;and conditlphs (P-37) of thi^
Agreement the, Goy^ Entity may immediately termiriale the Agreernenl upon Covered
Entity s k'npv^edge.of a.breach by Business. Msdciatepfthe Business.^spciate
AgreementseVforth herein.ak Exhibit I. The Cbyered Entity may either.imm^iately
terrhlnate the Agreement dr prdvibe-anop^^^ Assoclate tb cureithe,
alleged breach:within a-timeframe.specined by-^^ Covered Ihtity
:de(ermines that neither^termination nor cure is:feaaibleV:Govered Entity shall, report the
y(piatidri;tp the%e^^

(6) Mlscellanodus

a: Definitions and Reoulatorv References. AU tef'ms,used, but notOthery4se defined herein.
vsHall have the;,same:mieahing. as those temis in the Privacy pnd;$d'cijrity Rple. ̂amendpd
•rfdm 'time'to'tirtfe;.-^ refdrence In the Agreement, as amended to include this. Exhibit I. to

SedUdnJri thd'Priyaby artd Security Rule means the,Section as in.effecl or as
amended.

b. • Amendment: :Cidvered Eriti^ and Business Associate agree, to take'such action as Is
'■ necessary-to amend'the Agrpdment.' from time, to time adis-riecpssary for Covered
Entity .tp comply w^th the;charides' In the. requlremenls^^pf HIPAA, the' Privacy.and

•S.ecurity Rule,-and applicable,federal,and state law.

■c: . Data Qwnershio. The Business Associate acknowledges thal ltmas no ownershlp.rights
Wim respect to.:lhe;PHI proyided by .or created.oh behalf of Covered Entity.

d.- ' In'teroretatlon. The parties.agree mat any ambiguity In me-AgreemGrit shall be resolved
■.to permit Covered Entity to,comply ^m HIPM, Ihe Privacy; arid Security Rule;' .. A.

;  I Contrsctbr Initials,
Insurance PbriabOily Ad

30014

Business AssodstaAgieerneni ri-iS-bniQ-  p^sore ,oato±22:iH2-^
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. SedredationVlf any lerrh'.or''cdndition of I or the applicalion thereof to any
personfs) or'cir^mstahde Is Held invalid, such Invalidity shall not aff^ other term^or
conditions whlch^n l>e gtyen effect without the invalid tenri or condition; to this end the.
terms and condliibns.of this Exhibit I are declared ̂ yerable.,

Survival. Prpvislons in this Exhibit I regarding the use^and disclosure qf PHI. return pr
idestnic^n^of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defensdand Ihdemrilfication provisions'of section (3)eand Paragraph 13 of the
standard term's and' shall-.survlve the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS'WHEREOF. the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

• Pepartment of Hehllh and Hurrian Services

The State

i=2<
•;Slgnature ofAuthdrized.Represeritatrve

Name of Au^rlzed Representative

Title .of Authorized Representative

Date

FITtNHNH. Inc..

Name of the Qohtia

I
ign&We of Authorized Represebfetiye

MfturPftn Beaureoard —
Name of Authorized Representative

, President
Title.of Authorized Representative

MarchlS. 2019

Date

3/2014 E^lbiti
Heallh Inauranoo Portabllty Act
'Buslneu Assodste AgrMmenl

Pgga^e pf6,;

Goftinictbr Initi^t

r^^iB 3-15-2019
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CFRflFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency.Act (FFAtA).requires prime av^rde« of Ir^rvidual
Federal grants equal to bf greaterVh^ $25,000 and awarded on or after October ■] . ;201p. to report on
daU' related tq 'i5xe<Aitiye:cbmpensatibn and associated first-tier sut>-9rahts of $25,000 or mofe. If the
Iriitfel av«fd ls' below.$'25.00b but subsequent grant modificationsVesult In a total award equal to or over
$25 000'the award Is subject to"the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with'2.GFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compen^tibn Information), the
Departmenj,of Health and Human:^ryices (DHHS)"rnust report,the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to 'the.FFATA reporting requireirienis;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding,agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Programi sbO'rce
6 AWard title'descnptive of the/puip^ of the funding action
i. llpMtibh'of.lhe:end^
8. Prihapldfplbce.of perfpm
9., Unique.lderttifier of the
10. toterMht(»hsati6n'andnam«dfthetopfiveexe^ , , . .

10/1. Mpre'tten 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are;greaterth.an-S25ly4 annually and

1012. Cbrhpens^tldn [hformatiori is not already availaWe thraugh reporting to Ihe.SEC.
Prime gi^nt recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 3D days, in which
the avrard or award amendment.Is rriade. , .
The Coritractor identified Iri^Sedtibh 1^3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
the Federal Funding Acbountebiiity and transparency Act, Public Law 109-262 arid PiJbllc Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR part;i7p (Repbrtin^ Subaward and ^ecutive Gorhpensatlbn Infor'malibn). and ̂ rther agrees

■to haye.the^Gon^ctbr's fepVes^^^ as identified in ̂ '-rtipri's V. 11 and 1112 bf the "General Provisions
•execute thb following fee^
The bciovy named Gbrilracfbr agreesito provide needed information as outlined above'lq the NH

■DepafohetdblHealth Hu'rnari' ' and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Aii^untability arid Transparency Act

Contractor Name: . FIJ-NHNH, Inc.

March 15. 2019^ if hf/J 0/^/1
Date NamerMaureen Beauregafd

"Tiile: president

• exhibit J.- Certillcaton R«g«rclift9 ttw Federal Funding Contractor InHial;
AdcowntablGly And Transparency Act (FFATA) CdmpSanco V' /c

cu-WHSUriona PagaVofZ- Dated-1b-2U1tJ
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Now Hampshire Dopaitmont of Health and Human Seiylces
Exhibit J

FORMA

■ As the Coritrac^r identified in Section i;3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the rMponses .to the
beiowllstdd'questions are true and'^urate.

1, The DUNS nurnber for your entity-is: '825360399 .

2. In.your business or organization's preceding conipleted fiscal year, did your btiyiipss'pr oipanlzation.
, receive (1)-80'percent-6r more of your,ahnuaj gross reyenue in U.S. federal ,(»nlracte;,subconV^cts.
loans; grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2);S25,000,Op,0 or more in annua!
,gross' revenues from.U.'S. federal'cohtracts..subcpntra.c^ loans;^grants. 8ui>grants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO -YES

If the ahswer'fb'#? a^ye (is NO. stop here

If Ihe ahsWer tp#2 abdv is YES. please answer the foliowing:

3.. ppeiSithe public,haveeccess'to'lnformation about the compensation of the executives in your
businew=oir brgantzatibn'through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of tbe Securities
Exch^'ge^ of 1934 ("i^ 78o{d)) or section 6104 of the Ifitemal Revenue Code of
1986? " • /-

NO YES

If,the answer to.11f3 .above'ls YES. stop here

If the answer td.fW above is.NO. please answer the followihg;

'4.- The harries and'compensaiipn of the five most highly cornpensafed officers in your business or
prganjzatipn are as'fellows

N^er,

Name;,

[fVame;

Name:

Name:'

Amount::.

Amount:.

Amount:.

Amount:.

Amount

CU/DHH&n07l3

•Exhibit J - C«rtif»catJon Regardlng.ihe F^f«i Furullng • Contractor,lniliaI»iJt
' Acdouiilat^ Arid Tr«i«pa»ency API (FFATA) Complaftoo

"  "Pog«2pf2 oatii 3-15-2019
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Defihitlbns'

The fbllowhg terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

:1. -Breach" means 'the loss ^pf control, compromise, .unauthorized disclosure,
uriauthorized vacqiJisitibn. unauthorized .access, o term referring to
situations where persons other than aiittibrlzed usere arid for an pther. than
Cuthdrired purpose have access or potential .access to persorfal|y IbentHiable
Irifprmatidn, -whether'physical or electronic. With ,regard .to: Protected Heal^
InforrnatiCh," BreVch' have the same, meaning as the term "Breach" in.sectlpn
164.4020' title,45,-Cbdeof Federal Regulations:

'2' "Computer Security Incident" shall have Ithe same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In seciion-twb (2) of NISI Publication ,60 Security Incident
■HarKl'ling Gulde.. Natlonal Institute.of Standards and Techriolpgy^ IJ.S. Department
of. Commerce.

3: "^riridential Iriforrnalion" or "'Confidential Data" means all cohfidehtial iriforrhatibn
disclosed by brie party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
.assistance benefits ;and personal Ihfbrmation' including without iimfiation, Subslatice
Abuse treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Irifomialion and
Pereonally Ideritifiable Information.

■ Confidential.Infofmatlbn also Includes any and.all inforrnation owned or managed by
the State pf NH - created; received from or on b.ehatf of the bepartment of Health' arid
Hurnan Services (DHHSj or accessed iri ;the course' of p^Wbrririirig contracted
senrices -^of which collection, disclosure, protection, and dlSpbsitibn Is governed by
state or federal law-Or'regulation. This infonnation includes.-but ,is not limited, to
Protected Health Informatiori (PHi). PerMr}bl Information,.(PI). Personal Flnaricial
Infofmatlbn (PFij.-.Federa! tax- Infprrhatibh (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other serisitlye ,and confidential Information.

4. "End User^ rneans any person or entity" (e.g., contractor, cp.ntractbris employee,
busiribsb associate, subcontractor, other downstream user,, etc.) that receives
DHHS data of derivativb data in accordance with the terms'df this Contract.

,5. "HIPAA" means'the Health Insurance'Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations' p'romulgated thereunder.

6. "Iricldeht" 'mbans'ariracf that potentially vibjates an explicit or implied security policy,
whichincludei attbmpts (either failed or succ.es,sful) to gairi unai^orized access to a
system or it8:data; urivranted disnipliori bf deniai of service, IheUnaulho.rized use of
a system for the proce^ingror storage of data; and changesTb systeni hardvrafe
finnv^re, or'spftware .characteristics'without the owner's, kriowledge; Instruction, or
(unserit.'incidems' jnclude .m loss of data through'theft or device misplacement, loss
:or'iriispiace'ment prbard documents, and misrouling of physical or electronic

V5. Laa updateioma/ia ^ Cort«ciof iniuais,
DHHS ln,'brmaUon

3-15^2619'Page 1 6f 9 ^ -
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mail, all of Wilch may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
acwss. use, dj^lpsufe. modification or destnjction.

-7; "Open Wlrele^ Netvrork" means any network pr segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Ham'pshirels Department of Information
Technotdgy,. or deiegate as a protepted neiwprk (designed, tested, and
approved; by means of the Slate, to transrrilt) will be considered an open
netvyork and not adequately secure for the trarismissioh of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHror confidential pHHS data.

8. "Personal fnformatioh" (or "PI") means Informatton which can be used to distinguish
-or treed ah ihdividuarsideriUty. such as-.their'name; social security;number, personal
information as defihad iri New Harnpshife RSA'35^G:19, biometric records, etc..
atone. or when combined with other personal or jdenUfying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as.date arid place of biiih, mother's rnajden

, name, etc.

.9. "Pri\^cy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Iriform'atton at 45,C;F.R' Parts 160 and 1M. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States'Depa.rtment;of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Iriformation" (or'PHI") has the Mine meaning as prpvided in the
" definjtibh of ̂ Protected'Health information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at.45 G.F.R. §
166.103. .

11. "Security Ruie"'sha!I mean the Security Standards for the. Proteclioh o^ Elertronic
Protei^ed.. rteaith Irrformation at 45 G.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendrfiehte
thereto.

1i "Unisecured Protected Health Information'means'Protected Health information that Is
not secured by a technology staridard that rer>ders Protected Health Iriformabon
unusable. : unreadable, or 'ihdecifjheraBle, to unaulhprizpd _ m^^lduals; ai\d Is
developed pr endprsed by a standards developing orgahizatidn thbt^is accredited .by
the'/^erican National Starxiafds Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A- Business, tjse arid .Disclosure, of Confidential Information.'

1 ;• Thai Cbntfactpr must :hpt use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
;excepi-'as reas^^^ newssary as outlined, uridert^^^^ Contract. Further; Contractor,
(nciudihg but 'noriinilted.".tp;all its difectoti, otficere;.'emplbyee.s arid'^a^^ must.not
,u^e,;dl^lose, rhairitairi bV-transmi PHI in any rrianner that would constitute-a violation
of the Privacy arid Security Rule.

2. The Cpritractor must not disclose :any Confidential Information in response to a

V5 Uslupdale-iorosns . E-WbllK Contractor Initials;
"  " ' DHHS Informalion

SecurilyR^'ulrements 3-15-2619-
P^2 6»0
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request/fordisclosure oh- the basisMhat it-is required by law. (h response ̂
opportunity to.

con^nt or objed lo'the "disdos^

3. if DHHS notifies the Gohtractor that DHHS> Has; agreed to bound , by ̂ Wio^a'
'  restrictions over and above.those.usesior disd.osures pr swunty-^ PHI

pursOaht to. the Privacy^arid Security Rule; the.;Cdn^ctor must berbpund. hv such
addltiOnar restrictions and must iriot disclose; PHI in viola.tlon of such additional
fPstridlphs and mul^^ any .additional security safeguards..

;4. Thecebritradbr agreeli that DHHS; Data or derlvatrye^m an End
iUsermudonly bd.used pufeuant to the terms of this Cpntrect..

5. The'Contractor agrees DHHS; Data dbtalried undeM rnay not be used for
any omer.purposes-that are hot indicated in thi5_,GQritra,ct.

.6; "The;';Gontractpr"agrees to grant access4o. the.data to the authpr^ed. repres;enta^^^^
-pf DHH.S for the' purpose 6f Inspecting-to confihm compliarTce.with the,terms of-.this
'Contract'.

II. M^ODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. AppScatlPri ^ricryptibn; If .End User Is; transmitting DHHS dat^ .TOntaining
•C^hfidenUal Datb tifetwb'en applicalions ihe CohlraotPr attests.lhe appiicatio.n^^
been evaluated , by an .expert knowledgeable, in c>mer security -and. that said
appli^tion's-;en(^pUo^ Capabilities ensure .secure :trahsrhissi6n via the Internet.

2. ̂ CpmpUlef' DisKs'.ahd Portpbie; Storage Devices, End User may not use corpp^er
or i^rtabie.storage:deyl.M as a thumb dove'; ass,method of transmittiiig DHHS

'data. ^

•3 Encrypted Emaii. End User may'bnly'.emplbylemail to U:ansmiVGonfi,de^
erfi'ail is^'encrvPted^ and being-sent to^ and being received'by ̂emaii addresses of
peisPns^authorized to recdiyasuch irfformatlpn.

4. Encrypted.'Web Site. If End Use; 1s, empl6ying m yVeb to transmit Confidential
Data.„ithb secure socket -layers (SSL) must . be used and the web .site must be
secure: DSL'bncrYpts.data via a.Web site;

5. File Hostjng Services, elso known as File^Sharing Sites; End User may not .use file.
hosUng ̂ defvices, such :as' Dropbox or 'doogle Cloud Storage, to transrriit-
CPnfidentiaj data.

6. Srouhd,Maii Senricel End User may only transmit Cpri^ential Data via cerHfiedproand
mall vvithin.the.oontinental UvS.-and when Cehito> nameij indivi^^

7. Laptops .and PDA.. iTEnd User id employing pphabie deuces■ to trahsniir
cdhfidentlai' Dafd.s^ encfypted arid password-protected..

8. Open Wireless-Networks. End User may not transrhit Confidential Data via ap open

V5.-Laaupdatc10rtj9/iB' r, .ul'r'S.!! Corrtradorini
DHHS InfcfrmalHJft

Se^tyR^uJronSem^^ _ . 3-15-2bi9
Page 3 of 9
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private networt^ (VRN) when
remotely trahshiitting via an, open wireless network,

9.. Remote User Communication; If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit ̂Confidential Data, a virtual private; network (VPN) must be
irieiaiied on me End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Iriformatlon will'be.
trahsmitted or ac^ssed.

10. SSI^ RIe Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also knbwrtas Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User. Is empioying an SFTP to transmit Confidential Dala, End IJser v/ill
;strijcture the "iFolder arid access privileges to prevent inepprophsf® disclosure pf
irifqrrTiatipn. 'SFTP'-fold^^^ used fpr^transnriittlrig Gonfideritial Data will
be coded for.24-hourWtoOeIe.tipn cycle (i.b. Confidential Data will be'deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, if End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireje'ss devices; all
:data;rnust bd enc^pted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

111. RETENTION AND DISPpSPTlON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor,will only retain the data and any derivative of the data.for the duration of this
.'Cdnlract. After :Such time, the Gorilractor will have 30 -days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form It may ,exist, unless. othenMSe required, by law or pernilrted
ronder thlsContract. to.ihls end, the parties must:

A'.; f^elentiori

1. The-Cbrilracfdr agrees' ilwill not store, transfer or process data collected iri
connectidh vyith the jsen/lces rendered" under.^lhis Contract ;putside of the United
Stales. This phv^ic^i location requlremeritfshall alsd;a in the implementation of
cloud..oompiilii^. cIouP sen/Ice or. cloud storage capabilities, and Iricludes ba.Ckup
;data arid pIsaSter-Recoveiy locations;

;2' The Contfactor.'agrees. to, ensure proper. securfty monitoring, capabilities .are In
pldceV to detect (Wteriliai i securily events .lhat>ca.n impact State of NH systems
and/or bepartmerit;cdnftlentiari^ for cphtractor provided systems.

•3; the Contractor agrees,to provide security avvareneSs'and aducalibn for Its End
Users in Buppb.rl.bf protecting D.epartrhehfcbnfidentiai information.

'4; The Cbntractdragrees to retain all .elqct.rohic-and hard.copies'bf Confidential Data.
;ln a secure location and identified in 'sel^ibn IV-: A.2

.'5. The Contractor, agrees Confidential Data stored In a ;cibud must t>e. in a"
TedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicabje stetutes and
r^ulatioris regarding the privacy and security. ■ Ail servers and devices must have
^currently-supported and hardened operating-systems, the latest anti-viral. anU-
'hacker. anfHspam.ranU-spyware, and';ahtl-rnalware utilities. The environment, as a

V5;UttupdatelO«Wl8 E^WWlK Coniradorlniilals
OHHS Infoirmatidn

n.-3-15-2019
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whole, mu^ have aggressive Inlruslon-detecllon and firewall protection;

■6; The 'Contrador agrees to and ensures Its cornplete'cpoperatipnwith the State's
Ghlef ihfo"rmati6n Officer In the datectldn'of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.-

B. Disposition;

1. If the pdntractor will maintain any Qonfidentlal Information on Its sysiems (or Us
;sub-cbhtra'ctbr systems), the Gpritractpr vyill maintain a documented process ,for,
.securely dispdsihg of such data uppn request or contract termination; and >vill
obtain .written certification-for dny State' pf New H^ destroyed by the
Ojntractor or.any subconiractors as a part of ongoing, eriiergency, and of di^stef
recovery operations. When ho longer in use, electronic media:,i»ntainlng'State.of
New Hamp.shire.'data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a.8ecure:wii» prbgram
-in accordance wth industry-accept standards for secure-deletion and fhedia
Mnitizatldn. 6/ P^ destroying the . media (for exarnple.
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication SQO-^. Rev 1,. Guidelines
for Media SanitiMtion. NaUonaf Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Cornmerce. The 6ontractor-wlli document and. certify in writing'a.t
time of the data destruction, and will pfo.vide written certiricatlon to the Department
upon request.; the written .certification will iriclude. all details necessary, to
demdhStmte data has been property destroyed arid validated.. Where, applicable.
regulatPfy and professional standards for relerition requirements will be Jointly
evaluated by" the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2.: Uhiess votherwse/s^ v/ithin thir^ (30) days of the termination of. this
Contract; Cdril'ractPr agrees to destroy all hard cPpies :of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as. shredding.

3. Unless ^.dthenyise,.specified, within WIrty (30) days of the. terminatiPn of this
Gpnlract, Contractor-agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confideritlal Data
by.rhearisdf'dataarasufei also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contrador agrees, to :"safeguard the DHHS..Data received under thls Gpntract, and.any
derivative, data or.files, asfollows,:

1. The Conti^ctor" will mairit'aln proper security cdnlrpis; to protect Department
.confidential JriformaUpn cpiledled, pri^essi^, managed, and/or stpred In the deliyery
-of contracted, services.

.2; the Contractor will maintain policies- .and procedures to protect Department
vcwnftdentiial infdnriatlpn 'throughout the information lifecycle,-. where .applicable, (from
.Ration, ^n^orrhation, use, -storage and secure, destruction) regardless of the
fnedia used to store the data (I.e.. tage, disk, paper, etc.).

VS.Lastupdate.lOroa/.IB. E>WWlK'. CemiradbrlnaiBtsMfe .
DHHS.IrtfonraUon

iSodirttyRoqidfemenis ,n-ik-9niQ
- Pfl^s'ora D8to_i21zL;^
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3 The Cbhtractbr vs^ll maintain appropriate . autheniication arid .access cdntrdls Jp
' ^ntraS6/;;s)^t^^^ Uansmit, orstore Department'confidential,info'rrnatiqn

where.applicable.

4. The ̂ Qphti^ctor will ensure proper security monitoring capabijlties are In place to.
detect 'potential ̂ security .everits'' that ;impact Sta^' of "NH systems and/or
beparfihent confidential InformaUori for Cdntrador provided,^s^^^

5. the Contractor.will provide regular security awareness and
.Users In support of protec bepaitment.confidentlallhformatiOn.

6.. If .the Cphtractor ,will be subcontracting any core funt^jpris pf the. engagement,
'suppprtirig- the services'for State'df New Harnpshire.-'the .CbnUector will rnalntain a
prc^rarri :df ■ an Irrtert^ process or-processes- that, defines sf^clfic security
.exfieOtatibn?- and rh^ security re,qulrements that -at a minimum
match thosetSi- the Gbntiedor^ Including breach nbtifi^^^^ requirements..

7, The Contractor wlH work.;With' the" Department to sigh and comply v^th all applicable
'Stetexf Hampshire-and Department system-access and authorizatipn policies
and'-prbcedures; systems access form's^ and cwrnputer use-.agreements as part .of
ebialning and riiaintainir^ .access to any bepartmenl.sysilem(s). Agreements'will be
'OTmp!etbbJhd|sighed;by th applicable subrbpntra^orsarior to
aystem access.belrtg authdrized!

■,8; If .the bepartmerit'determines .the CoiTtfactbf is a'Business Associate pursuant to 45
,CFR:-1'60.'103'^ thefCtohtractbr'v^ exj^ute a HIPM.Business Assoclaie^^
(BMj^with'' th^ is respbhslble; for' mairit^ compliance with the

.'agreement.

'9; The'Contractor will work with the pepartirnent atJts re.quesftp cbrhpietejq System
(Management, Survey. The 1 purpose .of the :5urvey Is to enableythe pBjjartmeht'.ehd
Cdt^tractdf to rnonitdr for any. changes- In risks, iHreats. -and vulnerabilities that rnay
,b<xUr eveV' the life^ .engagement. The survey will be completed

■ annually/er ah altdrnate time frame:^^^ with agreernent by.
the'Contractor, or the bepartmeht htay request ̂ the .du^ l^./.pbrnpleled when the

.scope-of the .engagement t^tween the Defjartmehi.'and the.Cohtractor.changes.

10.The Cbhtractbr will ribt. store, knowingly ipr unkhdwipgly, any State-9^ New Harppshire
orsbepartment data offshore br putside .the boundaries .Slates .unless
prior, express -written consent Is obtalhed from the Infb.nriatibn Security Office
iea.dershlp member within the Departrheht.,

11. pata Security Breach. Liability. In the:event of any security breach Cpntractdr shajl
make;lff9rts Tq Inves^^ (fuses'of the, breach, promptly take measures to
prevehl fbtbrV'breach e rhihimlze any darnage or lo^ resulting'from the. breach.
The Stale,shall rdbbvef frdm ihe'Cohtrdcibr"all/wsls pf.response and recovery from

\

V5. Lbs! update KWW/ld EfhWl K . Contractor IniUili
DHHS InfoVritetlon

^cuHly R(^Ureraenis .. ic oaVo
""pa^eore pata ^io-xuie
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the breach, including-but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
CTSts associated with Website arid telephone pall center services necessary due to
the breach.'

12; Goritractor must., comply with all applicable statutes and reguiations regarding the
privacy .arid security'of Confidential ihformalioh, and, must In ^ali other respects
rnalni'ain the privacy arKi security of PI and PHI at a level arid s<»pe,.^at Is ridt je^,
ttian the level and scope of requiremerlts applicable to federal agencies. Including,
buhript limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act.of 1974 (5.U.S.C,'§ 552a), pHHS
Privacy Act Regliiatibns (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
p p;p; F>arts'i6Q^and'1W)^^^^ proieptjpns for individually identifiable health
information and aa applicable under

13. Cdhtradbr agrees'tb establish and rtiaintairi apprbpriate administrative, technical, and
physical .safeguat:ds^';to protect" the cbnflderiU^ the. Conftdpm^ Data and to .
preverit unauthorized use or access to H The .safeguards must provide, a leyel and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of securiW requirements'
estabiished by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resodrces/ProCur.ement at https://vinfow.nh.gov/doil/vendor/iridex htm
for the- Department of Iriformatlon Technbldgy [X)licies, guidelines, standards.- and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14.:Cbrilfactor agree^ to maintain a documented breach hotification and incident
response pl^ocess; the Cbntradtor will notify, the State's Privacy Officer :end the
•rState's Security Officer :bf any security breach immodiptbly. at-the-jemail .addresses
provided In Sectibn VI. this includes a corifidbhtiai .Inforrriation breach, computer
security Incideril., or [Suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshiib'^^ystemethat connect to the State of New Hampshire hetworX.

15..Cbhtrac^ rii.ust restrict-access to the Gonfidential Data obtained Under this.
.G^hiract to only-those authorized-End Users who need such DHHS Data to
. pedorm Iheif bfficlai duliesiri cori^ with purposes identified in this Contract.

•16. fhe Contractor must ensure that.all End Users:

a. 'Comply with,- such safeguards as referenced in -Se^bn IV A, above,
iinplefriented To protect Cbrifldential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b., safeguard ttiis! Information at all times.-.

c. ensure, that laptops and other, electronic devices/medla-cbritainlng PHI, PI. or
PFI arerericfypted.arid pasSv/brd-pr^^

d:. Send emails.cbntairiirig Confidehtial Informaljgn only if encrypted and being
sent to and . being received by erriail addresses of persons authorized to
receive such'inforrrialion.

VS-Laslupdsle'l 0/09/18 .bchiWtK . .CohU^flrxftWa
OHHS InfCKTnatlon.

'^cufltyRequlromo'rits « -c oriiQ
'  ' Page? 6f9 ■ " Pate. -J-iOrZUlU
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit k

DHHS Information Security Requirements

0.. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent pennitted by law.

f; Confidential Information received under j^is Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is
physically and t^hndlogically secure, from acc»ss'by unauthorized persons
during duly, hours as vwll as non-duty hours (etg., dbpr lo^s. card keys,
bionietric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized. End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, includir^ any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be .encrypted at all ;times" when In transit!:at rest, or when,
stored oh portabl.e media as required in section IV above.

h; in ail other instances Confidential Data must be niaintalned. used ;and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determlried by a risk-based
assessrhent of the circumstances involved:

,1. understand that their user credentials (user name and passWbr'dj must hot be
shared vwth'anypne; End .Users will keep their credential Information secure,.
This:^pplies tb" credentials used to accessHhe site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

'Gbritractor Is responsible for oversight and incompliance of their End Users. DHHS,
rreSefves^:the- right tb..'<»nduct bnsite Inspe^ohs; lb .monltpr compliance with this:
rfCbntrabt.' jncludirig the. privacy :and security reqUirerheiit's provided in herein, ,HIPAA.-
.and other"applicatilb laws end Federal regulations until such,time the Confidehtial Data,
'•is^dispoSed of Iri ac^fdancewith this Contract.

y. LOSS REPORTING

the Contractor must-notify the Stale's Privacy Officer arid Security Officer of any
Security Incidents arid Breaches irhmediateiy, at the remait addresses, provided in

■.SeCtlqriyi.

The'Cbntraclor must further haridle and report Incidents and Breaches ihvolving, PHI, in
accbrdariCe with the. agehc/s ,documented, Inpideht Handlirig. and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordarice with 42 ,C.F;R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
■noty4thstandihg, Contractors compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.

■ Cbhtraclo.riS prpcedureS rnust.'also address how the Contractor will:
i. ldent^ Incident's;
2. Determine if personally identifiable Inforitialipn Is l.nyolyed In Incidents;-.
3. Report suspected'or,confirmed Incidents as required in this;Exhibit.6r P-37;'

•4. Identify {and convene a ,;cp,re response group to determine the risk I.evel of Incidents
arid deiermirie risk-based respons^^ to Incidents; and

V5; .Lasi update 1(W9/18 .K Cbnlracior InWals
DHHS Intoirollpn

SecuHty Raqiirbmcnte .owe mi o
P«Qa8of9 Date; 4-1b-4U1U
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New Hiimp^hire Pepartmentbf Health iand Human Services

Exhibit k

pHHS information Security Requirements

5. DeienTiine. whether npUficatioh .Is: required, and. if so, identtiy appropriate
Brdabh hotifiCTtidh methi^s. timing, souite^ and ^whtents from among'different
diptiohS; arid deaf cosfs' associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigatlqn
measures.

Incidents -and/or. Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed: and reported, as
applicable, in accordance.with'NH RSA 359-0:20.

yi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHiS Privacy

DHHSPrwacj0fficer@dhhs.nh.g6v

B. DHHSVSecuriiy Officer
pHHSinformattonSecurityQffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V$'. Last upd^'.1{Vt9/18. E^.tK
DHHS Infprrnatton . _

Secwity ̂ ulre.menL8',
Pa^Boffli

Contractor Irdtials

Dato 3-15^2019
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 326
Rochester Hill Road Rochester, NH 03867.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item 29B), the Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37 General Provisions, Paragraph 18 Amendment, and Exhibit C-1
Revisions to General Provisions, Section 3 Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of services, increase funding and extend the term of
the agreement to support continued delivery of these services; and _

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2021.

2. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Sen/ices Section 2. Subsection 2.7, by adding Paragraph 2.7.15., to
read:

2.7.15 The Contractor shall ensure patients seeking services receive a Doorway referral
for substance use and ongoing care coordination if the individual:,

2.7.15.1 Enters care directly through the Contractor; and

2.7.15.2 Consents to information sharing with the Doonway(s).

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Sen/ices, Section 4 to read:

4. Reporting Requirements

4.1 The Contractor shall be required to prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond
to periodic surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the
Department and/or SAMHSA.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by adding Section 5, Performance Measures, to read:

5. Performance Measures

5.2 The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract
management, improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on
successful outcomes.

5.^ Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services, by adding Section 6, State Opioid Response (SCR) Grant
Standards, to read:

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standard

6.1. In order to receive payments for sen/ices provided through SOR grant funded initiatives,

the Contractor shall ensure each Site:

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initial ;
I
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DocuSign Envelope ID; BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-807C-dF99328BD192

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

6.1.1. Establishes formal Information sharing and referral agreements with all Doorways

for substance use services that comply with all applicable confidentiality laws,

including 42 CFR Part 2.

6.1.2. Completes client referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use services

within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the program.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30) days

of the contract effective date.

6.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract

effective date to review contract implementation.

6.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans

associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)

days of the contract effective date.

6.5. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs funds

and respite shelter funds are in compliance with the Department and SAMHSA
requirements.

6.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall assist clients with enrolling in public or

private health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage and will have

staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid.

6.7. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall accept clients on Medicaid Assisted

Treatment (MAT) and facilitate access to MAT on-site or through referral for all clients
supported with SOR grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

6.8. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White

HIV/AIDs program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

6.9. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly

screened for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of treatment

planning.

6.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with all

appropriate Department, State of NH, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA), and other Federal terms, conditions, and requirement.

6.11. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,

directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using

marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

6.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

6.11.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization that

provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or

mental disorders.

6.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

6.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.
— OS

Hope on Haven Hill. Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initial

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-04-A01 Page 2 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

6.11.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department within

thirty (30) days of contract approval.

6.12. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not

limited to:

6.12.1. Invoicing:

6.12.2. Funding restrictions; and

6.12.3. Billing.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B-1 by reducing the total budget amount by $37,998, which is identified as unspent
funding of which $14,356 is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY
21, as specified in Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 NCE Budget; and of which $23,642 Is being carried
forward to fund activities in this Agreement for SPY 21, as specified, in part, in Exhibit B-5
Amendment #1 SOR II Budget.

8. Modify Exhibit B-2 by reducing the total budget amount by $39,558, which Is identified as unspent
funding, of which $18,491 is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY
21, as specified, in part, in Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR II Budget; and of which $21,067 is
being carried fonA^ard to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY 22, as specified in Exhibit B-
6 Amendment #1 SOR II Budget.

9. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1, NCE Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #1, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

litiali
IVTI

Hnne on Haven Hill. Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initiall
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

ar

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and

effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to September 29, 2020 upon the date of Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,
\

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/21/2020

Date

C—OocuSlgtHd by:

Title: Director

12/18/2020

Date

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
•DbcuSlgntd by:

Norcon

Title: Executive Director

Hope on Haven Hill. Inc.

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-04-A01

Amendment #1

Page 4 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID: BAAA1356-C2A5-4E7&^D7C-8F99328BD192

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

12/22/2020
DocuSwntd by:

rlne Plno's"
Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

EXHIBIT 8 Amendment #1

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as
awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2

CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR

§200.87.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the

fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-6 Amendment #1 Budget.

4. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

4.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

4.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows:

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization
(MCO), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the

MCO.

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale

Program.

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,
charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)
working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for

authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall

Hop© on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.

The Contractor shall ensure;

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for

wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries

and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work

performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the

Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide

marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference

grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the

FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to

exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

Hope on Haven Hilli Inc.

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-04-A01

Rev. 01/08/19
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on

third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other

financial information as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with further
restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to

melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

8. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the
last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

10. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract

completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance with
funding requirements.

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, In whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Scope of Services,
including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

13. Notvyithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting

amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both

parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

justified.

14. Audits

Hope on Haven Hilt. Inc.

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-04-A01

Rev. 01/08/19

Exhibit B Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the

following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more, in federal funds

received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently

completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of

NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of

$1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C ̂The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and

Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by

an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days

after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the

Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the

Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be

required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an

independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the

Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is

understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for

any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments

made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.

RFA-2019.BDAS-02-RECOV.04.A01

Rev. 01/08/19
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stale of Uie State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HOPE ON HAVEN HILL

INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 25, 2015. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 735370

Certificole Number: 000503882.1

On.

fe)

ns^ TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 5lh day of November A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, lV. hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the'Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected ClefWSecretary/Officerof,
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on , 20 ̂  n . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That V K) (may Ijst more than one person)
(i^ame ancKTItle of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of IXAuCuj enter Into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force arid effect as Of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to ̂ Ich this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I furtfier certify that It is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltlon(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To th'e extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual, to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limltallpns are expressly stated herein.

Dated:/X
Signature of Elected Officer
Name, /-{(c..;/ifflC4 OT

Rev. 03/24/20



CORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMmoWVYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(8). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If (he certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certlflcato does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsemantjs).

PROOUCeR

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7426

Gl'Iord NH 03247-7425

name'^" FalrleyKenneally
(603)293-2791 (609)293.7188

ADO^ss: lRl'lRy®esln&uronce.net
MSURER(S) APPORDINO COVERACE NAICP

INSURER A: ^^^00 Insurance Co 25011

MSUREO

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.

P 0 80x1272

Roct>e«ter NH 03867

INSURER D: AmTrust Financial Services, Inc,

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E;

INSURER P :

Ti

l^

0

E

HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE PCXtCY PERIOD
DICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER CXX)UMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAYPERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
kCLUSIONS AN'D CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. UMfTS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

m. TYPEOFINSURANCe IRWiIl???' POUCYNUMBER
P(>UCVffP
fMM/DDTmnn

P6U0VEUP
IMMrDO/YYYY) UUIT8 1

A

X COMMERCMLOeNERAL UAtULITY

E 1 Xj OCCUR

WPP1871968 08/01/2020 06/01/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1.000,000

1 OAlMS-MfN: UAMAUb iu HLniI:IJ , 100,000

UED EXP (Any ona Hrton) , 6,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY J 1,000,000

□

*LAOGRrKSATE UMIT APPUES PER;

POI.CY n ̂  Q LOC
OTHER:

GENERALAOOREQATE J 3,000,000
PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG , 3,000,000
Abuse and Molestation $ 1,000,000

B

AU1

X

rOMOBILE UABILITY 1
1

WPP1871967 00 08/01/2020 08/01/2021

COMBINED SlNOli LHJlf
rEfl iKddnntl S 1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
hHRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNED
AUTOS ONLY

DODH-Y NJURY (Pv porson) s

BODLY INJURY (Por axldant) $
PROPERTY OLUagS
(PwaKldanl) »

Uninsured motorist S 1,000,000

A
X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAO

X OCCUR
CLAMS.MAOE WUM1877069 00 08/01/2020 08/01/2021

EACHOaURf^CE , 1,000.000
AGGREGATE 5 1,000,000

OED 1 XI f^TENTION S 10.000 | s

A

1 WORKERS COUPGNSATION
ANOEHPLOYERS'LIASILnY y/N
ANY PHOPRIcTOR/PARTNEWEXECUINE rTH
OFFICOIAiCVeER EXCLUDED?
(llandati^ In NH) ' '
iryea,(lQaaib« under
DES(^?TION OF OPERATIONS bdow

N/A WWC34B1019 08/02/2020 08^32/2021

•V PER OTH-
^ STATUrP PR

: EL EACH ACCIDENT , 500.000
EL DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE J 500.000
E.L DISEASE • POLICY UMIT 5 500.000

-

0E8CRIP710N OP OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHCLE8 (ACORD 101, AddRlond Rwnwka Schedd*. may bo attachod If mott apac* la raqulrod)

Slale ol NH Deparlment at Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3867
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WfTH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rossrvod.

Tho ACORD name ilhd logo are registored marks of ACORD



C
):

HOPE ON HAVEN HILL

326 ROCHESTER HILL RD, ROCHESTER, NH

Mission: To provide a nurturing home environment to pregnant women with a
Substance Use Disorder who are in recovery, along with their children, for up to a
year postpartum.

Vision: By providing a safe home with comprehensive addiction treatment
services, family therapy, parenting classes, advancement in education and life
coaching we will support women who are homeless or imminently homeless in
their Recovery from addiction who pregnant or parenting. An enriched self-
esteem, confidence and a tool-belt full oflife skills will promote independence and
sustained Sobriety.

Email: info@hopeonhavenhUl.org

Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/hopeonhavenhill

Website: www.hopeonhavenhill.org

Mailing Address: Hope on Haven Hill P.O. Box 1272, Rochester, NH 03867

Phone: 603-841-5353 or 603-948-1230 .
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2020 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSE'I-S

Cash

Medical billing receivable
$  1,349,324 $

267,758

948,420

123,999

Total Current Assets 1.617.082 1,072,419

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Building
Land

Equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

Leasehold improvements

542,722

109,917
37,725

24,719

29,683

171,555

542,722

109,917

3,000

17,985

29,683

191,955

Less Accumulated depreciation
916,321

63,640

895,262

■36,198

Total Property and Equipment, Net .  852,681 859,064

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits 1.600

Total Other Assets 1,600

Total Assets $  2,469.763 $ 1,933,083

See Notes to Financial Statements
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, /

( 2020 2019

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 4,527 S 1,469
Accrued expenses 59,686 67,266
Current portion of long-term debt 31,576 31.262

Total Currenl Liabilities 95,789 99,997 ,

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Note payable, net of current portion 63,662 87,393
PPP loan 186,600

-

Total Long-Term Liabilities 250,262 87,393

Total Liabilities , 346,051 187.390

NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions 2,094,241 1,745,693
Net assets with donor restrictions 29,471 -

Total Net Assets 2,123,712 1.745.693

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 2,469,763 S 1,933,083

See Notes to Financial Statements
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Net Assets

Without Donor

Restrictions

Net Assets

With Donor

Restrictions Total

SLfPPORT AND REVENUE

Donations

Grants

Insurance reimbursement revenue

Fundraising
Other income

Interest income

Gain (loss) on disposal of property and equipment
Net assets released from restrictions

$  148,144
1.025,505

704,991

25,837
14,115

154

(18,910)
5,529

$  - S

35,000

(5,529)

148,144

1,060,505

704,991

25,837
14,115

154

(18,910)

Total Revenue and Other Support I.9D5.365 29,471 1,934,836

EXPENSES

Program Services

Supporting Services:
Management and general
Fundraising

1,144,830

308,448

103,539

- 1,144,830

308,448

103,539

Total Supporting Services 411,987 411,987

Total Expenses 1,556,817 1.556,817

Changes in Net Assets - 348,548 29,471 378,019

NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year 1,745,693 1.745,693

NET ASSETS, End of Year $  2,094,241 $  29,471 $ 2,123,712

See Notes to Financial Stateinenls

-4-



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

Net Assets Net Assets

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

[>onatioDS

Grants

Insurance reimbursement revenue

Fundraising
Other income

-  Interest income

Net assets released from restrictions

$  70,558
1,174,659
686,514

56,485
17,195

167

205,500

$  - $

(205.500)

70,558

1,174,659
686,514

56,485
17,195

167

Total Revenue and Other Support 2.211,078 (205.500) 2,005.578

EXPENSES

Program Services
Supporting Services:

Management and general
Fundraising

941,113

247,790

110.833

941,113

247,790

110.833

Total Supporting Services 358,623 358,623

Total Expenses 1,299,736 1,299,736

Changes in Net Assets 911.342 (205,500) 705.842

NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year 834,351 205.500 1,039,851

NET ASSETS, End of Year S  1,745.693 $  - $ 1,745,693

See Notes to Financial Statements

-5-



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Program Management
Services and General Fundraising Total

Salaries and wages $  647,396 S  146,743 $  69,056 $  863,195
OfTice expense 127,064 27,894 3,241 158,199
Employee benefits 68,036 41,149 . 109,185
Professional fees 46,728 23,657 5,397 75,782
Payroll taxes 52,592 11,921 5,610 70,123
Repair and maintenance 39,527 19,150 1,355 60,032
Direct services 42,957 - . 42,957
Rent 18,550 18,550 . 37,100
Depreciation 26,039 1,447 1,447 28,933
Insurance 17,175 5,953 . 23,128
Utilities 17,043 4,261 . 21,304
Memberships and registrations 15,173 715 809 16,697
Telephone and internet 9.355 4,677 1,559 15,591
Fundraising - - 14,105 14,105
Payroll service charges 4,910 1,113 524 6,547
Auto expenses 3,945 - - 3,945
Travel 2,029 152 355 2,536
Meals and entertainment 1,586 903 2,489
Taxes 2,129 - . 2,129
Dues and subscriptions 1,454 81 81 1,616
Interest expense 814 - . 814

Licenses and permits 328 82 - 410

$  1,144,830 S  308,448 $  103,539 $ 1,556.817

See Noles to Financial Statements
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

Program Management
Services and General Fundraising Total

Salaries and wages $  564,760 S  126,508 $  53,900 $  745,168
Professional fees 61,219 31,940 7,399 100,558
Employee benefits 53,014 31,633 . 84,647
Payroll taxes 50,648 11,480 5.402 67,530
Direct services 53,560 ■ . 53,560
Repair and maintenance 28,960 14,639 43,599
Fundraising - - 38,782 38,782
Insurance 24,919 5,088 . 30,007
Office expense 16,533 5,276 1,377 23,186
Depreciation 20,538 - . 20,538
Rent 9,600 9,600 . 19,200
Utilities 14,506 3,626 - 18,132
Telephone and internet 6,597 3,299 1,100 10,996
Memberships and registrations 8,205 1,146 1,148 10,499
Taxes 9,623 - . 9,623
Auto expenses 6,595 - . 6,595
Dues and subscriptions 3,690 1,901 . 5,591
Payroll service charges 4,021 911 429 5,361
Travel 1,923 144 337 2,404
Interest expense 1,830 291 . 2,121
Licenses and permits - - 959 959
Meals and entertainment 372 308 _ 680

$  941.113 S  247,790 $  110,833 $ 1,299.736

See Notes to Financial Statements
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES;

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Gain (loss) on disposal of property and equipment
Changes in assets and liabilities that used (provided) cash:
Medical billing receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deposits

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net proceeds (repayments) on line of credit

PPP loan

Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

2020 2019

S  378,019 S 705,842

28,933 20,538

18,910 -

(143,759) (68,386)
- 642

1,600 5,000

3,058 (9,162)

(7.580) 4,312

279.181 658,786

(41,460) (390,505)

(41,460) (390,505)

(28,999)
186,600 -

(23,417) (31,156)

163,183 (60,155)

400,904 208,126

948,420 740,294

$  1,349,324 S - 948,420

1,616 $

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Interest expense $

There was no cash paid during 2020 and 2019 for taxes on income.

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

'inhere were no noncash investing and financing activities for the years ended June 30,2020 and 2019.

See Notes to Financial Statements
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FLNANaAL STATEMENTS

YEAI^ ENDED JUNE 30,2020 AND 2019

Nip/g 1 - Summary of Sienifkant Accounting Policies

Nature of Activities - Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (The Organization) was organized November 25,2015. The Organization is
a level 3.5 substance use treatment ftcility serving homeless, pregnant and newly parenting mothers who are in recovery.
The Organization was established to provide a nurturing, therapeutic home environment for women with substance use
disorder who are seeking recovery. The organization also provides outpatient counseling services through individual and
group counseling, as well as an Intensive Outpatient Program for individuals with substance use disorder.

In December 2016, the Organization opened an eight-bod residential facility, which provides a safe home with
comprehensive addiction treatment services, including group and individual therapy, 12-step programs, smoking cessation
seminars, family therapy, parenting classes, educational, job, and life coaching, and case management, to support women and
their families in their recovery from addiction.

In August 2019, the Organization opened a second facility, Abi's Place, an eight-room transitional recovery house, for
modiers in recovery and their children. Abi's Place offers women who have completed a residential program the opportunity
to live in a transitional setting that offers assistance with employment, childcare, and continued recovery support.

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting,
and accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payablcs, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation - The Organization follows the provisions of FASB AccounfStandards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14,
Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities. In accordance with these provisions, the Organization is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets: net assets
without donor resUnctions and net assets with donor rcst ictions.

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions, accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that 1) may or will be met either
by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time or 2) Uiey be maintained permanently by the Organization.

Cash and Cash Equivalents • For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted highly
liquid Investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and have a maturity of three months or less
when acquired to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains cash balances at several banks. From time to time during
the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Organization's bank account balances may have exceeded federally insured
limits. Management has evaluated this risk and considers it to be a normal business risk.

Donated Assets - Donated marketable securities and other noncash donations are recorded as conU-ibutions at their estimated
fair values at the date of donation. Donations of inventory items held for resale are recognized when sold because the
Organization does not have an objective measurement for determining fair value.

Donated Services - Donated services are reflected in the financial statements at the fair value of the services received only if
the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills that are provided by individuals
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
Stales of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

-9-



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2020 AND 2019

Note 1 - Summary ofSienificant Accountine Policies (continued)

Income Tax Status - The Organization is exempt from federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, donations to the Organization qualify for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b)(1)(A), and the Organization has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section
509(aX2).,

The federal informational tax return of the Organization is subject to examination, generally for three years after the returns
are filed.

Grants and Medical Billing Receivable - Grants and medical billing receivable are stated at the amount management expects
to collect from outstanding balances. Management considers accounts receivable to be delinquent based on the date of
unpaid invoices. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the cuireiit status of individual accounts. Balances that are
still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection cfTorts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a reduction to accounts receivable. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2020 and
2019. The Organization does not require collateral when extending credit,

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment is staled at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which is 5 to 30 years and a value over
$1,000. Normal repairs and maintenance are expensed as Incurred. Upon sale or retirement of depreciable assets, the related
cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts. Any gain or loss on the sale or retirement is recognized in
current operations. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use, and contributions of cash that must be used to
acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those
donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired
assets are placed in service as instructed by the donors. The Organization reclassifics net assets with restrictions to net assets
without restrictions at that time.

Contributions - Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenue when the underlying promises are received by the
Organization. Gifts of cash and other assets are reported as net assets with restrictions if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated lime
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with restrictions are reclassified to net assets without
restrictions and reported in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets as net assets released from restrictions.
Restricted contributions which are both received and released within the same year are recorded as net assets without
restrictions

Functional Allocation of Expenses - The expenses of providing various program and supporting services have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain expenses have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Allocations may be direct or Indirect according to the type of expense incurred,
The expenses that have been allocated include salaiies, payroll taxes and employee benefits which have been allocated based
on an estimation of time and effort and professional fees, repairs and maintenance, rent, utilities, insurance, office expenses,
telephone and internet and memberships and registrations which have been allocated based on an estimation of usage and
consumption.

Advertising Costs - 'ITie Organization's policy is to expense advertising costs as they are incurred. There was no advertising
expense for the years ended June 30,2020 and 2019,

-10-



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2020 AND 2019

Note 2 ~ Line of Credit

In January 2017 the Organization obtained a line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $24,999. In July 2017
the amount was increased to $50,000. The line bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rale plus 1.50% witli a floor of
5.25%. The interest rate was 5.25% and 7.00% at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The line is secured by all personal
property of the Organization. There was no interest expense paid on the line during the year ended June 30, 2020. Interest
expense paid on the line was $969 for the year ended June 30,2019.

Note 3 - Note Payable

The following summarizes the Organization's long-term debt obligations as of June 30,:

Terms Security

Term loan with the New Mampshire
Health and Education Facilities

Authority. Monthly payments of
principal and inlo^sl of ̂ ,692. The
loan has a fixed interest rate of 1.00%

and matures in March 2023. Building

Total Debt

Less: current portion

2020 2019

95.238 $ 118.655

95,238 118,655

31.576 31.262

63.662 S_87.393

Interest expense under this debt agreement amounted to $814 and $1,152 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Future minimum principal payments under the agreement ajc as follows at June 30,:

$2021 31,576
2022

2023

31,893
31.769

25,.23.8

-11-



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2020 AND 2019

Note 4 - Restrictions and Limitationx ofNet Asset Balances

Net assets with restrictions consisted of the following at June 30,.

Piayscapes
Transportation

Total net Assets with Resu-ictions

2020 Mi

19,471

10.000

mm

The sources of net assets released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by
occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by donors were as follows for the years ended June 30,:

Piayscapes
Purchase of rehab location

2020

5,529 S

2019

205.500

Total Net Assets Released from Restrictions $ 5.52^ $

Net assets without donor restrictions consistwl of the following at June 30,:

Board Designated:
Facilities

Capital campaign
Future expansion

Total Board Designated

Undesignated

Total Net Assets Without Restrictions

2020

$  150,000 $
150,000
150.000

450,000

1.644.241

$  2.094.241 $

2019

1.745.693

Note 5 - Leases

In March 2017 the Organization entered into a two year lease for office space under the terms of an operating lease. The lease
ended in February 2019 at which point the Organization became a tenant at will. The lease was terminated in October 2019.
The lease called for monthly payments of $1,600. Total rent paid under this lease was $7,076 and $19,200 for the yeara ended
June 3D, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Organization entered into a new lease for an office space location in September 2019. The lease commenced on
November 1, 2019 and calls for monthly rent of $3,336. The lease tenninales in October 2022 and the Organization has the
option to extend for two additional terms of one year each. The base rent of the lease increases annually by 2.00% and the
first increase is scheduled for November 2020. Total rent paid under this lease was $30,024 for the year ended June 30, 2020.
Future rental payments under this lease will be $40,566 In 2021, $41,380 in 2022 and $13,884 in 2023.
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HOPE ON HAVEN HH^L, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED .lUNE 30,2020 AND 2019

Note 6 - Retirement Plan ̂

In January 2019 the Organization adopted a Simple IRA plan. All hill-time employees are eligible to participate in the plan.
The Organization's matching contributions under this plan totaled $8,708 and $7,676 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively. .

Note 7- Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization derived approximately 27% and 30% of Its operating revenue and support from a government agency for
the years ended June 30,2020 and 2019, respectively.

Note 8 - Liquidity and AvaUahilitv ofHesources

The Organization has the following financial assets available within one year of the balance sheet date to meet cash needs for
general expenditure:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1.137.611

Total $ 1.I37.6I1

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general
expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date. As part of the Organization's liquidity management, it has a policy to
structure iLs financial a.ssets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.

Note 9 - Uncertainty

Starting In March 2020, local, U.S., and world governments have encouraged self-isolation to curtail the spread of the global
pandemic, coronavirus disease (C0VrD-l9), by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and
imposing limitations on travel and the size and duration of group meetings. Most sectors arc experiencing disruption to
business operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed government reimbursement, volatility In investment
returns, and reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its
potential economic ramifications, and any government actions to mitigate them. Accordingly, while management cannot
quantify the financial and other impacts to the Organization as of November 25, 2020, management believes that a material
impact on the Organization's position and results of ftiturc operations is reasonably possible.

The U.S. govemment has responded with tliree phases of relief legislation as a response to the COVID-19 outbreak. The
most recent legislation was enacted into law on March 27,2020, called the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
Act (CARES Act), a statute to address the economic impact of the COVlD-19 outbreak. The CARES Act, among other
things, 1) authorizes emergency loans to distressed businesses by establishing, and providing funding for, forgivable bridge
loans, 2) provides additional funding for grants and technical assistance, 3) delays due dates for employer payroll taxes and
estimated tux payments for organizations, and 4) revises provisions of the Internal Revenue Code (or IRC if defined
elsewhere), including those related to losses, charitable deductions, and business interest. The Organization applied for and
received a loan of$I86,600 under the CARES Act and is monitoring financial operations during llie forgiveness period of the
loan. The expenditure of the proceeds is subject to certain terms and conditions which may result in the loan being partially
or fully forgiven. The loan bears interest at 1.00% and matures in May 2022. There arc no payments due for the fust 10
months of the loan and the remaining full loan balance Is due In monthly payments over the final 18 months of the loan.
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2020 AND 2019

Note 10 - Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through November 25, 2020 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Other than the uncertainty diselosed In Note 9, there were no subsequent events that
were material to the fmancial statements at November 25,2020.
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Board of Directors

2020

Sarah Landres, Esq. - Chair

NH Public Defender

603-275-0265

Sarah.Iandr€s(® emall.com

Dr. Joe Hannon

Volunteer, Community Leader, Politician

603-418-5531

Joehannon4nh(a)gmail.com

Term ending: 12/2021 Term ending: 10/2022

Jllllan Mulrooney - Vice Chair

Human Resource Specialist

508-269-5706

JillmulroonevBBOhotmail.com

Kathleen Routhier, RN

Assistant Nurse Manager, Women's and

Children's Unit

Wentworth Douglas Hospital

603-767-4855

rdrouthierOgmail.com

Term ending: TBD

Term ending: 10/2024

Michael Murphy, -Treasurer

Murphy, Powers & Wilson, P.C.

603-926-8063

michael^SmDandwcDa.com

Term ending: 9/2022

Colin Walker

Ameriprise Financial Services

Colin.walker(S)ambf.com

603-767-2992

Term ending: 02/2024

Christine List-Secretary

Orr& Rend, PA

857-753-8827

Clistl27iS)email.com

Nick Couturier

Real Estate Specialist

603-817-3876

nick6464(® cmail.com

Term ending: 02/2025 Term ending: 02/2025
Susan Daigle

Portsmouth, NH 03801

603-682-9607

SDaigle(5)comcast.net

Term ending: 9/2026

Rebecca Bananski, MPH, DO

Physician, Garrison Women's Health

Wentworth Douglass Hospital

603-817-7679

R0196b@hotmail.com

Term ending: 9/2026



Kerrylee Norton, RN

OBJEaiVE

Management level leadership position within a system of healthcare for pregnant and parenting women
utilizing commLinlty relations, program development, grant writing, networking, fund development,
financial, strategic planning/thinking and board development/management with opportunity for high
community impact and personal growth.

July 2015- Present - Executive Director, Hope on Haven Hill, Rochester, NH
\

Began In the organization asCo-Founder and Program Director of emerging Non-ProfIt Residential
treatment facility for Pregnant Women with Substance Use Disorder. Responsibilities Include but not
limited to, Filing for 501 c(3). Grant writing, preparing and testifying for Variance and Planning Board,
Submitting application for Level 3.5 Inpatient treatment facility licensure, Prepare policies and
procedures and admission criteria, prepare facility policies, Coordinate fundraising and volunteers. Give
presentations to local schools, civic agencies, businesses and NH allies, Advocate for Prevention,
Treatment and Recovery services for NH and care for Women who reached out to us while unable to
access care in NH and assist them with getting support and treatment.
After opening supervise and train Recovery support staff. Maintain schedule for recovery support for
programming schedule of residential program. Implement, monitor and supervise medication
management of residential programming. Implement, monitor and supervise urine drug screenings for
residential program. Responsible for day to day operations of residential program.
Was promoted to Executive Director in August 2019. Responsible for day-to-day management,
administration, operations, and development for HHH.
•  Directly manages S2M annual budget which includes state funds, private donations, funds from

foundations and grants, donor solicitations, etc. Provides direct financial reporting to these
entities and the.Board of Directors.

•  Provide leadership to staff and community to ensure the mission and strategic plan is carried
out.

•  Oversees dally operations, administration, development, capital purchases and clinical.
•  Recruit, develop, and manage staff- administration, clinical and clinical.

•  Provide direct supervision to: Operations Director and Clinical Director and other staff as needed
and appropriate.

•  Create and maintain policies and procedures for all programs and operations for the
organization.

•  Assist the Board of Directors in developing annual budgets, financial planning, and funding of
programming, initiatives and strategies that will propel the agency forward (i.e., billing service
expansion,-facility expansion, etc)



11/2008-11/13/2015- Maternal Child/Health/Prenatal Nurse, Garrison Women's Health Center Dover
NH

Triage and Infertility Nurse in Busy OB-GYN office. Responsibilities Include but not limited to compieting
triage on ali patient caiis, New Prenatal OB Intakes, Essure Procedures, Infertility coverage Including call
weekends, Employee Health, OSHA training and compliance for aii employees, new hire training and
policy and protocol Implementation.

1/2006-4/2010- Pre-op and Post-op RN/CPSN and Skin wellness, Atlantic Plastic Surgical Center,
Portsmouth, NH

All facets of care for patients undergoing Ambulatory Surgery. Admit patients, Circulate and Scrub
during surgical cases and Recover patients in PACU. Certified as a Certified Piastic Surgical Nurse with
National Certification in Skin Weilness. Certified to perform Microdermabrasion, Chemical Peels and
Laser Therapy.

5/1994-10/2008-Moferno/ Child Health HN/Resource Nurse, Portsmouth Regional Hospital, Portsmouth,
NH

All facets of Maternal Health, including Labor and Delivery, Postpartum Well Baby Nursery, Level 2
Nursery, Pediatrics, Scrub and PACU for Cesarean Sections, Breast Feeding support. Sibling Class
facilitator, NRP instructor, PALS instructor, Resource/Charge Nurse and Staff orientation.

1/2002-1/2005-Ped/ofr/c/?ep/sfere£/ Nurse, Portsmouth Pediatric Associates, Portsmouth, NH

Weekend coverage for Triage care for sick visits of all Pediatric patients in a very busy pediatric practice.
As the only nurse covering on weekends, I became competent in ali facets of pediatric care and
emergencies.

1/2002-1/2005- Triage RN and Childbirth Educator, Harbour Women's Health, Portsmouth, NH

Triaged all patient medical concerns. Reviewed all Laboratory reports and followed up with patient
resuits and treatment protocois. Assisted Dr. Lantlnen with infertility patients. Taught and coordinated
aii Childbirth Education programs.

5/19993-5/1995- Triage RN, York OB-GYN Associates, York Me

Triage ail patient concerns and assist physicians with patient care.

9/19SS-S/X99A-Substitute School Nurse, SAD 60, Berwick ME

Substitute School Nurse in SAD 60. Worked in ail School. Elementary, Middle School and High School.

Education:

•  NHCC, Manchester, NH- Associates in Science, Nursing
•  Franklin University, Bachelor of Science, Nursing
•  Franklin University, BSN-MSN Nursing current enrolled, graduation 2022

Past and Present Certifications:

NRP, BCLS, ACLS, CPSN and STABLE. Maine State Registered Nurse, License compact state.

References upon request



Lisa M. PoUard, MBA, C.P.M.

EXPERIENCE

2018 - present Contract Admimstrator/Dcputv Director. Contracts and Procurement Unit

State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, 129 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301

Current responsibilities include supervision of and assigning work projects for a staff of 13 contract specialists; working
closely with legal counsel in the preparation and review ofRFPs, contracts, MOUs, and amendments; providing guidance
on contract language, rules, laws, and policies; ensuring compliance with state and federal grants requirements;
facilitating intake and vendor meetings, staff trainings, and continuing education; participating in special projects
including contracts process improvements, LEAN, and reorganizations, as well as acting as a liaison between the
contracts union and all DHHS program areas.

2014-2017 Director. Division of Procurement and Support Services (P&SSl

State of New Hampshire, Department of Administrative Services, 25 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

Responsibilities included directing nine Division areas: a team ofpurchasing professionals within the Bureau of Purchase
& Property (BoPP); the Bureau of Graphic Services; the Surplus Food Distribution program, wliich supplies USDA food
across the state for the NH School Lunch Program; the Stale and Federal Surplus Property programs at White Farm; as
well as the state's Real Property; Fleet; Recycling; Merchant Card, and Procurement (PCard) programs.

Duties included reviewing requests for bid/proposal (RFBs/RFPs); drafting/review of statewide commodity and service
contracts, MOUs, SLAs, SaaS agreements, etc.; providing oversight of internal/external audits; working closely with the
State's legal teams to apply rules and laws, and to interpret language related to the activities within the Division; updating
Division policies and procedures; working closely with the Department of Information Technology (DoIT) on statewide
IT initiatives such as credit card acceptance by agencies, implementation of a new ERP/POS system at the NH Liquor
Commission, upgrades to the State's financial and time systems, etc.; contract negotiations; right-to-know requests;
vendor protests/hearings; approving purchase orders; preparation/oversight of Division budgets; LEAN project executive
sponsor, and providing legislative input as needed.

Highlights:

• Assisted in dratfing procurement and ethics language for the Senate bill which later became RSA 21-0:37
• Created standardized procurement process guides, RFP template, updated statewide procurement and contract

training, and implemented contract management procedures for all statewide contracts
• Oversaw the expansion of the PCard program from approximately $50,000 in 2014 to $16.5M in 2017
• Oversaw three successful annual statewide Payment Card Industry (PCI) credit card audits

2006-2014 Purchasing Mnpngcr/Contract Specialist

University System of New Hampshire, Purchasing & Contract Services Dept., 11 Brook Way, Durham, NH 03824

Responsibilities included purchasing and contract administration for large dollar projects at the various USNH
institutions. Duties included preparing formal requests for mfbrmation/proposals/bids (RFI/RFP/RFBs); conducting site
inspections; vendor negotiations; assuring compliance with USNH, state, and federal policies and requirements for
procurement; ovemeelng insurance requirements and mitigating risk to the USNH institutions; assisting with
internal/external audits; and supervision of support staff. Worked closely with the USNH senior contract officer and
legal counsel to draft, review and negotiate UNH/USNM contract documents.



Highlights:

• Chair of the USNH OS/PAT Employee Council which collaborated with USNH HR to update employee policies

and benefits.

• Project manager for System-wide print management program 'TrintSmart" which saved USNPI institutions over

$625,000 and resulted in a 56.31% reduction in energy usage in its first full yeai* (2012-13).

• Worked with UNH IT staff to implement UNH's Safe Electronic Equipment Disposal (SEED) Program resulting in

a cost savings of more than $28K from 2010-2014, and a reuse of more than 16 tons of equipment.
•  Promoted increased awareness and use of the UNH Surplus Property program which resulted in an additiorial $25K

in revenue annually, while diverting hundreds of usable items to public schools and non-profits.
• Worked with the Sustainability Office and students to implement the 100% post-consumer recycled copy paper

policy at UNH.-

2000-2006 Purchasing Agent

University System of New Hampshire, Purchasing & Contract Services Dept., 11 Brook Way, Durham, NH 03824

Responsibilities included purchasing and contract administration of commodities and services for all four USNH

institutions, including information technology and office equipment; printing; supplies and equipment for dining halls,
motor vehicles; and independent contractors. Conducted campus-wide purchasing training; sourcing; site inspections;

pre-proposal meetings and bid openings; contract negotiations; and processed purchase orders. Oversaw surplus property

and was the "green" buying specialist for UNH.

1995-2000 Purchasing Agcnt/Production Coordinntor/ISO 9000 Trainer

Label Tech, Inc., 16 Interstate Drive, Somersworth, Nil 03878 {

Responsible for the purchasing and inventory of all raw materials, tooling and other supplies and services for a printing
company. Completed ISO-9001 Certified Quality Control Auditor Training, established a company quality control

policy, which led to ISO-9001 certificution in December 1997.
I

EDUCATION

2003-2006 Plvmoiitb State University. Plymouth. New Hampshire

Received Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree in Spring 2006.

1984-1988 Hawthorne College. Antrim. New Hampshire

Graduated cum laude in April 1988 with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration and a minor in

Psychology. President of Student Council 1987-1988.

CERTIEICATIQiN

Received designation as Certified Purchasing Manager (C.P.M.) through the Institute for Supply Management (ISM) in
July 2009. Renewed July 20) 4.

TECHNICAL SKILLS

Experienced in utilizing the following software and databases: Microsoft Word, Excel, & PowerPoint; Access;
FUemaker Pro; SCT Banner (Oracle); Lawson/IiiforNH First (Oracle), Unimarkel ERP, and the internet. Current Notary

Public.

REFERENCES Available upon request.



Highlights;

• Chair of the USNH OS/PAT Employce'Council which collaborated with USNH HR to update employee policies
and benefits.

• Project manager for System-wide print management program "PrintSmart" which saved USNH institutions over
$625,000 and resulted in a 56.31% reduction in energy usage in its first fiill year (2012-13).

• Worked with UNH IT staff to implement UNH's Safe Electronic Equipment Disposal (SEED) Program resulting in
a cost savings of more than $28K from 2010-2014, and a reuse of more than 16 tons of equipment.

• Promoted increased awareness and use of the UNH Surplus Property program which resulted in an additional $25K
in revenue annually, while diverting hundreds of usable items to public schools and non-profits.

• Worked with the Sustainability Office and students to implement the 100% post-consumer recycled copy paper
policy at UNH.

2000-2006 Pnrchnsing Agent

University System of New Hampshire, Purchasing & Contract Services Dept., 11 Brook Way, Durham, NH 03824

Responsibilities included purchasing and contract administration of commodities and services for all four USNH
institutions, including information technology and office equipment; printing; supplies and equipment for dining halls,
motor vehicles; and independent contractors. Conducted campus-wide piuehasing training; sourcing; site inspections;
pre-proposal meetings and bid openings; contract negotiations; and processed purchase orders. Oversaw surplus property
and was the "green" buying specialist for UNH.

1995-2000 Purcba.sing Agent/Production Coordinator/ISO 9000 Trainer

Label Tech, Inc., 16 Interstate Drive, Soraersworth, NH 03878

Responsible for the purchasing and inventory of all raw materials, tooling and other supplies and seiwices for a printing
company. Completed ISO-9001 Certified Quality Control Auditor Training, established a company quality control
policy, which led to ISO-9001 certification in December 1997.

EDUCATION

2003-2006 Plymouth State University. Plymouth. New Hampshire

Received Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree in Spring 2006.

1984-1988 Hawthorne College. Antrim, New Hampshire

Graduated cum laudc in April 1988 with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Adrainistration and a minor in
Psychology. President of Student Council 1987-1988.

CERTIFICATION

Received designation as Certified Purchasing Manager (C.P.M.) through the Institute for Supply Management (ISM) in
July 2009. Renewed July 2014.

TECHNICAL SKILLS

Experienced in utilizing the following software and databases: Microsoft Word, Excel, & PowerPoint; Access;
Filemaker Pro; SCT Banner (Oracle); Lawson/Infor NH First (Oracle), Unimarket ERP, and the internet. Current Notary
Public.

REFERENCES Available upon request.



Beth O'Dell, MS, LCMHC, NCC, 200-RYT

Education

M.S. Walden University, 2016
Human Services (Public Policy, Analysis and Planning)

M.S. Wilmington University, 2013
Community Counseling
Advisor: Doris Lauckner, PsyD.

B.S. Wilmington University, 2005
Psychology

Experience

Adult ACT Clinician October 2016-Present
Center for Life Management, Deny, NH
Clinical Supervisor; Heather Crowell, LCMHC, MLADC, LCS
Work in coordination with the Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) Team to provide
integrated services to individuals with severe, persistent mental illness. Provide leadership,
support and mentoring to bachelor-level staff on the ACT Team. Provide clinical services within
the community and office setting to individuals receiving treatment on the ACT Team, as well as
functional support services and case management as needed. Provide mental health and
substance abuse treatment (individuafand group), utilizing Cognitive Behavior Therapy,
Dialectical Behavior Therapy, Motivational Interviewing techniques within the therapeutic
setting, and with respect to client stage of change. Provide consultation to the Substance Use
Disorder (SUD) pdot team as the SUD group leader for clients during weekly SUD Team
meeting. Develop and implement a Yoga for Mental Health group program within the adult
department. Assess for crisis, provide stabilization care as needed, and provide on-call services.
Work closely with Emergency Services to coordinate voluntary and/or involuntary emergency
admission to hospital for inpatient psychiatric care. Attended all ACT Team meetings, as well as
clinical staff meetings and trainings as required.

SAPR Support Specialist August 2013-September 2016
Sexual Assault Prevention and Response (SAPR)
Portsmouth Naval Shipyard, Kittery, ME
Facilitate proper implementation of SAPR Program requirements per Navy and Department of
Defense instruction, policy, and guidance in collaboration with the Sexual Assault Response
Coordinator (SARC). Assist in screening sailors for volunteer service as Victim Advocates.
Develop, provide, and manage sexual assault training and prevention tools to military and
civilian personnel on base and throughout the area of responsibility (Maine, New Hampshire,
Vermont, and northern Massachusetts). Coordinate monthly case management group meetings on
behalf of SARC and installation leadership. Coordinate the SAPR Watch BiU (on-call schedule)
for Unit Victim Advocates (UVA), and provide mentorship, continuing education, and assistance
with certification/D-SAACP renewal packages. Additional responsibilities include ensuring
sailors and civilians are referred to appropriate offices and resources, to include referrals to
treatment programs for individuals, families, and groups needing assistance with family
problems and issues, and sexual assault support; working in collaboration with the partner
programs in the development and implementation of outreachyprevention.



Beth O'DeU, MS, LCMHC, NCC, 200-RYT

Domestic Violence Advocate/D VLiaison August 2011 -July 2013
SAFE Program of People's Place, Milford, DE
Supervisor: Marcey Rezac, LCSW, DVS
Worked independently to provide domestic violence services and support as the Liaison for the
State of Delaware Division of Family Services (Kent County). During this time, earned
qualification as a Domestic Violence Specialist through the Delaware Coalition Against
Domestic Violence through work and education experience. Provided trauma-informed advocacy
to domestic violence victims/survivors in the community, assisting victims in accessing support
services and resources through other community agencies available to them, and navigated
victims through the legal process so they may better understand court proceedings, secure a
Protection From Abuse (PFA) Orders, and access legal services available to them. Referrals
included: Victim Compensation Assistance Program, Legal Aid, Family Court, (PFA) Orders,
Public Housing, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families and Food Stamps through the
Department of Health and Social Services, and more. Additional responsibilities included:
screening applicants for job hiring,.as directed by Program Manager, to fill vacancies, and assist
in the interview process, as needed.

Counseling Intern May 2012-April 2013
Aquila of DE, Inc., Georgetown, DE
Site Supervisor: April Lathbury, LCSW, CCDP-D
Faculty Supervisor: Mary Vaughn, Psy.D.
Group Supervisor: Doris Lauckner, Psy.D.
Explained and conducted assessments and mental health evaluations to detemiine client
diagnoses based on DSM criteria and appropriate level of treatment. Created narrative reports
and treatment plans based on assessments of clients and one-on-one interviews. Provided
one-on-one counseling and family therapy to adolescents in Outpatient and Day Treatment
settings, and conducted group therapy in Day Treatment setting. Completed 100-hour Practicum,
600-hour Internship.

Case Manager August 2010-August 2011
SAFE Program of People's Place, Milford, DE
Supervisor: Marcey Rezac, LCSW, DVS
Provided trauma-informed case management to women in domestic violence shelters and the
community to assist with budgeting, employment, seeking permanent residency, obtaining
identification, and other services as needed. Assisted as a team member in maintaining a
federally-funded grant and its monetary disbursement among domestic violence survivors in
emergency shelters and in the community. Developed and implemented workshops for women in
shelter to promote independence and empowerment.

DU! Evaluator October 2009-August 2010
Sodat DE, Inc., Wilmington, DE
Conducted evaluations of DUI offenders' substance abuse and dependence in Kent and Sussex

County, Delaware. This evaluation determined the appropriate level of treatment for offenders, as



Beth O'Dell, MS, LCMHC, NCC, 200-RYT

Domestic ViolenceAdvocate/DVLiaison August 2011-July 2013
SAFE Program of People's Place, Milford, DE
Supervisor: Marcey Rezac, LCSW, DVS
Worked independently to provide domestic violence services and support as the Liaison for the
State of Delaware Division of Family Services (Kent County). During this time, earned
qualification as a Domestic Violence Specialist through the Delaware Coalition Against
Domestic Violence through work and education experience. Provided trauma-informed advocacy
to domestic violence victims/survivors in the community, assisting victims in accessing support
serWces and resources through other community agencies available to them, and navigated
victims through the legal process so they may better understand court proceedings, secure a
Protection From Abuse (PFA) Orders, and access legal services available to them. Referrals
included; Victim Compensation Assistance Program, Legal Aid, Family Court, (PFA) Orders,
Public Housing, Tetnporary Assistance for Needy Famili^ and Food Stamps through the
Department of Health and Social Services, and more. Additional responsibilities included:
screening applicants-for job hiring, as directed by Program Manager, to fill vacancies, and assist
in the interview process, as needed.

Counseling Intern May 2012-April 2013
Aquila of DE, Inc., Georgetown, DE
Site Supervisor: April Lathbury, LCSW, CCDP-D
Faculty. Supervisor: Mary Vaughn, Psy.D.
Group Supervisor: Doris Lauckner, Psy.D.
Explained and conducted assessments and mental health evaluations to determine client
diagnoses based on DSM criteria and appropriate level of treatment. Created narrative reports
and treatment plans based on assessments of clients and one-on-one interviews. Provided
one-on-one counseling and family therapy to adolescents in Outpatient and Day Treatment
settings, and conducted group therapy in Day Treatment setting. Completed 100-hour Practicum,
600-hdur Internship.

Case Manager August 2010-August 2011
SAFE Prograrn of People's Place, Milford, DE
Supervisor: Marcey Rezac, LCSW, DVS
Provided trauma-informed case management to women in domestic violence shelters and the
commumty to assist with budgeting, employment, seeking permanent residency, obtaining
identification, and other services as needed. Assisted as a team member in piaintainmg a
federally-funded grant and its monetary disbursement among domestic violence survivors in
emergency shelters and in the conununity. Developed and implemented workshops for women in
shelter to promote independence and empowerment.

DUI Evaluator October 2009-August 2010
Sodat DE, Inc., Wilmington, DE
Conducted evaluations of DUI offenders' substance abuse and dependence in Kent and Sussex
County, Delaware. This evaluation determined the appropriate level of treatment for offenders, as



Beth O'Pell, MS. LCMHC. NCC 200

required by the State of Delaware. Created narrative reports based on assessment and one-on-one
mterviews. Independently managed the daily activities of the Kent and Sussex County offices
and reconciled and deposited money daily. '
Training
200-hour Yoga Teacher Training February 2018
Yoga Life Institute NH, Exeter NH

DBT Skills Training for Borderline Personality Disorder
Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

National Certified Counselor

National Board for Certified Counselors

April 2017

August 2013-August 2023

Danger Assessment Certification September 2011
Danger Assessment Training Program; John Hopkins School of Nursing



Kati Woodford, MSW, LCSW, LCAS, CCTP

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Driven and passionate clinical social worker with a focus on addictions treatment and trauma-informed care.
Emphasis of care include harm-reduction modalities and collaboration with medical professionals to promote

access to medication assisted treatment services.

LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATION

Licensed Clinical Social Worker, North Carolina UC013276 August 2020 - August 2022
Licensed Clinical Addictions Specialist, North Carolina 1124656 Sept. 2020 - August 2022
Certified Clinical Trauma Professional January 2020 - January 2021

RELEVANT PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Insight Human Services, Inc. June 2018 - Present
Outpatient Clinician Winston Salem, NO

Support clients in a gehder-specific ASAM Level 2.1 intensive outpatient program and ASAM Level 1.0
outpatient program utilizing a trauma-informed perspective and evidence-based interventions in practice during
group and individual sessions
Conduct comprehensive clinical assessments to inform recommendation for ASAM level of care and any relevant
mental health services necessary utilizing a variety of evidence-based assessment screening tools
Provide education, counseling, ASAM-informed referrals, individualized treatment planning, referral, and crisis
intervention for clients experiencing difficulties related to substance misuse
Participate in routine treatment team meetings, collaborating with clinical and medical staff, to promote holistic
care for all clients engaging in medication assisted treatment services

Old Vineyard Behavioral Health Services June 2018 - June 2019^
Unit Clinician - PRN Winston Salem, NO

Utilized Cognitive Behavioral Therapy, Dialectical Behavioral Therapy, Relapse Prevention Therapy and
Motivational Interviewing in group sessions to promote client skill-building for a variety of specialized'units in an
acute inpaticnt behavioral health facility
Completed relevant assessments and provide crisis intervention as necessary and appropriate

Old Vineyard Behavioral Health Services June 2016 - June 2018
Mental Health Technician - PRN Winston Salem, NC

Functioned within a multitude of programs serving individuals in need of hospitalization for psychiatric
stabilization to promote safety, structure of program, and wellbeing of clients
Maintained a safe and structured environment aligning with all clients' treatment plans by performing
environmental checks, safety rounds in required increments, and other assigned duties

U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs August 2017 - May 2018
Social Work Intern in Substance Use Services Salisbury, NC | Kernersville, NC

Assisted with management of a caseload of Veterans accessing substance use services in an outpatient or
intensive ou^atient individual and/or group setting under the supervision of clinical supervisor
Participated in th'e development and implementation of an intensive outpatient program
Completed intake screenings, biopsychosocial assessments and risk assessments

Youth Villages August 2016-May 2016
Social Work Intern Greensboro, NC

Developed an understanding of modalities utilized by the clinical team, including tlie LifeSet program,
Multisystemic Therapy, and Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy
Worked alongside licensed professionals to complete projects as assigned



Kati WQodford> MSW

Appalachian State University, Boone, NC.
Concentration in Individuals and Families

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work

May 2018

Roger Williams University, Bristol, RI Bachelor of Arts in Psychology
Mapta Cum Laude, Senior Thesis with Distinction in the Field of Psychology May 2015

PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT EXPERIENCE
Appalachian State University Collegiate Recovery Program (CRP)
Promoted engagement, organized and hosted events, and completed a grant proposal for the CRP in
collaboration with other students and the Wellness and Prevention Services department

Kernersville Health Care Center Intensive Outpatient Program
Participated as a social work intern in the development and implementation of the intensive outpatient program
through collaboration with the clinical and leadership teams

PUBLICATIONS
Hamilton, L., Wingrove, T., 8c Woodford, K. (2019). Does generous welfare policy

encourage dependence? TANF asset limits and duration of program participation. Journal
of Children and Poverty. 25:2, lOl-113. doi: 10.1080/10796126.2019.1638731



Emily Pavick

Conscientious Behavioral Health Specialist with strong interpersonal skills focused on providing client-
centered therapy for adults with SUO, anxiety, depression, and other mental health conditions. Seeking
full-time clinical position immediately upon graduation.

Work Experience

Behavioral Health Specialist, Student intern
Goodwin Community Health - Somersworth, NH
November 2019 to Present

• Develop individualized treatment plans based on client assessment.

• Provides psychotherapy to increase client awareness.

• Co-facllltates lOP groups for adults with SUD.

Case Manager, Student intern
Cross Roads House • Portsmouth. NH

2018 to 2019

• Identified client needs and connected them with appropriate supports.
• Facilitated Art & Writing Therapy groups.

Adjunct English Professor
Northern Essex Community College - Haverhlll, MA

May 2015 to January 2018

Lectured and evaluated student assignments.

BIddeford, ME, Therapeutic Journal Writing Facilitator
Maine Behavioral Healthcare • Sprlngvale. ME
February 2015 to November 2017

Facilitated Writing Therapy groups to Increase self-esteem In adults with Ml.

Teaching Assistant/English instructor
University of New Hampshire • Durham, NH

January 2014 to January 2015

Education

Master of Social Work in Social Work

Univerelty of New Hampshire • Durham, NH

May 2020

Master of Fine Arts in Writing



University of New Hampshire • Durham, NH
December 2015

Bachelor of Arts In Psychology
Southern Illinois University - Carbondale, IL

Skills

• Group therapy

• Yoga and Meditation training
• Teiehealth training
• Evidence-Based Practice intervention

• Calmly manages high-stress situations
• Coordinates well with other providers
• Social Work

• Behavioral Health

• Crisis Intervention

• Mental Health Counseling
• Social Work

• Research

• Behavioral Health

• Mental Health Counseling

• Motivational Interviewing

• Addiction Counseling

• Behavioral Therapy
• Crisis Management

• Crisis Intervention

• Addiction Counseling •
• Motivational interviewing

Links

httD://www.ilnkedln.com/in/emllvDavick



Hope on Haven Hill

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract
Amount Paid from

this Contract
Kerry Norton, RN Executive Director 595,000
Lisa Pollard Director of Operations $80,000
BethO'Dell Clinical Director $66,950
Catherine Woodford Licensed Clinician $52,000
Emily Pavick Clinician $51,470 -



DocuSign Envelope ID; BAAA1356-C2A5^E79-8D7C-8F993288D192

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Katja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VORJAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271-9544 l^.«52-3345 ExL 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 16, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division For Behavorial Health, to enter
into agreements with the vendors listed below, in an amount not to exceed $496,096, to provide Recovery
Housing services and supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder (CUD) effective upon Governor
and Council approval, through September 29. 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor Number Location
Contract

Amount

Dismas Home of New

Hampshire
#290061-6001 102 Fourth Street Manchester,

NH 03102
$100,001

Families In Transition #157730-6001 122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101
$195,795

Hope on Haven Hill #275119-8001 326 Rochester Hill Road

Rochester, NH 03867
$200,300'

Total: $496,096

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2019, and are anticipated to be
available in State Fiscal Year 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT.

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total

Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $144,529

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $279,678

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $71,889

Total: $496,096
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'  His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide Recovery Housing services and supports to individuals
with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in a supported and safe recovery housing environment. New
Hampshire has minimal capacity to serve individuals in need of recovery housing. There are few. options
for specialty populations who have complex needs and/or gender-specific housing. This request will fund
recovery housing statewide to service specific populations with Opioid Use Disorder that includes

• A Recovery Residence for females only;

•  A Recovery Residence for individuals who have complex criminal backgrounds
that limit access to other publicly-funded housing options; and

•  Recovery Residences to serve the general population who are in need of housing
in a supported, safe, recovery environment.

The State of New Hampshire received funding through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration Stke Opioid Response grant opportunity. This grant is being used to make
critical investments in the Substance Use Disorder system in order to reduce unmet treatment needs,
reduce opioid overdose fatalities and increase access to Medication Assisted Treatment over the next
two (2) years. The State is implementing evidence-based methods to expand treatment, recovery and
prevention services to individuals v^th Opioid Use Disorder. These funds will strengthen established
programs that have had a positive impact on the opioid crisis as well as expand the capacity for programs
to assist individuals struggling with an Opioid Use Disorder.

The Department is contracting for these sen/ices for the first time. The Contractors are expected
to serve a maximum of eighty-four (84) Individuals on any given day. The Department will be closely
monitoring the numbers actually served as well as the lengths of stay and the coordination of care for
other health and social services.

The Doorways are responsible for providing comprehensive assessments at several time
intervals, specifically at intake, three (3) months, six (6) months, and upon discharge; specifically data on
client-related outcomes including, but not limited to recovery status, criminal justice involvement,
employment, and housing needs at the time intervals listed above. This data will enable the Department
to measure short and long-term outcomes associated with State Opioid Response-funded Initiatives and
to determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.

The three (3) vendors included in this requested action were selected for this project through a
competitive bid process. This request represents three (3) of the selected four (4) vendors. The
Department anticipates awarding one (1) additional contract that will be submitted to Governor and
Executive Council for approval for the next scheduled meeting. A Request for Applications was posted
on the Department of Health and Human Services' website from October 22. 2018 through November
13, 2018. In addition, on October 23, 2018 an email of notification of the RFA was distributed to
stakeholders throughout the State. The Department received six (6) applications. The applications were
reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program-specific knowledge. The review included a
thorough discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the applications. The Score Summary is
attached.

As referenced in the Request for Applications and in Exhibit 0-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. Recovery Housing
services and supports to individuals with Opiold Use Disorder who need housing in a supported, safe
recovery housing environment may not be available, which could result in individuals backsliding during
their road to recovery, which would intensify the Opiold Crisis and lead to an increase'in overdose deaths
inNH.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Administration, State Opioid Response Grant, {CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI081685)

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

fey A. Meyers
imissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Subjcci: RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECQV-<)4/RecQvefv Housing for Individuals with OUP
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: Thisagmmcht and all ofits at^hments shall become public upon submission to Ck>venior and
Executive Gouncil for approval. Any Information thai is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signitig the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contr^tor hereby mutually agree as. follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Slate Agency Name
NH Dcpahrocnt.qf H«Ith arid Human Seiviccs

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, Ni l 03301-3857 ■

IJ .'Contracipr Name
Hope on Haven Hill

1.4 Contractor Address

326 Rochester Hill Road

Rochester. N*H 03867

1.5 Cqnirt^or Phone
Number

603-851-5353

1.6 Abcbuhl Number

05^95-092-920510-7040-

0006.102.^500'73I

1.7 Completion Date

September 29,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$200,300

1.9 Cdritrncting Officer for Stale Agency
Naihan D. AVhiie." Director
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1. i I Cdctraetor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatoiy

1.13 Acknowledgement: Statcof A/H- .County of

On 3I'*7 / It • before the undcrslgncj|fflK|tfIperson^ appeared the person identified In block .1.12, or.satisfactorily
provint to be (he pcfk»n whose name Is signed.jn^|^fx*l!^f*(&^,ac»^wicdgcd ihal s/he e.vecuted this document in the capacity
Indicai^ in block 1.1 i ^<0'/ S.

U'f A#
1.13.1 .Signature,of Notary Pu egor

[Seal]
I  i eywc—s f uQi-A.nM

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice

.14 State Agency Signature

^ )r^
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signaler)'

Date:

Administration. Division of Personn6r/'//'a/>;?//cflWe)1.16 Approval by iheN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personi?erf//'a/>;?//cflWe^

By: Director, On:

.17 Approval by the Attorney General. (Form, Substance mid E-tccuiiori) (i/appUcdhle)

Ori:

1.18 Appros^ by ihe^oventpr and Exwuiive Council (i/applicabit)

By: On;

Page 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. thc.Siaic of New Hampshire, acting
throu^ (he.agency Identined in .block I.l rState"), engages
cohiracidr identified, in block 1.3 (•'Contractor") to perform,
and the Cbhiractor shall perform, the wrk or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more p^ctilarly described in the attach^
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
C'S^'ices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary.-and subject to.the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement; and-oll obligations of.the parties
hercunder, sh^l b^ome effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve.this Agreement as indicated in
block.1.18, unless no.such approval is required. In which case
dve Agreement shall become effective on the dale the
Aj^emeni is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective bate").
3.2 If the Contractor i»mmchc« the Seivices prior to the
Effective Date, all Services pciTormW by the Cbniractor prior
ito the EfTcctivc Date shall be perform^ at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective; the State shall have no llobillt)' to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs Incurred or. Services performed.
Contractor must complete all.Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. GONDltipNAL NATURE QF AGREEMENT.
Nbtwithstimdihg'ony provision bf this Agreement to the
contrary, all pbli^llohs.of the State hereundcr, ihcludihg,
without limjiatioh, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
cdhtingenl upon the availablti^ and continued '^propriation
:6f funds, and in no m-cnt shall.the State be liable for any
payments hei^eundef in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or terrhination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the rî t to withhold
pa>ment until such funds bccOmcavaiiablc, if ever, and shall
have the right to ierminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Conuiicior notice of such termination.. The State
shall not be required to transfer .fonds from arty other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 In the event funds In that

.Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRlCE/PRlCE IJMITAtldN/
paVment.
S. I The rontract price, method of payiheni,.and terms of
payment are identified and nmrc pisticutaHy described in
EXHIBIT D which is Incorporated herein by reference.
5J2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only.ond the complete reimbursement to (he Contractor for all
expcnseSi Of uhatever nature ihcurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the oiily and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Stale
.shall have no liability to the Conirocior other than the cohcrect
price".
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5.3 The Slate reserves the rî i to offset froni any amounts
otherwise payable.to the Contractor under (His Agreement
those liquidate arhounts required or permlned by N.H. RSA
80:7 through ,RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 NptwiUistanding ariy provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereundcr, e.xceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

ft. COMPLUNCE BY COl^RACTOR-WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conriection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulation^
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contrahor,
including, but not'limitcd to, civil rights tmd equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and scA'iccs to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convxy
information to the Contractor. In addition; the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Gonlractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of nice, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual oricntation,-or national origin and xvill take
afTirmaiive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pari by monies of the
Ualied States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions.bfE.xccutivc Order No'. 11246, ("Equal
Employoieni Opportuiiity"'), as supplement^ by the
regulations of the United States Depaniitent of Labor (41
C.r.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as (he State of New Hampshire or the United Stales Issue to
Implcincnt these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
(Tontracior's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenant^ terms and condilions.of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
pei^nrtel necessary to perform the Services. The Cbhiractor
warrurits that ail perspiinel en^ged in the Services shall be
qualified to pcHbrm (hc'Scryic^ and shall be properly
licensed and btherwi^ authorized to.do m under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Ciontractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or Other person, fim» or
corporation with N^itom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who Is a State
employee or ofTicial, who is niialcrially involved in the
procurcnicnt, administration or performance of (his

of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
A^cmcnL
7.3 .The Conir^ing Ofncer specificd in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Stale's,representative; In the event
ofany dispute roncerhing the int<^retatioh of this" Agreement/
the Contracting Officer's d^ision shall be final fbr the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an cvcnt.ofdefauh hereundcr
("Event of Dcfauft"):
8! 1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcrcunder. and/pr
8.1 J failure to perform any other covenant, term or condiiidn
ofthis Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
nuiy take any one, or niore, or ajl, of the fdllpwing actions:
8^2.1 give the C.ontractor a Nvriitcn notice specifying the Event
ofDefaiilt and riM^uinng it (6 be.remedlcd within; in the
absence of a ̂ ater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the dale of the notice: and if the Event of Default Is
not timely remedied,-terminate this Agreement, efTectivc two
(2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination:
8.^2 give the Contractor a wittcn notice specifying the Event
of.Dcfauli and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the poriloti o>f the contract price
.which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
dctcnhines that the Contractor has cuird the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2 J set ofTagainst any othie'r obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Suue^sufFcrs by reason of any
Event of Defaultrand/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equhyi or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFlDENTLVLi*n'/
PRESERVATION.

:9.l As used in ihif Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things develop^ or obtained during the
;pcrformancc of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recoridings, vidw
recordings, pictorial rep^uctions. drawings, analyses,
^phic reprtsenaiions, corhputcr programs, computer
printouts, notes; Iciiers, mernofando. papers, and dc^umcnis,
all vsbether finished or unfinished.

•9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
:uhderthis Agrccrhcnt, shall be the property.of thc State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall begovemed byN.H. RSA
'ch^ier9l-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
r^uires prior vyrittch apprpV'ai of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Conrracimg
Officer, not later than fiflecn (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all ̂ rviccs performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termmaiion. The,form, subject

, matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this AgTMmem the Contractor is in all
respects ah independent contractor, tmd is. neither an ̂ cni nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Coniractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents.or members shall have authority to
bind the State or, receive any benefits." workcre' compensation
or other cmoluntenis provided by the State to Its employees.

12. assignment/delegationvsubcontr^vcts.
The Coniractor shall rwt assign, or Otherwise transit any
interest in this .Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Ser\'ices shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior ivritteri
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify ond hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all lo^s suffered by the.
State, iis ofllMrs and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilili^ or penalties.asserted against the State, its oflicers
arid employees, by or on behalf ofany person, on account of,
based or resulting frpm,arising out of (or which may be
clairhcd to arise put oO the acts or omissions of the
Coniractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the,State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. 1'his covenant in paragraph 13 shall
sur\'ivc the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expcn^ obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontm^r or
assignee to obtain and rnaintain in foitc. the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability Insurimce against all
claims of bodily injurj', death or property damage, iri nmoiinis
of not less than si,000,0()0pcr occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9^2 herein, in an omouttt not
less than 80^p of the whole replacemerit 'valuc of the property.
14;2 i'he policies described in subp^graph" 14.1 herein shall
be on policy fortns and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall.fWnish to ̂ 'Contracting OfTicer
Idcntificd in block 1.9, or his or her. succc^r, a cenific8te(s)
of insuranceTor. all.insurancc required under this Agreement,
Contractor shall alM furnish to the Cphtr^ting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or His or.hcr successor, ccnificoiefs) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance n^uircd under this
Agrisemerit no later IhM thirty (30).days prior to the expiration
datc'pfeach.pf the ihstirim^ policies. The cc^iGcaiefs) of
ihsurahce and any renewals thereof shall be atttichcd and arc
incorporaied herein by reference. Each ccrtifica^s) of
insurance shall cont^n actaiise requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her. successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or nKxHfication of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or e.xempt ̂ m, the requirements ofN-l l. RSA chapter 281-A
("iVorkcni' Comptnsalidn '■!).
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subj«! to the
r^uiremenis ofN.H. RSA chapter 28 i-A. Cphtracior shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
^d maint^ payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection vvith activities which the pei^n proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Ofncer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H: RSA chapter281-A and any
applicable renewalfs) thereof, which shall be attached and are
.mcorporatcd herein by reference, the State shall not be
responslble for payment oifany Workers' Compcnsaiioa
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subconihkipr.drciPplpyeeofContracto^ which niighi
^se under applicablc .Statc of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation jaws in connection with the performance of (he
Services undefthis Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Stale to
enforce any provisions hc^f affer any Event of Default shall
be deemed a w-aivcf oflis rî ts with regard to that Event of
Default, or ̂ y subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Ewnt of Default
.00 the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto lo.ihc.oihcr party
shall be deemed to havc diily delivered or given iu the
time of moiling by certified moil, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
■given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or dischiargcd only by, ah instrument in writing signed
by ihe.partics hereto and only afier approval of such
amendment, svaiyer or discharge by the Governor and

•E.\ccuti\'c Council of the Stale of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Stale taw, rule or policy.

19. CON^RUCTION OF ACRF.EMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in ̂ ordance with the
laws of the State of New Harhp^irc, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the ponies and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by (he panies to e.xpress their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and.this. Agreement shall npl be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The brings ihrpughoul the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words.containcd
therein shall In no way be held io explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisipns of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABItrn'. In.thc event any of Uie provisions of
this Agreement ore held by a court of comp^cnt jurisdiction to
be contrtuy to any state or federal law, the remainirig
provisions of this Agreemem will remain in full force and
effect.,

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrcetneni, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be dcem^ on original, constitutes the cntirtf Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements wd understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4 Conlracior Initials sp
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

Now Hampshire Oepartinont of Health and Human Seivlccs
Recpvefy Housing for Individuals with Oplold Use Disorder

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall subniit a detailed description of the .language
assistance services they will provide to persons with limited English
proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services
within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the
New Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have
an impact on the iSefvices described hereiri; the State Agency has the
right to modify Service priorities arid expenditure requirements under this
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30; 2019, and the Departnierit shall not
be liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019,
unless and until ah appropriation for these services has been received
from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021
biennia.

1.4. The Cpritractbr shall provide, one (1) Recovery Residence for Individuals
with Opioid Use Disorder (OUD). who are in heed of housing in a
supported, safe, recovery housing environment in compliance with the
appropriate NARR standard.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The. Contractor shall provide a physical recovery housing facility to
include, but is not limited to;

2.1.1. Assistance to individuals to transition to independent living.

2.1.2. Safe, stable and sober environment.

2.1.3. Meetirig state and/or local occupancy requirerrients.

2.2. The Contractor shall meet the needs of. appticants/residehts requiring
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accommodations. Additionally, the
Contractor shall:'

2.2.1. Provide documentation and maintain the property is in
compliance with local health and safety codes.

2.2.2. Ensure the residence meets all Life and Safety codes, as
required.

2.2.3. Ensure that all house managers and/or staff are trained to
deliver Naloxone in the case of an overdose.

2.2.4. Meet all informatidri security and privacy requirements as set by
the department.

Hope on Haven Hill Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

New Hafflpfthlre Departm^ of Haatth and Human Services
Recovery Houslnjj for Individuate wttti Ofrioid Use Disorder

Exhibit A

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure Naloxone is available and accessible in the
residence.

2.4. Oraanizational/Adminlstrative Standards

2.4.1. The Contractor shall have a written mission and vision
statement.

2.4.2. The Contractor shall have a written code of ethics for the
Recovery Residence.-

2.4.3. The .Contractor shall comply with state and federal
requirements. If required, documents such as .licenses and
certificates of occupancy must be visible for public view.

2.4.4. The Contractor shall clearly Identify the responsible person(s)
responsible for the Recovery Residence to all residents.

2.4.5. The Contractor shall ensure the living environment is free from
drugs and alcohol, in accordance with written policies and
procedures.

2.4.6. The Contractor shall provide proof of written permission to
operate a Recovery Residence on the property from the land
owner/landlord, if applicable.

2.5. Fiscal Management Standards

2.5.1. The Contractor shall keep accurate records and must have the
ability to provide residents with staternents upon request. The
records and/or statements shall include, but are hot limited to;

2,5:1,1. Complete records of charges.

2:5.1:2. Payments.

2:5.1.3. Deposits.

2.6. Operation Standards

2.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure emergency numbers, protocols and
evacuation maps are established and easily accessed.

2.7. Recovery Support Standards

2.7:1. The Contractor shall maintain a staffing plani in accordance with
NARR Standards.

2.7.2. The Contractor shall implement an applicant screening process
that will maintain a safe and supportive environment for all
individuals in recovery,

2.7:3! The Contractor shall ensure confidentiality laws are adhered to.

2.7.4. The Contractor shall keep resident's records secure from
unauthorized access. ^

Hope.on Haven Hiil Exhibit A Contractor tnltials
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Recbveiy Housing for irkRvlduats with Oplold Use Disorder

Exhibit A

2.7.5. The Contractor shall establish and administer a grievance policy
and prbc^ure, as provided to each resident prior to enrollrnent.

2.7.6. The Contractor shall provide a safe, structured and recovery
supportive environment through established and written
residents' rights and requirements.

2.7.7. The Contractor shall establish an intake/assessment protocol for
accepting new clients.

2.7.8. The Contractor shall establish an prientatlbn process that will
•ensure all fees and charges residents incur are presented to
applicants prior to residency. The Contractor shall ensure
policies are presented to potential applicants in writing and are
verbally explained in a simple and easy manner conducive to
the Indiyidual's understanding.

2.7.9. The Contractor shall provide a mutually supportive and
recovery-oriented relationships, between residents and/or staff
through:

2.7.9.1. Peer-based interactions:

2.7.9.2; House rheetings;

2.7.9.3. Community gatherings;

2.7.9.4. Recreational events; and/or

27.9.5. Other social activities.

2.7.10. The Contractor shall adopt recovery^supportive, alcohol and
drug-free environments through written and enforced policies
and procedures that address the following:

2.7.16.1. Residents that return to alcohol and/or drug use;

2.7.10.2. Hazardous item searches;

2.7.10.3. Drug-screening and or toxicology protocols; and,

2.7.10^4. Prescription and non-prescription medication usage;
and

2.7.10.5. Prescription and rion-prescription storage.

2.7.11. The Contractor shall work with residents to develop and
participate in an ,individualized recovery plan.

2.7.12. The Contractor shall inform residents, on the wide range of local
treatment and recovery support services available to them.

2.7.13. The Contractor shall provide nonclinical, recovery support and
related services.

Hope on Haven Hill Exhibit s Contractor Initials,
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

New Hampshire Depa^mt of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with Opiold Use Disorder

Exhibit A

27.14. The Contractor shall encourage residents to attend supportive,
self-help groups and/or outside professional i^rvices.

2.8. Probertv Standards

2.8.1. the Contractor shall ensure the residence meets all life, safety,
health and building codes.

2.8.2. The Contractor shall provide residents vyith storage for food and
personal items.

2.8.3. The Contractor shall provide fully-functioning ftre extinguishers
in plOin sight and/or clearly rnai1<ed locations.

2.8.4. The Contractor shall install operational smoke detectors.

2.8;5. The Contractor shall install operational carbon monoxide
detectors if gas appliances are present.

2.8.6. The Contractor shall ensure a smoke/tobacco-free internal living
environrnent.

2.8.7. The Contractor shall provide a large community room that will
accommodate house meetings.

2.8.8! The Contractor shall provide sleeping quarters that adhere to
local and state squai:e footage requirements.

2:8.9. The Contractor shall provide lavatory facilities that adhere to •
local and state requirements if applicable. If there are no
fequiremenls, selected vendor(s).shall provide one (1) sink, one
(1) toilet and one (1) shower per six (6) residents.

2.8.10. The Contractor shall provide on-site laundry services.

2.8.11. The Contractor shall maintain the interior and exterior of the

residence in a functional, safe, and clean manner.

2.8.12. The Contractor shall provide spaces to hold individual meetings
accessible to each resident, as scheduled by .the Contractor.

2.8.13. The Contractor shall provide appliances in a good and working
condition,

2.8.14. The Contractor shall,provide furniture in good condition.

2.8.15. The, Contractor shall provide routine and emergency repairs to
all aspects of the residence.

2.9. Good Nelqht>or Standards

2.9.1. The Contractor shall provide the residence's responsible parties'
information to neighbors upon request. The Contractor shall
ensure the responsible party responds tp neighbor's complaints.

Hope on Haven Hit) E^ibitA Contractor Initials
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DocuSJgn Envelope ID: BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

New Hsmpfthlre Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals wt^ Opiold Use Disorder

ExhibHA

2.9.2; The Contractor shall establish and enforce parking rules when
warranted.

3. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

3.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and
implementation plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure
services are in place within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date.

3.1.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required
timeframe, the Contractor shall subrnit ah updated
Implementation plan to the Department for approval to outline
anticipated service start dates.

3.1.2. The Oepaitmenl reserves the right to terminate'the contract and
liquidate unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety
(90) days of the contract effective date.

3.2. The Cofitractbr shall ensure that clients receiving financial aid for recovery
housing utilizing SOR funds shall only be in a recovery housing facility that
is aligned with the National Alliance for Recovery Residences standards
and registered with the State of New Hampshire, Bureau of Drug and
Alcohol Services in accordance with current NH Adrriinistrative Rules.

3.3. The Contractor shall assist clients with enrolling in public or .private health
insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage.

3.4. The Contractor shall accept clients for MAT and facilitate access to MAT
oh-site or through referral for all clients supported with SOR Grant funds,
as clinically appropriate.

3.5. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White, HIV/AIDs
program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

3.6. The Contractor shall ensure that all clients are regularly screened for
tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitUne as part of
treatment planning.

H(vo on Haven Hill 'Exhibit A Conlractbr Initials
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DocuSign Envelope ID; BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

New Hampshire Oepar^ent of Health and Human Services
Recovery.Houaihg for Iridhliduals wtth Opkrfd Use Disorder

Exhibit A-1

MNARR

National Association

of Recovery Residences

/

Standard for Recovery Residences

Version 1.0

September 2011
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Nm Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for hidlvlduals with Opioid Use Disorder

ExhlbftA-t

t^ARR
national Association

of tecawry Rntdences

RECOVERY RESIDENCE LEVELS OF SUPPORT

LEVEL 1

Pedr-Run

LEVEL It

•Monitored

LEVEL III

Supervised

LEVEL IV

Service Provider

ADMINISTRAtlbN^^

Democratically run

Manual or P& P

•jHou^i'm^
■  "r«idenlp :
. • - s-- '' ■ ** »
<^f?c4icy ahd^ProcMure

J  , ' ; • * ^

I  i • ,

• Organi^tiohal hierarchy'

Administrative oversight for
serviM providers

Policy and Procedures

• Licensing varies from state,
tostafa

Overseen ofganizatibhal
hierairchy

Clinical and administrative

supervision

Pdicy and Pracedures

Ucerising varies from state
to state

services:

Drug Screening

House meetings

Self help meetings
encouraged

• House rules provide
structure

Pieer run groups

Drug Screening

• House meetings

• Involvement in self help
and/or treatment services

• Life skill development
emphasis

Clinical services utilized in

outside community
• Service hours provided in

house

Clinical services and

programming are provided
in house

Life skill developnient

' ^ j . • •.* .

RESIDENCE;

A  t

• 1

Generally single.family
residences'

• Primaiiiy single family
residences

Possibly apartments or
other dwelling types

:J"'^VariMr all
/j^idwttel'settifws'^!

All types - often a step
down phase within care
coritlnuum ofa treatment

center'

May be a more institutional
In environment

STAFF

No paid positions within the
residence

Perhaps an overseeing
officer

• At least 1 compensated
pbsliloh

• FadBty manager

Certified staff or case

managers

Cre^ential^'st^

Ui

u

s
o:

g
z
<
H
co

Ji
-0
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DocuSign Envelope ID; BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

Nationa] ̂sociation of Recovery Residences

Member Standards

"l!.<drgari^ti6naUA¥mlntstratfv> .Level,] ■ Level II r ! Levelihr

1.1. Recovery Residenc^.are legal business entities as
evidenced.by business licenses or incorporation
documents;

Strongly
Recommend

Strongly
Recommend

X. X

1.2. Recovery Residences have a written mission and vision
statement;

X X X X

1.1 Recovery Residences'have a written code of ethics: X X X X

1.4. Rieiqwery Residences properly (wnerByoperators carry
general liability Insurance;

Strongly
Recpnimend

Strongly
Recomrriend

X X

1.5. Recovery Residences comply with state and f^eral
requirerner^.

If required, documents such as licenses and certificates
of occupancy are visible for public yiew;

X X X X

1.6. Recovery Residences clearly identify the responsible
person(s) In charge of the Recovery Residence to all
residents;

X X X X

1.7. Recovery Residences clearly state the rnlnlmum
qualihcations, duties, and responsibilities of the
responsible person(s) in a written job description and/or
contract;

n/a n/a X X

1.8. Recovery Residences pro>ride.drug and alcohol free
envlronnients;

X X X X

1.9. Recovery Residences collect and report accurate
process and outcome data for .continuous quality
improvement;

Strongly
Recommend

Strongly
Recommend

X X

1.10. Recowry Residences have written permission from the
owner of record to operate a Recovery Residence on
their property:

X X X X

j'2fil^8caj,Mariagem^
'X • 1* .

'  Leveih Levol.ll Level lir LevehlV.

2.1. Recovery Residences maintain an accounting system
that fully documents all resident nhanclal transactions
such as fe^, payments and deposits;

X X X X

;,3;;Ope^ratron.Stand^^^ - ; Leveil^ .Level.ll ■lleVeiitil Level-IV^

'3.1. Recovery Residences post emergency procedures and
staff phorie riurriber in conspicuous locations: rVa n/a X X

3.2. Recovery Residences post emergency numbers,
protocols and'evacuation maps; X X n/a n/a

, RF A-2019^BDAS-02-R ECDV . ExNWI A-i
Page 3 of 6.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

National Association of Recovery Residences

Member Standards

4;.'Rec6very.iSup^rt L^yel ii : Level II 'Level III''- Level,iV

4.1. Recovery Residences maintain a s^mg plan; If Applicable If Applicable X X

4.2. Recovery Residences.use ah applicant screening
process thai helps maintain a safe and supportive
environment for a specific group of persons in recovery:

X X X X

4.3. Recovery Residences adhere to applicable
' cohfidentiaiity laWs: X X X X

4.4; Recovery Residences keep resident records secure with
access limited to authorized staff only: X X X X

4.5. Recovery Residences have a grievance policy and
procedure for residents: X X X X

4.6. Recovery Re'sidehces create, a safe, sthjctured. and
rwyeiy.supportye environment through ymtten and
Mfbr'ced residents' rights arid requirements;

X X X X

47. Recovery Residences have an orientation process that
clearly cpmmunjcates residents' rights and requirements
prior to them sighing any agreements; collects
deitibgraphic and emergency contact information and
provides new i^idehts with writt^ instructions on
emergency procedures and st^ contact information;

X X X .'X

4.8. Re<»yery Resjdencefs foster-mytually supportive and
Tecovery-^iented relatipnshi|» between residents and/or
staff through p^r-based interactions; house meetings,
community gatherings, recreational events, and/or other
social activities;

X X X X

4.9. Recovery Residences foster recovery-supportive.
alcohol and drug-free environments through written and
,eriforced policies and procedures that address: residents
who return to.alcohol and/or drug use; hazardous item

. searches; dreg-screening and or toxicology protocols;
and prescription and non-prescription medications usage
and storage;

X X X .X

4.10. Recovery Residences encourage each resident to
cteyelop and participate in their own personalized
r^very plan;

X X X X

4.11. Rewvery Residences Infonrn residents on lhewide,
renge of k^l treatment and recovery support services
available to them inciuding: 12 step or other mutual
support groups, recover comrhunity centers, recovery
ministries, recovery-focused leisure activities and
recovery advocacy opportunities;

X X X X

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV ExNbll A-1
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BAAA1356C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

National Association of Recovery Residences

Member Standards

!,4i RecoVyryJSuR^^^^ feveiV . Level II' Level ill LeveliV'

4.12. Recovery Residences provide nonclinical, recovery
support and related services; X •X X X

4.13. Recovery. Residertces encourage residents to attend
mutually .supportive, self help groups arkl/or outside
prbfessiona! services;

X X X X

4.14. Recovery Residences provide access to scheduled and
stnjdufi^ ̂ r-based services siich as didactic
presentations;

n/a n/a X X

4.15. Recovery Residences provide access to 3rd party
ciiriical services.ih accp^ance.to State laws; n/a n/a X X

4.16. Re^very Resldenci^ Offer life skills development
^rvic'es; n/a n/a X X

4.17. Recovery'Residences offer cllnicial.services In
.  'acxordancetoSt^e la'^;' hia n/a n/a X

5iF?rppo^S'fe^ . / ■ ' ! '. .''Level'! Lel/el'li! Level.Ill LevellVv

5.1. Rewery Residences abide.by alHocal building and fire
safetycodes; X X X X

5.2. Reco^^ Residences provide each residents with food
and persona! Item'storage; X X X X

5.3. Recoyety Residences place functioning fire
'  extinguishers in plain' sight arid/or in clearly marked

lollops;
X X X X

5.4. Recmre^ Residences haye hjnctiohing smoKd detectors
'iristall^. If the residence has gas appliances,
functioning cartx>n m'ohoxlde detectors are in^alled;

X X X X

5.5. Recovery Residerices provkle a npn smoking internal
living envirannient; X X X X

5.6. R^wery Residences have a communi^ roorh large
enough to accommodate house meetings arid sleeping
roomslhat adhere to lobal and state square footagie
requirements; - '

X X X X

5.7. Recovery Residencesjhave one sink, toilet and shower
• per six residents or adhere to local.and state
requirements;

X X X X

5,8. Recovery Residences have laundry services that are
accessible to all residents:- X X X X

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV ErfibH A-1
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DocuSign Envelope ID; BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

National Association of Recovery Residences

Member Standards

\6: Property $6ndafds (C|b^ "i 'LieveOir ^Leveril
1

■ Level III . LevellV:
1 i ■ T

5.9. Rec6>«ry Residences maintain the interior and exterior
' of the property in a fundipnal. safe and clean manor that
is cpmp^ble with the neight^rhood;

X

\

X X X

5.10. Recovery Residences have meeting spaces that
accommodate ail residents; X X X X

5.11. Recovery Residences have appliances that are In
working order'and ̂ miture thM is ingood condition; X X X X

5.12. Recovery Residences address routine and emergency
repairs in a timely ̂ hion; X X X X

e.^Q'opci NeighbprStanfards > , ,  l_evei"l Levef II' •Level HI Level

6.1. Recovery Residences provide neighbors,with the
resjsonsible per^nfs) coritact infpmiatibri upon request.
T>ie responsible perspn{8) responds to neighbor's
complainte. even if H'.ls not possible to r^olve the issue;

X k X X

6:2. Recovery Residences have oiles regarding noise,
smoking, loiterir^ and parking that are rj^ppnstve to
neighbor's r^Mnable complaints;

Strongly
Recommend

Strongly
Recommend

X X

6.3. Recovery Reislderices haveand enforce parking
courtesy rulets where 'street parkjng Is'scarce; X X X X

RFA-201 e-8DAS-02-«ECOV ExtUbll A-1
'Page6of6
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DocuSign Envelope ID: BAAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with Oploid Use Disorder

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The state shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
LlmHation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

This Agreement is funded vinth funds from the Substance Abuse and Mentai Health Services
•Administration. State Opioid Response Grant. CFDA #93.788, FAIN Ti081685.

The Contractor agrees to provide the servicies In Exhibit A, Scope.of Service-in 'compliance
wi^ furidlrig requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded
Cohtractpr's, current and/or ftjture funding.

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

1.1.

1.2.

3)

2.1.

2;2.

Payment shall on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item.
The Coritractor will submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth (20"')
wotog day Of each rrionth. which identifies and requests relmburserhent-for authorized'
expenses incurred In the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and
returried to the Departnent In order to initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep
records of their activities related to Department programs and sen/Ices.

The^State shali make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.
The Coritractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs
and services. ■ -

The finai invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form
Pr37, Block i .7 Completion Date.

In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
Melissa.Glrard@dhhs.nh.aov. or invoices may be mailad tn-

Melissa Girard, SOR Finance Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
BDAS. State Opioid Respprise
129 Pleasant Street; 3"^ Floor
Concord. NH 03301

Payrhents rhay be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
In Exhibit A, Scope^of Services and in this Exhibit B.

Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts
t?etween budget line items, related Items, amendments of related budget exhibits^ within the price
limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written
agreement of both parties ,and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

Hope On Haven Hill

RFP-M19-BDAS-02-RECOVC4

Eidvbit 8

1 ̂  1

Cont/acior initials SO.
Dirt. 3)^1



D
o
c
u
S
i
g
n
 Envelope 10: B

A
A
A
1
3
5
6
-
C
2
A
5
-
4
E
7
9
-
8
D
7
C
-
8
F
9
9
3
2
8
B
D
1
9
2

§1 i

i
 i

§
1
1

S
8

I
s 8
S

H

H
S
8

Hs
s

S
8m

t
Wi

?
 I

5
 6

i
 f



DocuSign Envelope ID: B
A
A
A
1
3
5
6
-
C
2
A
5
-
4
E
7
9
-
8
D
7
C
-
8
F
9
9
3
2
8
B
D
1
9
2

I
D

SZ■ K
.

U
J

i 1] i

I i

n

I
{
*

V
 
-

II

S
8

§
1

§
S
§

i
n

8
3

1
^
1 8
8

Jf

nu

r--



D
o
c
u
S
i
g
n
 Envelope ID: B

A
A
A
1
3
5
6
-
C
2
A
5
-
4
E
7
9
-
8
D
7
C
-
8
F
9
9
3
2
8
B
D
1
9
2

I I 
I

n8
8S
S

8
8

m

8
8a
s

8
8

m8
 8

i
u

8
8

8
8
8

I
S
x

8
8
8

8
8
8

8
8
3

ii 8
8
8

8
8

8
8

8
8

8
8

S
8

W
\
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New Hampshire,Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PRQVISIQNfi

Contractors Oblig^ns; The Cdntractor cover^nts and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under tteXpntract "shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. In the furthieraoM of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows; ,

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the.eligibility
of lr>dividuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance wHh applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Ellglbiltty determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the O^rtmerit for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the DeparlmenL

3., Dc^umentatlon: In addition.to the detenminatibn forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall mantain a data file on each recipient of servktes hereunder, ̂ ich file shall include all
Information necessary"to support an eligibility determination and such other Information as the
Departrhent requests., the Contractor shall furnish the Department v^h all forms'and documentation
regarding eliglbiiity daterminationS.that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that ail applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals-declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determiriation. the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Inforrhed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with. Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
rnake.a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Ihnuence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In.Exhibit A of this
Contract. The St^e"rnay te'rmlnaie this Contra^ and any subrcontract or sub-agreement if it is
.determined th^ ̂ymerits. gristuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
' any officials, officers, erhplbyees or agents of Ihe Contractdr or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or In any
other document,.contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments \will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for

■ any pujpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective .Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the.date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal r^ulatibns) prior.to a determination that the irtdividual is eiigibte for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be.deemed to objigate or require the Deparfrnent to purchase services
hereunder at a .rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
wmich exceeds thejmpunts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such sen/ice. or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service, If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Ex^ndlture Report hereuridef, the Department shall determihe that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder'to reimburse ttems of expense other than such costs, or has' rebeived payment
In excess of such costs or In excess of such rales charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event nevy rates shall be established:
7.2. p.^uct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;

Exhlbii C - Special Provisions ■ Contractor initials.
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Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall institute an Event of Default hereun'der. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine^the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
'reimburse the Departrhent for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Ir^Mdual wtio is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention'of records established herein;-

REC0RDS:.MAIHTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above; the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the foltowing records during the Contract Period:

8.1.• Fiscal Records: tMoks, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other exper^^ 'nc^Jfred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and "all
income received or coUe^^ by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance'with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such posts and expenses, and which are acc^table to the Department, and
to include, w^hout llm'totion. ̂ 1 ledgers, books, records, and otiginarevidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materi^s, inventories, valu^ibns of
in-kind contributldris, iat)pr time cards, payrolls, arid other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of application and
eligibility (including ajl forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of servli^ and all invoices submitted to the Department to retain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall subrriil an annual audit to the Department withiri 60 days after the close of the
ager^ fiscal year, it is recbmmencled that the report-be prepared In accordance, with the provision of
Office of Mariag^erit and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits, of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organiiations.
Programs, A<^yilles and Functions, issued by the IJS General Accountihg Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to firiericial "compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department; the United States Departrnent of Health and Human Services, end any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2; Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way In limitation of obligalloris of the Contract, It Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exceptlbri,

10. Confidentlali^ of Records: All information, reports, arid records rhainiained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be'cpnfldential and shall not
be disctosed'by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws.and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be rriade to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their, official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and. provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipientTor any purpose not
directly corinerted with the adrninistratibn of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respi^ to purchaseid senrices hereunder is prohibited except'on written consent of the recipient, his
attbme/o'r guaid.iari.

Exhibit C -"Special (Provisions Contractor Initials-
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Notwithstanding anythinja to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the; Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Rnanclal Rejwts: Written Interim fihimciaJ refx^rts contalnlrig a detailed descriptionof

all costs and nor^^lowabie expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satlsfactory'by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Firlancial Reports shall be submitted on the form

• designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.^
11.2. Final Report: A ifinal report shall be submitted wHhin thirty (30) days after the end of the term

of this Contract The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contairi a summary.statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department

12. Completion of Senrlces: Di^llowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by,the Department of (he
maximum numl:^ of units provided ifbr In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder,'the Contract arid all.the obUgatons of the parti^ hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of ,^e Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract arvi/or
survive the termlniatioh of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that.if, upon review ofthe
Tmal Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expend claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its disaetion. to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preiMiatibn of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New.Harripshire, Dei^rtmeiit of Health and Hurnan Services, with funds provided In part
by the St^e'bf New Hanipshife and/or such other funding sources as were avallable or
required, e.g., the United States Departrhent of Health and.Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval frbm DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS v^ll retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, deluding, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports.. Contractor shall not reproduce.ahy materials'produced under the conlract.withdut
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any;facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regiilations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall imp<»e an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or.the provision of the services at such facility: If anygovernmental license or
.permit shall be requin^ for the operation of the said facility or the performarice of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contr^tof hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules] orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency.'and shall be in conformance with local building.and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Ernployment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opporturiity Plan (EEOP) to the Office forCivil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,06C) or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Inlliais
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more.employiB«; ayill maintain a current EEOP on file arid submit an EEpP Certifi^ion Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file, For rwpients receiving |ess than ̂ 5,000, or public'grarrtees •
with fewer than 50 employees, n^ardless of the.amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It Is not require to-submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organlj^lons, Indian Trit>es, and medical and ̂ ucational Institutions are exempt frpim the
EEOP requirement, but are require to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/atx>ut/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17; Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As ctarifled by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Ser^ces.for persons with Limited English Profidency. and resulting agency.guldance, nationaiorigin
discfimiriatibn includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compijance'with me Orhnlbus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Thle VI of the Civil
Righte Act of 19^. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persorts have
meaningful acce^ to Its programs.

18, Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee WhisUeblower Protections; The
fotlowirig 'shall.apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified AcquisHiori Threshold ̂  defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistieblcwer Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot prpgrarn on .Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U,S.C.,4712;by sectiori 828 ofthe.National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform its employees in writing. In the predominant languatge of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor, shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts bver the simpirfied acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes thai the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
.subcontrading,.the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is aocorripJisKed through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
' resporisibilities of the.'subcbntra^r and provides.for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions If
the subcontrador'.s performance is nbt.adequaie. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Coriiractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall dp the following:

19.1.

19.2.

Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, i^fore delegating
;the function . . . -

Have a written agreement with the sulxontractor that specifies activities and reporting

19.3.

responsibilities arid how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance te not adequate
Moriitbrthe sutpcontractor's perfomiance on an ongoing basis

ExhibM C - special Provisions
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responslbilitii^. and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontiacts.

If the ConUactor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take comective action.

20. Contract DefinlUohs:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mjMn those, direct arid indirect items of expehse determined by the Departrhent
to be allovrable and reimburuble in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
In accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMEhTr: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

'20.3. PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and .setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the .Contract^

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Iridividuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time of that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the ̂ ntract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or laws, regulations, rules, orders; and
policies, ̂ c.:afe referred to in the Contract, the said, reference shall be deemed .to mean
all such lavrs. regulatioris. etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6.' SUPPLANTiNG .bjHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract Conditionai Nature of Agreement is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this.Agreemeht to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limrtalron, the continuance of payriients, In whole or In part
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
Including ariy.sUb^uent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds ̂ ected by
any state or federal legislative or ex^utive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the apprr^riation or availability of fundjng for this Agreement arid the Scope of
^rvices provid^ In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall.have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
.State shall have the right to red^. terminate or modify services under this Agreement
irririiediatejy upon gKrlhg the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The S^e shall riot be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
AcMunt(s) identified In blpck 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
accounL in the event funds are reduc^ or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, Is amended by adding the
following language;-

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State,' 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event :of:eai1y termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
^reement.^ including but not limited to. Identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

.  10.3 The Contradpr shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to-support the Transition Plan including, but not llrrilted to. any Information or
d^' requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and TransKlon Plan
and. shall provide bngolrig communicatton and revisions of the TransKlon Plan to the State as
r^uested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement^ including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agr^ment are transltioned to havirrg services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or~the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Tranisition Plan.

10.5' The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients arid, other affected indrviduals
about the transKipn. The Contractor -shall Include the proppsed communications In its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described atrove.

3. Renewal:

The Department reserves the right to extend this Agreement fpr up to two (2) ̂additional years.
Contingent ufx>n saitisfaCtory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Extiibit C-1 - RevislonS'to Standard Prowsions Contractor Initials
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CERTIRCATION REGARDINQ DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The.Contractor Identifi^ in Se^on "1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to cbmpty with the provisions of
SectJorts 5151-6160 of the Drug-free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V., Subtitle D; 41
U.S.G. 701 et seq.), and furtoer agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certificatipn:

.ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certiflwtion Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D: 41 U.S.G. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were afrianded arid published as part II of the May 25,1990, Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certificatibn by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
cphtractors), prior tp award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation'provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub'^rahteeis and sub-contractore) that is"a State
may elect to rnakeqne certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificaiea for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set but below is a
material representation of feet upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant False
certification or violation of the certificatfon shall be grounds for suspenslori of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Healih and Human Services
129 Reasant Street
Coricbrd, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or v/ill continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a s^tement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensirig, po.s^ssion or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace arid specifying the actions that will be, taken .against employees for violation of such
prohibition; , -

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.1 Ariy avallat)le drug counseling, rehabilitation, and ernplbyee assistance programs: and
■1.2.4. The perialtles that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requiremerit that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a.copy of the siatement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Nrbtifying the emplpyee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment underlhe'grant, the employee will
1.4.1., Abide b/the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2.. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a viblatipri of a criminal drug

stabJte occurrlrig in the workplace no. later than five calendar day$,.after such
conviction:

1.5. Notifying the agency in writmg, within ten calendar days after.receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or oiherwise recerying actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must,provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity Uie convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

D - Certification regarding Drxig Free Comractor Initials
WorXpisca Requirements
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification numberfs) of each affected giant;

1 6 Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice undersubpa^raph 1.4.2. with r«p«t to any emf^yeewhols so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate perspnnet action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, cortsislent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act .of 1973, as
airhendcd: or .. ..

1.6.2\ Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a daig abu^ assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; . .

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
irhpleiTientation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2.1.3. 1.4,1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the sllefs) for the performance of work done In
cprinectioh with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check D if mere are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Contractor Name:

^  ICf ALLma:
Date l ' S>ha'ConXvate.

E'X/C n-hvc 1)

CUfDHMS/tlOm

EjJiIbH D - C«rtificaiion regarding Drag Free Contractor Initieh
WofHplace Requlrernients
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CFRTIFICATION LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide'Guidance for New R®stri^ons ̂  ■ S "nn.! 1 11
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contr^tor's representative, as idenUfied m SecUons 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTME^ OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Neiedy Families under Tide IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Tide XX
•Medicaid Pragrani under Tide XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title Vl
XhiW Care Development Block Grant under Tide IV

The undersigned certiflOT, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the ""^erslgn^ t^
any person for Ihfluencirig or attempting to'lnfiuence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Cohorts an officer or employee.of Congress, or an employee of a Member of CP^gr^s in
conn^on with Ihe'avrarding of any Federal contracL continuation, renewal arne^dmerit. or
modificitipn of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention

■ sul>gnarilee or sub-wntractor).

2  if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid lo^any p^son fw
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a

, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memtwr of Congre^ in
Federal contract. granL loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention su^rantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete/and submit Standard Form LLL, .
Report Lobbying, jn accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit t-i.)

3. the undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Includ^ in the awato
document-fbr'sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontract, su^grants. and under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreertients) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disciose accordingly.

Thiecertification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was plac^ i^eri ttils transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by ̂ cUon 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Ariy peraon vyho toils ̂  .the r^ui^
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than S10.000 and not more than S100.000 for
each such failure.

Cohtractor Name: 4-Uvfvy -\4t W

Date * I Name: g, KaTIrxCP

Exhibit E - C^ertiflcatton Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initialsg
CU<OHHS(1l07l3 Page 1 ol 1 2jU^
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Exhibit F

rP^ffCATIQM MGAPDINQ OEBARMPfiT- SUSPENSION
fND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Contractor identifterJ in S^ion 1.3 of the General Provisions agmes to wmply wth ̂  P^^teions of
Executive Office of the-President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR
Susoension arid Other Respohsibiiity Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractors^

and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the f(Xlo>^ng
Certific^on:

i^nl^^ahd^^^ {contract), the prospective priniary participant Is providing the
certification setput below.

2  The inability of a person to provide the certificaUon required below will
■  of participallonin this covered transaction, if ne<»ssary. the prospective partcipantsha I ̂

explan'ation of wtiy. it cannot provide the certification. The certification o''"R'f na^ion^'^
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this Uansaction. However, failure of^e prospective
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from partcipabon in
this transaction.

■3. The certification in this dause is a material representation of fact upon *as
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later deteniiined that toe pros^ctiye
primary particiijant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, In addiUon to other ^me^s
Available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4 The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHMS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective pnmary partjcipam learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reawn of changed
.circumstances.

5  The terms -covered transaction," 'debarred," "suspended." "ineligible." "lower tier cover^transaction." "partidpant."-pdrson," ^primary covered transaction." "prindpal. pfOpoMl. and
'voluntarily exdiided.' as used In tois dause; have the meanings set out in the Definitions andCoverage'sections;of the rules implementing Executive Oi^er 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. the prospective primary partidpant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should theproposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly epter into,any lovvw tier covered
transaction wltti a person wtio ls debaired, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntanly exduded
frbrh partcipationjn this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7  The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting tois pro^sial that it wll include toe
- dause titled "Certification Regarding Debarmenl.-Suspension, Ineligibility and Volqn.tary Exclusici^

Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8 A partidpant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective P^°Pant In a
lower tier.covered trahsadion that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntenly exduded
from the covered transa^oh, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A F«rti&pant may
decide the method arid frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its pnncipals. Each
participant may, but Is not require to. check toe Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

'9 Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowtedge and

Exhibit F - Cortification R^a^dlng Debaiment, Suspension Contractor Initials
And Oder f^sponslbatty MattersPage lot 2 DB\Br?j/jf |
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Exhibit r

InforthaUon of.a participant is not required to exceed that which is normaily possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10 Except ior transactions authbrized. under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a ®
■ covered transaction knowingly enters into a iower tier Mvered ^
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntariiy excluded from
addition to other remedies'available to. the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transactio
for cause or default;

^e^prw^ve?^^^ to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that.it .and Its
I ri^'^are"hot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. de^red

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by apy Federal departnnenl or agen^^.
II 2 have hot within a three-year period preceding this proposai(contr8ct)^n ^

a dvU judgment rendered against them for commi^ion of ̂ ud ,ocah
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a f
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, makind false statements, or receiving'stoien property;

11.3. are hot presently indicted for otherwise;criminally or civil^ charged by a
(Federal, Slate or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)

11 4 ha^e nSSh rth^dtyear period preceding this appUcation/proposal had one or fnorp public
tran^ctions (Federal: State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the
■  certification; such prospective participant shall attach an.explanation to. this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS _

13 By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the
defined in 45 CFR Part 76; ce.rtifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and .|ls principals.
13 1 -are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenL declar^ ineligible, or

■  voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by ariy federal department or agency.
13 2 where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the atiove, such

prospective particlpaht shall attach.an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14 The prospective lower tier particlpaht further agrees by submitting this propoMi (^fract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. IneligibHity. and
Volunla^ Exausion - Lower tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:-4-^

Date ' 1 Name:

Ex T) I r?dftrr'

p"r2>r- - - - oai..^ '7/i')
CLIUHWS/U071J, . j I

Exhibit F - Certification RejartJ^ OebenTient. Suspension Cbntradbr InHlajs,
And Other Responslblll^ Matters
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f^FtnincATtON qf cqmpuance wth REQUlH^^NTg
M

WH)gnFRLQ^R PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agr^ by signature ofrepresentative as Idientified in Sections 1:11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followi g
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will r^uire any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply,, with any applicable
federal nondiscdmination requirements, which may Include;

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 <42 U.S.C. S^Uon 3789d) ̂^^h
recipients of f^eral funding under this statute from discriminating, either m emplo^nt practices or in
the delivery of Mryices or benefits; oh the basis of race, color, religion, nahonal ongin. and sex. The Act
requires certain redpiehts to produce ah Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C.reference; theicivil rights Obligations of the Safe Streets Act Redpients of f^eral ̂rjding
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis, of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Ertiptoyment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.:Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal fihariciel
assistance from discriminaUng .on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity).
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients'of Federal finandal
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to emplpymenl and the delivery of
services or benefits.-In any prograrri or activity;

-the Americans with bisabllities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with dlMbilities in employment. Slate and local
government selvtoes. public acppmrriodaliqns. commercial fadiities. and transportatjon.
-the Education Amendmen'ls of 1972(20 U.S.C. Sedions 1681.1683,1685-86). which prohibits
di^minatiori.ori the'basis.qf sex in'f^erally assisted education programs;

. the Age. DiscrimihaUon Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106.07), which prohibits dlsc^minatioh on the
basis of age in pr^rams oractivitids receiving Federal finarKjial assistance. It does not include
employment dl^minaOori;

- 28 C F R pL 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondlscrimlnation: Equal Employment Opportunity; Poliaes
and ̂ rdcedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the iavirs for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamentel pnnciples and policy-making
criteria foV'partnershlps with faith-based and neighborhood orgahMtions;

- 28 C F.R Dt. 38 (U.S. Departmeiit of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faito-Bas^
Organizations): and WhlstJeblowef protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defq^e Authorization
Act (NbAA) for Ri^I Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whisflebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
aaency awa/ds the grant False certficatlon or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
susperision of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment

Exhtoa G
Contrecto'^ Intti&b

CwtfCTtw d Coowiam w«n » rww- N«niS»ertmWm TiWbni»M f^  orclVMtStUMMrFRAKbor*
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In me event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stete administrative ageppy makes 0 o*
discriminatibn after a due process hearing.on the grounds of race, color, religion.^tional
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of m.e finding to me C_Wtce
me applicaWe contracting agency or division vrithin the Department of Heatm and Human Services, and
to me Department of He^m.and Hurnan Sehrices Office of me Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3.of me General Provisions agrees t)y signature.of the^ntractor^
represenlative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foPowing
certification;

I. By signing and subrhltting mis proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to compty wim the provisions
indicated at)ove.

Contractor Name

3) -7.) I ̂
I  'Diti I / Name:

E*l»lbii G
Contractor Initials

C«rUhwan« Com|4«ic« Wv'a^irwMntl p«n*w«g » r«Wl NanSiiohMWier., Tt«»n« d Otpariiewr*
yid S'ihildtaO'«* frOKtoH .
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CFRTTFICATIOM REGARDIHQ ENVlRONMEWTAt tobacco SMQffi

Public Law 103-227 Part C,-Environmental To^ Smoke, ateo known as ttie Pro-Children ̂  1994
(/Kct) roouires ̂ at smoking not be'pemirtted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or o*"bylTX ari^usXutinely or rBgularly for me pro«^
or library services to aiiildren under the age of 18. if the services are.fund^ by ®
diiwtJy or through St^e or local governments, by Federal grant, contract toan.
lavr does not apply.to children's services provided m private '^f c-jiure
Medicare or Medicald funds, arid portions of facilities used for InpaUent drug or alco^l
to^ comply with the provisiohs of.the law may result in the imposibon of a avil
$1M0 per day and/or the ImposiUori of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of C^n^ctofs
representative as Identlfiad in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

. 1 By signing and submitting this contract, the Coritractor agrees to make
' Jth all appliMble provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:'4-\^^<- l\

pate 7 I Name:

xhlbit H - Certification Regaroing wunu-^w. i ̂
Envlfonmonlal Tobacco Smoko .

Pagevon Data t
Exhibit H - Cartiflcation Regarding Cdntractor Intttab
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Exhfblti

At TH INSUq^P PORTABILITY ACT
pi IfilMFfiR ASSQCIATF AfiRgEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agr^s to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104^191 and
with the Sitandards for Privacy and Security of Indrviduaily Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access tp protected health information under this Agreement and Covered
Entity* shall meain the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same rheaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such temi in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e  "Data Aoareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data.aggregation' ln 45CFR
Sectiori 164.501.

f. "Health Care Ooefatldns" shall have the same meaning as the term "health careoperations
In 45 CFR Sectiori 1,64.501.

g.. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Inforrnation Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act^ TItleXlll, SMbtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" nieans the Health Insurance Portability and Accouritability Act of1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
lnformation, .45 CFR Parts 160. 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i- 'Indtvidual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a^person who qualifies.as a.personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR^cUon.164.501(g).

]. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Informatidh at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the UnitedStates
Department of Health'and Human Services.

k. "Pfotected Health Iriformation" shall have the same meaning as the term "protect^ health
.information' In 45 CFR Section 160.10.3, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Assoclate'from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

Exhibit I ContraciorlniU®i9V20U
Health insurance Portabiity Act 1 I /\
Su&lncss Assodato Agreement
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Exhibit I

■Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45CFR
Section 164.103.

m.

n.

'Secr^arv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

■Sficurftv Rule- Shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

I  ■

0  "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable.- or indecipherable to. unauthorized individuals and is developed or endors^ by
a standards developing prganiization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute;

n nther Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
establishedunder45C.F:R. Parts 160.162and 164, as amended frorhtirne to time, and the
hijech
Act.

(2) Ruftlnefts Asftftclflte Use and Discloaurfl of Protected Health InfQrmatlQn.
a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide'the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreemerit: Further, Busiriess Associate, including but r^ol limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall nOt.usei disclose, maintairt or transmit
PHI-in .any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business A^ociate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper rnanagement and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the teims.set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Msocjate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose.PHI to, a
third party. Business . Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held conndenlially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for vdiich it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third pai^ to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Brepch Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is.reasonably nec^sary to
provide servipes under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to^a
request foi.disciosufe on the basis that It is required by law. without first notifying
Coyefed Eiitity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief; If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 I  Contractor inlilals _
Hoaim Insurance Port ability Ad
auslness As^ate Agroement
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c.

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ail
rem^ies.

e  If the Cdvefed Entity notifies the Business Associate that .Covered Entity has agre^ to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Busing nf
shail be bound by.such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in vioteUon of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional secunty safeguards.

(3) phlinatlnns apTt BllslnftfiS AaSOClate-

a. The Busiriess Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Offiper imme^ately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information andVor any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b  The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes'
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificatjon;

0 The unauthorized person used the protect^ health Information or to whom the
disclosure was rnade;- .

Whether the protect^ health information was actually acquired or viewed
-The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information, has been
mitigated.

0

o

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach' and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate.shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use.and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secmtary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Busiriess Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI undlf the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere.to the same
restrictions and cbndlUons on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. incM'^g
the duty to return or desboy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business pso^ate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who tyill be receiving PHI

i  Contractorlnlllals,
Health Insofsnce Port^lity Ac»
0i»$lnwa Assodato Aff-eemeni
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnificaUon J'om such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

i  within five (5) busihe^ days of receipt of a written request from Covered f
Business Associate shali rhake available during normal business hours at its offiws ail
records, books, agreement, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHi tp the Covered Entity, for purposes of enaljling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a.written requ^ from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to.PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designate-Record
Set. the Business Associate shali make such PHI available to Covered Eritity for
.amendment and mcorporat'e any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a requ^l by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164,528.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity
ir^uest for an accounting of disclosures Of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section ,164.528.

k  In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly'from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall w4thin two (2)
busiriess days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered. Entity shall have the
responsibirity of respondiiig to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
individual's r^uest to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the BusinessAssociate
shali instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (.10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from', or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement. and..shairnot:retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is riot feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been,otherwise agreed torn
the Agreertierit. Business Associate..shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement; to such PHI and limit further use's and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business

Exhibit j Contr^lorIwtiBlJ
Healtli Insurance Portabffi^ Act

3/2014
Health Insurance Portabm^ Ad \ t
Business Associate Aflreerneiit
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that Ihe
Business Associate destroy any,or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) fihligatlonfl of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitatlonCs) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provld^ to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR S^ion
.164.520, to the e>tent that such change.or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall,prompUy notify Business Associate of any changes ih, or revocation
of permlMibn provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose RHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any r^ictjons on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately teriminate. the Agreement upon Covered
Eritity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business A^ociate
Agreement set,forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either imm^iately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
allied breach Within a tiimeframe specified by Covered Entity, if Covered Entity
determines that rielther termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the.same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section ih the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to time.as is necessary for Covered
Entity to. comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security'Rule. and applicable federal and state law.-

c., Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by Or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The "parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall, be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to Comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

EjdVbil \ Conlractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act » i
Business Assodale Agreement I o I iQ
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e  SeareQation; If any term or'condition of this Exhibit I or the ®
persori(s) or circumstance Is held Invatid. such invalidity stiali not
Shditions^ich can given effect without.the invalid.term or condition; to this end the
terms .and conditions of thjs Exhibit I are declared severable.

f  Survival.'Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding.the use and disclosure of. PHI, retum or •
destruction of PHI. e^rtensions of the protections of the Agreement In ̂ dion (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of secrtlpn (3) e and paragraph 13^of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the.termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the, parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

' Department of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name
\^Vv
ofAuthonj'e

^  7}x:
d Representative

Title of Authorized, Representative

-

Date

le AWhe ContractorName

Signature of Authorized Representative

S^jngyn
Name of Authorizeid Representatiye

Title of Authorized Representative. "

Date

3/2014
Exhibil I

Health Insurance PortebUity .Act
Buslr^ Associate .^f^rnenl

Page 6 of 6
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CgRTinCATION REQARDINQ THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCQUNTABfMTY ANPf^linvniivniT- -TiTT.iir

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires pTime
Federal-grants equal to or grwter than ;525.000 and awarded on or atter October on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result m a total avi^rt equaUo or over
.S25.o6o; the award Is subject tb the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of me awart.
In accordance with 2 CFR PartM70 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Depitment of Health and Human ̂rvices (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subav^rd or contract award.subjwt to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity

2. /^bunt of award
1  iFuhding agency
A. NAIC^S code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Awaj-d title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Llnique identifier of the'entity (DUNS #)
•10. Total compensation "and harries of the top five exfifcutives if:

10.1. More than 80.% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government and those
revenues are greater than S25M annually and

■iO.2.' Com'pensatipn Iriformatioh is not already available through reporting to the SEC.
Prirrie grant recipients must,submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made. . - . , i *
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to ̂ mply vwth the proy^^^^^
The Federal Funding Accountebiiity and Transparency Act Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 11(>-252.
arid 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Comjjensation Information), and further agrees
"to have the Contractor's representative, as identified iri Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification: . ^ u mu
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outiined above to toe NH
Depa^ent of Health and Human Services and to comply with all appUcable provisions of the Federal

' Rriancjal Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: VV\VV

3hl\^Date, I I Name:

CUfOHH8/110713

Extiibil J- Certific8tion Ragaftiing ihd F»<»e(al Funding Contractor Inltiab
A«6untabl6ty And Trarsparoficy Act (FFATA) CompBanc«i c2? lo 11 M

PagoiofZ I



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8AAA1356-C2A5-4E79-8D7C-8F99328BD192

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Soivices
Exhibit J

FORMA

As ̂me Conti^bridentified in Section 1.3.6f General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true, arid accurate.

1. The DUNS numter for your entity is:,.

2. In your business" or .organization's preceding completed fiscal year. did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent br more of your annual gross revenue in U.S.-federal cpnbacts. su^ontracts,
loans, grarits," su^rante. and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross'revenues from U;S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements? '

NO YES

If the answer to #2. above is .NO. stop here

if the answer to #2 above is YES. piease ansv/er the following:

3. Does the public have acce^ to information about the compensation of the executives In.your
busine^ or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a).or 15(d) of the'.Securities
Exchange Act oM934 (15.U.S.C.78m(aj. 7.8o{d)) or g^tion 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, slop here

If the answer to #3 above is.NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and corhpensation of the five most highly coitipensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Name;

Name:

.Name:

Nahie:

Name:

Amount:,

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount;

Amount

;.CUt}l'<KS't107l3

Exltiba J - C«ftiflcatior Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And transparency Ad (FFATA) Compllarice

piage 2.012

Contractor InHials

Data3 7
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the de^ribed meaning in this document.

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
uhauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
author'iz^ purpose ha^ access or potential access to personally identifiable
Tnforrhatioh. whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

Z  -Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling GuideV National Institute .of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
•of Commerce;

3. 'Confidential Information" or 'Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Corifideritial Information also includes any and all information ovmed or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Humari Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure; protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Infoimation (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payrnent Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information..

.4. "End User^ means any person or entity (e:g., contractor, contractor's .employee,
business - associate, sulxontractpr, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIF'AA" means the Health Insurance Portability arid Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an.'explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to'gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to systern hardware,
firrriwafe, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement loss
or rnispiacement-of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

'^D
V5. Lk! update 1(y09/18 Exhibit K Contractor InlUab

DHHS Information

Security Requirements
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7, "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to trahsnrilt) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure, for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or''PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an indivlduars Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
,information as defined in Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined vwth other personal or Identifying information which is linked
,or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc,

,9. "Privacy Rule' shall niean the-Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Iriformation at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
defirirtion"of 'Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Iriformation at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart 0. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected He^alth Inforrriation that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Infomiatipn
unusable, unreadable, of indecipherable to unauthprlzed individuals arid is
deyelbped or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use.and Disclbsure'of Corifidential Information.

1. The Contractor must riot use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Inforrriation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees arid agents, must.ndl
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

vs. LftM update I(y09/16 Exhibit K

DHHS Information
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request for disclosure on the basis that It is. r^uired by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and atwve those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additibnai restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4; The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not t)e used for
• apy other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the apprized representatives
of DHHS fbr the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential,Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications.have
been eyaiuated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security .and that said

/application's ericryptipn capabilities erisure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices^ End User rnay not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
;d3ta.

3. Encrypted Email, End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrvotbd and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such iriforrnation.

4. Encrypted Web .Site. If End User is emplbyihg' the Web to .trahshriit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site, must be
secure: SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. • File Hosting Services.,also known as Rle Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Sen/Ice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
niail within the coritlnenlal U.S. and when sent to a named individual..

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices .to transmit
Confidential Data said, devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wirelesis Networks.-End User may riot transmit Confidential Data via an open

V6. Last update 10rti9/18 ExhlbitK Contractor inUiats. ^
DHHS information

Security Requirements
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely t'ransrnitting via an open wireless r>etwofk.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communicatlori to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on'the EfHd User's, mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure Rle Transfer Protocol, if
End User is enrtploying an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the. Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
infohnation. .SFTP folders arid sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential'Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confideritlal Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices..If.End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encryptied to prevent inappropriate disclosure'of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whoever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
urider this Contract. Tp this,end,,the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection vrfth the services rendered under this Contract outside, of the .United
States: This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup,
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabiiities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
•and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees, to provide security awareness and ejducation for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential infoirnation.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential'Data
in-a secure location and Identified in section iV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECk compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

V5. USI update iwog/ie ExNbit K Contractor Initials
OHHS InJormation
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the Statie's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B.. Disposition

1. If the Contractor, will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contactor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented proce» for
securely disposing of.such data upon request of contract termination; and will
obtain written "certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Cdnti^ctor of anyeuttcontraclors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operafipns. When no, longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be" rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in. accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitizatlon. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800^88; Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanltization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will documerit and certify In writing at
lime of the data destruction, and vyill provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include .all details riecessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroy^ and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and .professional standards for retehtlph requirements .will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of'this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Corifidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified,, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely d^troy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping;

ly. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or.files; as follows:

1. The Contractor vvil) maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services:

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
cpnfiddhtial.lnformatiori't'hroughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, tfansformatioh, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of Uie
media used to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. Le$t update KVOa/tS ExnWtK . Cootractor tnaiele,
DHHS'lnrermatioh
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3. The Contractor will rnalntain appropriate authehtlcaltlon and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transrhlt. or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect .potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
C^partment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Depaitrient confidential infdimation.

6.. If the Contractor vvill t>e sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Ham^hire, the Contractor wili maintain a
program of an ihlemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to^ security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor vfl'll work with the Department to sign and comply vrith all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, ̂systerns access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
pbtainlhg arid maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and sign^ by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department detehnlnes the Contractor is ,a Business . Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Coritractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreemerit
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will vyork with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for ar)y changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that rriay
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
dnriualty, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be corfipleted when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store; knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States uriless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership merriber within the Department.

'11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of ariy security breach Contractor shall
rhakO! efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take rneasures to
prevent ffitufe tireach and minimize any damage or loss, resulting from the breach.
The "State ehail recover from the Contractor all costs of respdrise and recovery from

V5 Lasli^ste Exhibit K Contractor IrVtials
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs .associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Cpntractbr must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulatioris regarding the
privacy and 'se:curity of Confidential Information, and must In ,all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level arid scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulalibns (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy apd Security Rules (45
Q p.R Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthofized, use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is hot less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department gf Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement ait htlps:/Avww.nh.gov/dolt^endor/index.htm
for the Departnhent of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach hbtlfication and Incident
response process" The Contractor will notify, the State's Privacy Officer and- the
".State's Security ̂Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer

■, security Incident, .or suspected breach which affecte or ihcludes^any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15.. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.
c. ensure-that laptops and other electrbnic devices/media,containing PHI, PI, or

PR are ericrypted and password-protected.
d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted arid being

sent to and being received by email addresises of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V5. Lost up<late 1(V09/1S Exhftxl k Cont/aoor Initiate.
DHHS Inipnfiation
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this .Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically-and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours, (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biorhetric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative-files containing personally identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
ass^srhent of the drcumstances involved.

1. uhderstarid that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site dir^ly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite. inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security rjequiremente provided In herein, HIPAA,
arid other aj3(3licable laws and Federal regulations until such tl^e the Confidential Data
Is disposed of iri accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the .State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security .Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must .further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance With the agency's documented Incident Handling arid Breach Notification
procedures arid in accordance vrith 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding; Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspect^ or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and cdnverie a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determirie risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. LMtupdateKVO^Ifi ExMUlK' Contractor
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and, if so, Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and cohterits from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
rheasures^

Incidents ahdfpr Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.goy

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformatlpnSecurltyOffice@dhhs.nh.gpv

V5. Last update itVO^,18 ErfiWl K Cofttrocibflnili^a ,
DHHS InlOfmaUon 1 I «

Security Bequiramenis 1Q
Page9of9 Date --'I / [ H
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Recovery Housing for individuals with OUD Contract

This 1 Amendment to the Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Homestead Inn 1765 LLC.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation with a place of
business at 188 King St. Boscawen, NH 03303.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 23, 2019, (Item #18), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37 General Provisions, Paragraph 18 Amendment, and Exhibit C-1
Revisions to General Provisions, Section 3 Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of services, increase funding and extend the term of
the agreement to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

/

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2021.

2. Form P-37, Genera! Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$245,788.

3. Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services, Section 3, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards, to
read:

3. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standard
"  • /

3.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded initiatives,
the Contractor shall ensure each Site: ^

3.1.1. Establishes formal information sharing and referral agreements with all

Doorways for substance use services that comply with all applicable
confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

3.1.2. Completes client referrais to applicable Doorways for substance use services
within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the program.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

3.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract

effective date to review contract implementation.

3.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans

associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)

days of the contract effective date.

3.5. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs

funds and respite shelter funds are in compliance with the Department and SAMHSA

requirements. /—ds

Homestead Inn 1765 LLC Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-03-A01 Page 1 of 5 Date^^'*^^^^^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

3.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall assist clients with enrolling in public or
private health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage and will
have staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid.

3.7. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall accept clients on Medicaid Assisted

Treatment (MAT) and facilitate access to MAT on-site or through referral for all clients
supported with SOR grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

3.8. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall coordinate with'the NH Ryan White
HIV/AIDs program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

3.9. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly
screened for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of

treatment planning.

3.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with all
appropriate Department, State of NH, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Administration (SAMHSA), and other Federal terms, conditions, and requirement.

3.11. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

3.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

3.11.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use
or mental disorders.

3.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

3.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

3.11.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department
within thirty (30) days of contract approval.

3.12. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

3.12.1. Invoicing:

3.12.2. Funding restrictions; and

3.12.3. Billing.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by adding Section 4 to read:

4. Reporting Requirements

4.1 The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic
surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department
and/or SAMHSA.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by adding Section 5, Performance Measures, to read:

5. Performance Measures

Homestead Inn 1765 LLC Amendment #1 Contractor Initialj

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV^3-A01 Page 2 of 5 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

5.1 The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of patients seeking.services under this contract
that enter care directly through the Contractor who consent to information sharing with
the Doorway(s) receive a Doonway referral for substance use and ongoing care
coordination.

5.2 The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department on the development, reporting,
and quality improvement efforts for additional performance measures and outcome
indicators.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B-1, Budget by reducing the total budget amount by $8,622, which Is identified as
unspent funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY 21 as
specified, in part, in Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1 NCE.

8. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1, NCE Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Homestead Inn 1765 LLC Amendment #1 - Contractor Initials

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-03-A01 Page 3 of 5 Date^^'*^^®^^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and

effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to September 29, 2020 upon the date of Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/21/2020

Date

DocuSlgntd by:

iCiXjA fwC

Title: Oi rector

12/14/2020

Date

Homestead Inn 1765 LLC

—Ooeu3lgn*d by;

Paquette

Title: ms

Homestead Inn 1765 LLC

RFA.2019.BDAS-02.RECOV^3.A01

Amendment #1

Page 4 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OLID

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-DocuS)gn*d by;

12/22/2020

Date f5§ff^toiKerTne~pTnoF
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Homestead Inn 1765 LLC Amendment #1

RFA-2019.BDAS-02-RECOV-03-A01 Page 5 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as

awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance

Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and

as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN

H79T1083326.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the

fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-6 Amendment #1 Budget.

3. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

3.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

3.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare. '

3.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows:

3.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization

(MCG), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the

MCO.

3.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

3.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale

Program.

3.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,

charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)

working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for

authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall

be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.

The Contractor shall ensure:

4.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employegs worked for
wages reported under this contract. [ y?

Homestead Inn 1765 LI.C Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initial^
12/14/2020

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV4)3-A01 Page 1 of 4 Date

Rev. 01/08/19
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

EXHIBIT 8 Amendment #1

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i){1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries

and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work

performed.

4.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the

Department upon request.

4.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

4.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

4.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

4.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

4.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

4.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide

marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

4.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

4.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference

grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the

FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to
exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

4.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

4.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

4.1.5. Cost center reports.

4.1.6. Profit and loss report.

4.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

4.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on

third party revenue received.

4.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other

financial information as requested by the Department.

5. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complym^ with further

w
Homestead Inn 1765 LLC Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initial:

12/14/2020
RFA.2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-03.A01 Page 2 of 4 Date

Rev. 01/08/19
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

EXHIBIT 8 Amendment #1

restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SDR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the
last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

8. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

9. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

10. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance with
funding requirements.

11. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Scope of Services,
including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

.12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the
following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds

received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of
$1,000,000 or more.

itial5L_Homestead Inn 1765LLC Exhibit B Amendment#! Contractor Initial

12/14/2020
RFA.2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-03-A01 Page 3 of 4 Date _____
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

13.1.3. Condition 0 - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by
an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days
after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the

Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be
required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the

Contractor is high-risk.

13.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for

any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments
made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception.

Homestead Inn 1765 LLC

RFA.2019.BDAS4)2-RECOV-03-A01

Rev. 01/08/19

Exhibit B Amendment #1

Page 4 of 4

Contractor Initial:

Date
12/14/2020
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HOMESTEAD INN 1765 LLC is

a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 20, 2013. 1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary ofSiate's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 687293

Certificate Number: 0005037317

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of November A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 , Kristine Paquette , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Homestead Inn 1765 LLC

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on November 23rd , 20 20 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were
present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Kristine Paquette (may list more
than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Homestead Inn 1765 LLC to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 12/14/20 Papu<Ms^
Signature of Elected Ofneer
Name:

Title:

Rev. 03/24/20



ACC^d' certificate OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMJODrrVYY)

12/11/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTinCATE DOES NOT AFRRMATTVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the poiicy, certain policies may require an ondorsemonL A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

RSC insurance Brokerage. Inc.

IS Pacella Park Drive

Suite 240

Randoiph MA 02366

NAm"^^ Cindy Ford
(781)966^400 (781)963-4420

A^RESS: ctofd@ri8k-strategles.con>
IN$URER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICI

INSURERA Vantapro Specialty insurance

INSURED

Homestead Inn 1765 LLC

168 King Street

Boscawen NH 03303

INSURER a

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTinCATE NUMBER: 0120121186624 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THSJfl
LTR

Aobt
TYPE OF INSURANCE

SUBR
POUCY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMMfDDfYYYYI

POUCY EXP
iMMmorrrrYl UMTS

X COUMEROAL GENERAL UABtUTY

CLAJMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

oAmAge to rented
PREMISES (Eaoccurrencel

5068077801 05/15/2020

MED EXP (Any on» pfioni

05/15/2021
PERSONAL i AOV INJURY

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

PRO
JECTPOUCY LOC

OTHER:

QENERALAGGREOATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Physical Abuse and

1.000,000

N/A

5.000

1.000,000

3.000,000

3.000,000

100.000

AUTOMOBILE LiABIUTY

ANY AUTO

GGMBINEO'dlNOEe'tlMIT
lEa aedoemi

BODILY INJURY (Par parton)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par acddarK)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(PafaccManii

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PR<3PRIETOR/PARTN6R/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED-?
(MandtloiyinNHI
If yaa, daicriba unoar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

□ E.L EACH ACCIDENT

E.L DISEASE-EAEMPLOYEE

E.L DISEASE - POUCY UMIT

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Addftlonal Ramtrkt S«ha4ula. may ba anachad H mora apica It rtRulrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant St
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SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
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ACORO 25 (2016/03)
<S) 1988.2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rosorvod.
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188 King St
Boscav/en NH 03303

603-975-004:1.

krisiinepaquetle@honiestea(Jinn.org
HoinesteacJinn.ofg

December 14, 2020

To whom it may concern,

Homestead Inn 1765 LLC is registered as a New Hampshire Limited Liability
Company to conduct business in New Hampshire. Kristine Paquette is the sole

employee of Homestead Inn 1765 LLC. The company is not required to maintain
workers compensation Insurance.

Submitted,

isilA^kia
rlstine Paquette

Owner/Director
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
-Cominiisioner

Kiijs S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

(29 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301 /

603-271-9445 I-000-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD AcctM: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 25, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Coricprd, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

■Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health to enter
into ah agreement vyith Homestead Inn 1765, LLC. 188 King Street. Boscawen, NH 03303, to prpvlde
Recovery'Housing services and supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder (CUD), in an amount
not to exceed $117,000, effective upon Governor and Council approval, through September 29, 2020. .
1,00% Federal Funds. '

Funds to; support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2020
and 2021 with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between,
State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE
OPlOlb RESPONSE GRANT.

state Fiscal
Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total
Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 ■ $94,122

2021 102-500731 . Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $22,878

-
Total: $117,000

' •./

•A-i
'Z:>

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide Recovery Housing services and supports to individuals
with ppioid Use Disorder (CUD) who need housing in a supported .and safe environment. New
Hampshire has minimal capacity to serve individuals in need of recovery housing and there are few
options for specialty populations who have complex needs and/or gender-specific housing. ' .

The State of New Harripshire received funding through the Substance'Abuse and Mental Health
•Services Administration Stale Opipid Resporise grant award. This grant is being used Id make critical
investments in the Substance Use Disorder system in order to reduce unmet treatment needs, reduce
opioid :6ve'rdose fatalities and increase access to Medication Assisted Treatment. The State is

.irhplementing evidence-based methods to expand treatment, recovery and prevention services to
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T..Sununu
and the Hphorabie Council
Page 2 of 2 •

individuals with Opiold Use Disorder. These funds will strengthen established programs that have had a
positive Irhpact on the opioid crisis as well as expand the capacity for programs to assist individuals
struggling with an OUD.

The vendor included in this requested action was selected for this project through a competitive
bid process. This request represents one (1) of the selected four (4) vendors. The Department previously
awarded three (3) contracts that were approved by the Governor apd Executive Council on June 19.
2019. A R^uestfor Applications was posted on the Department of Health and Human Services'website
from October 22, 20|8 through November 13, 2018. In addition, on October 23, 2018 an email of
nbtificatibn of the RFA was distributed to stakeholders throughout the State. The pepartrnent received
six (6) applications. The applications were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program-
specific knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the
applications. The Score Surnmary is attached.

The Contractors are expected to serve a niaxirhum of eighty-four (84) individuals oh any given
day. The Department will be cjosely monitoring the numbers actually served as well as the lengths of
stay and the coordination of care for other health and social services.

/Vs referenced in the Request for Applications ahd in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parties have
the option to extend contract services for up to tvyp (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize, this request, Recovery Housing
services and supports to individuals with .Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in a supported, safe
recovery housing environment may not be available, which could impede individuals' recovery process.

Area served; Statewide

SoCirce of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, State Opioid Response Grant, (CFDA #93.788, FAIN ti08i685)

in the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not t>e
requested to support this program.

espectfully submitted,

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The 'Dcpartmetit of Health and Human Seruiees' Mission is lojoin communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Subjeci: Recovery Housing for Individuals with QUD fRFA>2Q19»BDAS-02»R£COV-031
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version S/8/1S)

I.

Notice: This agreement and all ofits attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract

AGREEMENT

The State of.New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Homestead inn 17iSS LLC
1.4 Contractor Address

188 King Street
Boscawen, NH 03303

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-247-3064

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-920510-7040-

0000-102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

September 29,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$117,000

1.9 Contracting Oflficcr for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director
Bureau of Contracts, and Prdcufemcot

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

K^^sh/^Oi^ud/e. hirfcJrxL^
I.I 3 'Acknowlcdgcmeni; Sia(t^f |0V\ . County of rY\fi,rr\tV\c\.^iC

'On *Scp!" I before thc undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identijjed in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block l.ll, and acknowledged that s/he in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12. .

1.13.1 SignatuTMf Notary Publip.«r Justice of the Peace ^

(— 1 • • v4|
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

/IndbrccL ftnsonai gainicQ.r _
1.14 State Agency Signature j. 15 Name and Title pf State Agency Signatory

1.16- Approval by th'e N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personrreiy'//'flpphcoij/ej

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by th^ttomcy General (Form, Substance and Exreution) (ifapplicable)

1.18 Apprpv^U^the Goycnior and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOVM ENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State bf.New Hampshire, acting
through the ogency identifiecl in block I. I ("Stale"), engages
cohtraclbr identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to j^rform,
ond the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is.incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
■contrary; and subject to the approval of the Covcmor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and ail obligations of the parties
hercundcr, shall become effective on the date ibie Governor
and Executive CouLnci) approve this Agrecment>as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no ̂ ch approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14, ("Effective Date").

.3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the EQectlve Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that'this Agreement.does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, Including without limitation, any obligation to pay
tbc-Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Cdntractbr must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereuhder, including,
without limitation, the cpntinuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall.ihe State be liable.for any
paymeritshereunder in excess of such availablc.appropriated
funds. In the even t of a reduct ion or terrhinatton of ■
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds.become ovailable.lf ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately.upon
.giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate
shall not be required to transfer fimds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event fimds in that
Account arc reduced or uhav^ilable.

5. CONTRACT PRIC^PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and rriore pdrticiilarly described ..in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract pricc.shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
pcrforrhance bCTCof and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no'iiability to the Contractor other than'thc contract
price.

Page

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contiuctor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or pmniiied by N.H. R5A
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of low.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances. In
no event shall the.tolal of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or diicy upon the Contfs'ctor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, bearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive infonnatiOQ from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. ,
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Conbactor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed; age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent sucb discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States D^artment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United Slates issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Slate of United States access lo any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and.orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall'be
qualified to f^form the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so imder all applicable
laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement^ and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm'or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cfTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person mIio is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

2 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date
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AgreemenL This provision shall survive tennmatioo of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contraciing Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation Of this Agreetrierit,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor sha ll constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform thcScrvices satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this, Agreement.,
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
rfiay take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written npticc:spccifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days froni the date of the notice; and if the Event of Defkult is
not timcl)^ remedi^, terminate this Agrixmcht, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the.Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and.suspending alt payments to bc-made under thiS'
Agreement and ordering that the pordon of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice undl such dme as the State
detefmin^ that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
>8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or. in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFroENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and thlng.s developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chart's, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyse,
graphic reprcsentapons, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which.has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propdiy of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termihatibn of this Agreetnent for any reason.
9.3 Confidcniiaiily ofdata shall be governed byN.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

,  10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and Is neither an agent nor
on employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other qnolumcnts provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNfH^ENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Sctviccs shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the S^te.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Nocwiihstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby
reserved.to the Stale. This covenant In paragraph 13. shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, al its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against alt
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000pcr occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph M.l 'hacin shall
bc,on policy forrhs'and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
InsuTMCC, and issued by insurers license in the State of New
Hampshire.

of 4
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificai^s)
of insurance for all insurance required unda diis Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cerlificatc(s) of
insurance for all .renewalfs) of insurance required under this

Agre^enl no later ih^ thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the ihsuranMpolicics. Thc .ccrtificafe(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference, ^ch certificatc(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer.identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no jess than thir^ (30) days prior un'itten
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WOI^RS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By siting this agreement, die Contractor agrees,
certiOcs and warrants'that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the rcquircmcois of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers ' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 *A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
codocction with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuit to this AgreemcnL Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or ha successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H.'RSA chapta 281-A and any
applicable'renewal(s) thaeof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated haein .by refaencc., The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any qlha claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subconcraclor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise unda applicable State of New Hampshire Workas'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services unda this A^ccmeni.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH, No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions haeof after any Event of Default ̂ all
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event .of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver'of the right of the State to enforce'each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any furtha. or other Event .of Default
on the part of the Coqtractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party haeto to the oiha party
shall be deemed to have bcoi duly delivered or.given at the
timc.of mailing by certified maij, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties.at the addresses
given In blocks 1.2 and 1.4, hacin.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged, only by an inslxumcnt in writihg signed
by the panies haeto and only after approval of such'
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor aiid
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no •

such approval is required unda the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the,
laws of the State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
succ^sors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is (he wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, wd no'rule of construction shall.bc applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confa any such bcncGt.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement'.

22. SPECIAL PROVISiONS. .-Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated haein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by c court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or fcdaal law, the remaining
provisions of this A^eement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be ex^uted in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undastandings relating haeto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hamp^re Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with Opiold Use Disorder

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/pr services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on ;the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide one (1) Recovery Residence to serve the general
population of individuals with Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) who are in need of
housing in a supported, safe, recovery housing environment In compliance
with current National Alliance for Recovery Residences (NARR) standards.

2. Scope of Services

•. 72.1. The Contractor shall provide a physical recovery housing facility to include, but
is pot limited to:

2.1.1. Assistance to individuals to transition to independent living.

2.1.2. Safe, stable and sober environment.

2.1.3. Meeting state and/or local.occupancy requirements.

2.2. The Contractor shall meet the needs of applicants/residents requiring
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accommodations. Additionally, the
Contractor shall:

2.2.1. Provide documentation and maintain the property is in compliance
-  'with local health arid safety codes.

2.2.2. Ensure the residence meets all Life and Safety codes, as required.
Ensure Naloxone is available and accessible in the residence.

2:2.3. Ensure that all house managers and/or staff are trained to deliver
Naloxone in the case of an overdose.

2.2.4. Meet all inforrfiatidn security and privacy requirements as set by the
Department.

2.3. OrQanizational/Administfative Standards

2.3.1. The Contractor shall have a written mission and vision statement.

2.3.2., The Contractor shall have a written code of ethics for the Recovery
Residence.

Homestead Inn Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder

Exhibit A

2.3.3. The Contractor shall corhply with state and federal requirements. If
required, documents such as licenses and certificates of occupancy
must be visible for public view.

2.3.4. The Contractor shall clearly identify the responsible person(s)
responsible for the Recovery Residence to all residents.

2.3.5. The Contractor shall ensure the living environment is free from drugs
and alcohol.

2.3.6. The Contractor shall provide proof of written permission to operate a
Recovery Residence on the property from the land owner/landlord, if
applicable.

2.4. Fiscal Manaderhent Standards

2.4.1. The Contractor shall keep accurate records and must have the ability
to provide residents with statements upon request. The records
and/or staternents shall include, but are.not limited to:

2.4.1;1. Cqniplete records of charges.

2.4.1.2. Payments.

2.4.1.3. Deposits.

,2.5. Operation Standards

2.5.1. The Contractor shall ensure emergency numbers, protocols and
evacuation maps are established and easily accessed.

2.6. Recovery Support Standards

2.6.1. The Contractor shall maintain a staffing plan, if applicable.

2.6.2. The Contractor shall ensure an applicant screening process that will
maintain a safe and supportive environment for specific groups of
individuals in recovery.

2.6.3. The Contractor shall ensure confidentiality laws are adhered to.

2.6.4. The Contractor shall keep resident's records secure from
unauthorized access.

2.6.5. The Contractor shall establish and administer a grievance policy and
procedure.

2.6.6. The Contractor shall provide a safe, structured and recovery
supportive environment through established and written residents'
rights and requirements. ^

2.6.7. The Contractor shall establish an intake/assessment protocol fpr
accepting new clients.

2.6.8. The Contractor shall establish an orientation process that will ensure
all fees and charges residents incur are presented to applicants prior

Homestead Inn Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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to residency. The Contractor shall ensure policies are presented to
potential applicants in writing and are verbally explained in a simple
and easy manner conducive to the individual's understanding.

2.6.9. The Contractor shall provide a mutually supportive and recovery-
oriented relationships between residents and/or staff through;

2.6.9.1. Peer-based interactions;

■2.6.9.2. House meetings;
2.6.9.3. Community gatherings;
2.6.9.4. Recreatipnal events; and/or

2.6.9.5. Other social activities.

2.6.10. The Contractor shall adopt recovery-supportive, alcohol and drugTree
environments thought written and enforced policies and procedures
that address the following:
2.6.10.1. Residents that return to alcohol and/or drug use;
2.6.10.2. Hazardous item searches;

2.6.10.3. Drug-screening and or toxicology protocols; and
2.6.10.4. Prescription and non-prescription medication usage; and
2.6.10.5. Prescription and non-prescription storage.

2.6.11. The Contractor shall work with residents to develop and participate in
an individualized recovery plan.

2.6.12.' The Coritractor shall inform residents on the wide range of local
treatment and recovery support services available to them.

2.6.13. The Contractor shall provide nondinical, recovery support and related
services.

2.6.14. The Contractor shall encourage residents to attend supportive, self-
help groups and/or outside professional services.

2.7. Property Standards
2.7.1. The Contractor shall ensure the residence meets all life, safety, health

and building codes.
2.7.2. The Coritractor shall provide residents with storage for food and

personal items.
2.7.3. The Coritractor shall provide fully-functioning fire extinguishers in plain

sight and/or dearly marked locations.
2.7.4. The Contractor.shall install operational smoke detectors.
2.7.5. The Contractor shall install operational carbon monoxide detectors if jw

gas appliances are present. ixKli
/I o
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.  2.7,6. The Contractor shall ensure a smoke/tobacco-free internal living
environment.

2.7.7. The Contractor shall provide a large community room that will
accommodate house meetings.

2.7.8. The Contractor shall provide sleeping quarters that adhere to local
and state square footage requirements.

2.7.9. The Contractor shall provide lavatory facilities that adhere to local and
state requirements if applicable. If there are no requirements,
selected vendor(s} shall provide one (1) sink, one (1) toilet and one
(1) shower per six (6) residents.

2.7.10. The Contractor shall provide on-site laundry services.

2.7.11. The Contractor shall maintain the interior and exterior of the residence

in a functional, safe, and dean manner.

2.7.12. The Contractor shall provide spaces to hold meetings accessible to all
residents.

2.7.13. The Contractor shall provide appliances in a good and working
condition.

2.7.14. The.Contractor shall provide furniture in good condition.

2.7.15. The Contractor shall provide routine and emergency repairs to all
aspects of the residehce.

2.8. Good Neighbor Standards

2.8.1. The Contractor shall provide the residence's responsible parties'
information to neighbors upon request. The Contractor shall ensure
the responsible party responds to neighbor's complaints.

2.8.2. The Contractor shall establish and enforce parking rules when
warranted.

3. State Opioid Response (SDR) Grant Standards

3.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and
implementation plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services
are in place within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date.

3.1.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required
timeframe, the Contractor shall submit an updated jmplernentatiqn
plan to the Department for approval to outline anticipated service start
dates.

3.1.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract ̂ pd
liquidate unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90)
days of the contract effective date.

Homestead Inn Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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3.2. The Contractor shall ensure that clients receiving financial aid for recovery
housing utilizing SOR funds shall only be in a recovery housing facility that is
aligned with the National Alliance for Recovery Residences standards and
registered with the State of New Hampshire, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services in accordance with current NH Administrative Rules.

3-3. The Contractor shall assist clients with enrolling in public or private health
insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage.

3.4. The Contractor shall accept clients for MAT and facilitate access to MAT on-
site or through referral for ail clients supported with SOR Grant funds, as
clinically appropriate.

3.5; The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs program for
clients identified as at risk of orvvith HIV/AIDS.

3.6. The Contractor shall ensure that all clients are regularly screened for tobacco
use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of treatment planning.

Homestead Inn Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The state shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8. Price Limitation
for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.1. This Agreement is funded with funds from the Substance. Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration. State Opioid Response Grant, CFDA #93.788, FAIN Ti081685.

1.2; The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the sc^pe of services may jeopardize the funded
Contractor's current and/or future funding.

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual .expenditures incumed in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the a'pprbyed line item.

2.2. The Contractor wilj submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth (20'")
working .day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses Incurred Iri the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and
returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records
of their activities related to Department programs and services.

2.3. The Stale shall make payment to the Contractor v^ithin thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice,
subsequent to approval of the .submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. The
Coritractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs and
services.

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form
P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
Mellssa.Girard@dhhs.nh.Qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Melissa Girard, SOR Finance Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
BDAS, State Opioid Response
129 Pleasant Street, 3"" Floor
Concord, NH 03301

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
in Exhibit A, .Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts
between budget line items, related Items, amendments of related budget .exhibits within the price
limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by vyritten
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the GoVemor and Executive
Council.
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SPFriAt PRQVISinNS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. In the furtherance oTthe aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is perrnitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws. regulaUons, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Detenrhlnatlon: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose arid shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department;

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file oh each recipient ofservices hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility deteiThinatlpn and .such other information as the
Depailment requ^ts, The Contractor shall furnish the Oepartrhent with al! forms and documentation
regarding eligibility'determinatipriis that the. Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
.Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be peimltted to fill out
an application fonri and that each applicant Or re-applicaht shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance, with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State niay terminate this Contract and any sub-contract Or sub-agreement If it Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offero of employment of any.kthd were offered or received by
any officials, officers, erhployees .or agents of the Contractor or Sut>Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will t>e made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and ho p'ayrhents shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
piipr to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deerned to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts re.asonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
fu.nders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expendiiure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or .has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1.

7.2.

Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which .event new rates shall be established;
Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement inexcess of costs; p

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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7.3. Demarid repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any .individual who.Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.'

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance, of Records: In addition to. the eligibility records specified atx>ve. the Contractor
covenants and agrees to'maihtain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1; Fiscal Records: books, records, documehts.and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses iricunred by the Contractor in the performance of the .Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of coste such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories^/valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department;

6.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit, records for each recipient of .
services during the Contract Period, ̂ ich records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records

•' regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records;. Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulatipnsf;the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recbmrn'ended that the report be prepared in .accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget.Circular A-133, 'Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit-Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits. '

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and.records maintained pursuantto
•the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not In any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, It is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
■  in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
>be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring.such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly conhected with the adrnlnls.tration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to;purchased services hereurider is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Spodai Provtstons Contractor initials .
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descriptionof

alt costs and norvallowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be subrriitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A nrial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the terrn
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the. Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals ar>d objectives stated in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
. maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation

hereunder. the Contract arid all the obligations of .the parties, hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms'of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term, of this Contract and/or

. survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.,

13. Credits: All documents,.notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall indude thefollowing .
staternent:.
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a.:Contract with the State .

of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States-Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The 'DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, induding. but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Coriipliance with Laws land Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public OfTtcer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the fadlity or the pnDvision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for (he operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Coritractpr will procure said license or permit,-and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all.rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the. State Office of the. Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it wi|l maintain.a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certiiying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of .the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Fprm to the OCR certifying it is.not,required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations,. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational, i.hstitutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submjt a certification form to the OCR to clairn the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Tide VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1364, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
nieaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees wprtdng on this contract wiij be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. -4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor.shall Inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisitipn Regulation.

(c) The Cond'actor shall insert the substance of this clause, Including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19,. Subcontractors: DHHS. recognizes,that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to pertorm certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subrantractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is resporisible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do'the following:

19.1. Evaluate ̂ e prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
resporisibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the,subcontractor's
performance is npt adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials.
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
resppnsibilities.-and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHhis shall, at its discretion, review and approve alt subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form.or fomis required by the Department.and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract arid setting foilh the. total cost and sources of revenue, for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20:4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

I

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders. ar)d
.policies, etc. are referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal fuhds available for these services.

owiyi0
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVIStONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Sybparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, Is
replaced as fdlows:

4. conditional nature of agreement.

Ndtvyithstanding any provision of this Agreement tO contrary, all obligations of the
■State hereunder, including without iimitation, the continuance of payments,'in whole or in
part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of
funds, indudirig any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds
affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or
otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the
Scope of Services' provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event
shall the State be liabte'for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available
funds. In .the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available
funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become
available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction,
termination or modlftcation. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any
other source or account into the Account(s) identrfied in block 1.6 Of the General
provisions. Account Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or
unavailable.

1.2. sybparagraph 16 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding
the followng language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion
of the State, -30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising
its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of eariy termination, "the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of eariy
termination, develop and submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for sen/ices under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreernent and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shalj fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan induding, but not limited to, any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition
Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the
State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to dients
receiving services under the Agreernent are transitioned to having services delivered by
another entity induding contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a
process for uriinterrupted delivery of sen/Ices in the Transition Ran.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method Of notifying dients and other affected individuals
.about the transition. The Contractor shall indude the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

10.6 Any Trarisition Pian, information supporting the Transition Plan, and communications
regarding the Transition Ran shall comply with NARR Standards, which requires all
policies and procedures pertainirig to the collection of resident information and data will
protect the individual's identity.

E)4iibil C-t - Revisions to Standard Prbvlsioris Conirector Initials
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2. .Revisions to Standard Exhibits

2.1. Exhibit C, Special Provisions, Section 1, Compliance with Federal and State Laws is deleted In
its entirety.

2.2. Exhibit C. Special Provisions, Section 2, Tirhe and Manner of Oetenriination Is deleted in Its '
entirety.

2.'3. Exhibit C. Special Provisions. Section 3. Documentation is deleted in its entirety.

3, Renewal:

The Departrrient reserves the right to extend this Agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agre^ent of the parties and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Slandard Provisions Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identjfi^ in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5,151-5160 of the Drug-Free Worftplace Actof 1980 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 at seq.). and further agrees to have the Coritractor's representative, as identifted m Sections
1;11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Ceftlflcation;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. "L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 70.1 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulatiohs were arrierided and published as Part ll of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017 630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and l:>y inference, sub-grantees and subTContractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covere'd by the certification.. The certificate set out below, is a
mate'rial representation of fact upon, which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grarit. False
certification or violation of.the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it.to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health arid Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH .03301-6505

i. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free vypr1<place by;
1.V Publishing.a sbtement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
'workplace and specifyirig the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;'

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free a^renes.s program to inform'employees about
1.2.1. The dangers, of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

-  1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant l^e
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terrns of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction; * • '

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from" an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D-Cerltfication regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
Workplace Requirements ' *
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(8) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the follbwihg actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropnate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort'-to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6. '

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant. 1

j

Place'of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identiHed here.

Contractor Name;

2

Tide

Exhibit.0 - Certification ragardmg Drug Free ' Corttractor Inltieis
Workplace Requirements '

CuA}HHsrno7i3 v Page 2 of 2 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; 6ED41F5D-DB32-464B-AA5A-2EEC26F798C4

New Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Cbhtractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certirication;

US DEPARTft^ENT OJf HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
*T.eniporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcernent Program under Tide IV-D
•Soc.ial Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care pevelopment Block Grant under Title;tV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on .behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or ajtempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a.Member
of Congresspan officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by speciHc mention
sub-grantee or sut>-conbactprj.

.2. If anyfunds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be.paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an ofTicer or enriployee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Fede'ral contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance virith Its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The uridersigned shall recjuire that the language of this ceitification be included in the award
docurhent for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that ail sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed v^en this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction irhposed by Section 136i2, Title 31, U.S. Code". Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of hot less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

m

Tide

Exhibit E - Certificetlon Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of-
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters', and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as' identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By sighing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out bejow.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective paiticipant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determinatidh whether to;.enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective prirnary
participant to furriish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person frprn participation in
this transaction.

3. the certification in this clause is a material representation of.fact upon which reliance was placed
wtien DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary .participant kno^ngly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to otfter remedies -
available:to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice .to the DHHS agency to
whorfi this proposal (coritract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was empneous wheri submitted or has becomie erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction,' 'debarred,' "suspended," 'ineligible,* "lower tier covered
trafisaction,"participant,'"persoh,' 'primary covered trahsactiori," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded.'as used In this clause, have the rneanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage'sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12M9: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transactipn be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter
transaction with a person who is detiarred, suspended, declared ineligible
ifrom participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS

nto any lower tier covered
orvoluntariiy excluded

7. The prospective pfirhary'participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Cerlitication Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility end Voluntary Exclusion'-
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower'tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspend^, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneo.us. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good felth the certification required by this clause. The knovriedge and

Exhibit F • Cetlification Regarding Debannent. Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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infonrtatjon of a participant is not required to exceed diat which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the, ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction'knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible^ or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED transactions
11; The prospective primary participant ceillfies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1.' are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions t^y any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or. had

a civil jiidgrrient rendered against them for commission of fraud or a crirriinal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a conb'act under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmerital entity
(Federal. State orlocal) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within .a three^year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or loc^) terminated for cause or default

12. 'Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined In 45 CFR Part 76,^ certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently .debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from piarticipation in this transaction by any federal .department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any pMhe,above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective tower tier participant further agrees by submitting thjs proposal (contract) that It vyill
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modi^cation iri all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Dat

a

TiUe

Exhibit F - Certification Regerding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters

curoMHS/ii07i3 Page 2 of 2 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6ED41F5D-DB32-484B-AA5A-2EEC26F798C4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFiCATiON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAtNING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH«BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor.identlfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.1 T and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificatidn:

Contractor will comply, and .will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrirnination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in ernployment practices or in
the deliveiy of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires ceilain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice'Oelinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts-by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets A.ct. Recipients of federal fuhdirig under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the' basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opporturiity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Sectiori 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis'of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJdP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrirnination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neigtiborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S.. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January'2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancernent of Contract Employee Whistieblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle bjowing activities in connection with feder.al grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False.certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination .of grants, or government wide suspension or
de.baiment. ^'

ExhibH G
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In the event a Federal or State couit or Federal or State administrative agency makes a flnding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, cOlor, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office ifor Civil Rights, to
the.applicable contracting agency pr division within the Department of.Heajth and Hurnan .Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in.Section 1.3 of the.General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Dat Na

TlUe

Exhibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SWOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that srnqking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility o\Amed or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the.age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directlyqr through State or local gov.emrrients. by Federal.grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient dmg or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of ah administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

)

i. By signing and sut)mitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of.Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Title:^ I

CU/DHHS/t10713
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
corhply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the.State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

C; "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the,term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQQreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health careoperations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" rheans the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Pact 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" mearis the Health Insurance Portability and Accpuntability Act of1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 1W and arnendments thereto.

.i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person .who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Inforrhation at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the UnitedStates
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the sanie meaning as the terrn "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. . ̂

3/2014 ExhiWl I ' Contractof Initials
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary"shall mean .the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Servicesor
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 1W. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. • "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health infonnatlon that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed t:>y
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitibfis - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to lime, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain'or transrnit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the prope.r management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. "For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is perrriitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any- such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disdosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ti) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and. Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches,of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, yvithout first notifying
covered Entity sO that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, theBusiqess^

3/2014 ExtiibitI Contractor Initials
Health insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remiedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

P) Obligations and Activities of Buslnese Assoclata.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use of disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health inforrhation and/or any security incident that may have an impact onthe
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the, above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health Information Involved, .including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

p The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was maide;

0 Whether the protected health infdnnation vi/as actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secreta^ for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and. the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business.Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions;and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided Under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct-third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreernenls with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use anddisclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity^ for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wlthjn ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual In Order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 1 W.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment.of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 dFR,Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164,528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall makeavailable
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to. PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, artiendment of,-of accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Busine^ Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
individuars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the.BusinessAssoclate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
.Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed loin
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend thVjprptections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures pf'such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasibje, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business.Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) bbliaatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
1^.520, to the'e)dent that such change or limitation may affect Busineiss Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. , Covered eritlty shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and condition's (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may imniediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I, the Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
.alleged breach v^thin a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) ivilscfillanepMs

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not othenMse defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the.Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to lime as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership, the Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behajf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 I Contractor Initials
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Seareaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other ierms or ,
conditions \which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terrhs and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severabte.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, e.)densions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemriification provisions pf section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the'Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health.and Human Services

The State

Signature of'Aiithdrized Representative

Name of AutFTonzed Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

NaTne of the Contrad^

Signature of AuthdhzeoTRepresehtative

Name of Authonzed Representative

Title oTAuthorized Representative

Dai

3/2014 Exhibit I
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CERTIFiCAtlON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requireis prime awardee's of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier ̂ b-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 <CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department Of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward qr contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. N^CS o^e for coritracU / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Av^rd title descriptive of the purpose of the funding actbn
7. Location of the entity •
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

'10.1. More.than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the. Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than .$25M annually and

iO.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, In which
the award or award amendrnent is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and'Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting 'Subaward arid Executive Compensationjnformation), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, asidentified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Ceftiticatidn;
The below narried Contractor agrees .to provide needed iriformation as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions pf the Federal
Financial Accountability arid Transparency Act

Contractor Name:

Date

Exhibtt J - CertKication Regarding the' Federal Furiding' Contractor Inhiais.
'Acoountabll'ity And Transparency Ad (FFATA) Compliance il \C
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true.and accurate.

.  The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business, or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percenter more of your'annual groSs revenue in U.S. federal contracts, sutrcontracts,
loans, g.rants. sub^rants. and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?'

NO YES

|f the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Narne:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHKS/n0713

Exhibit J - Certiftcation Rogarding (he Federal Funding
AccduhlabNity.And Transparency Art (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Oefinitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in .this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations Nvhere persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, vvhether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

fdisclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
lassistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human . Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contract^
services - of wrhich collection, disclosure, protectjori. and disposition is governed by
state or federal law of regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive arid confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms pf this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" rrieans the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
systerri or-its .data, unwanted disruption or denial of sen/ice, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmvyare. or software characteristics vyithout the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft'^r device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical Or electronic

VS. .Last update 10/09/18 ExNbltK Contractor Initials
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mall, all of which may have, the potential to put. the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network arid not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace, an individuars Identity, such as their name,, social security number, personal
Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc..

alone, or when Combined with other personal or identifying Inforrnatlon which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc. ^

9. .-"Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
•Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
•rStates Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protectloh of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.FlR. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Prptected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a te;chnoiogy standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESRONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Diisclosure of Confidential Information.

1,. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Ue.tOpdatd 10/09/16 ExNbltK Contractor initials.
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3., If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
.restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Coritfactor must be bound by such
•additional restrictions and must not disclose. PHI in violation of such' additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the. terms of this Contract.

.5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User' Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Corifidentjal Data between .applications, the Contractor:attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security arid that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

,2. Computer Disks, and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage, devices, such as a thumb drive, as a hfiethod of transmitting DHHS.
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSI.:) must be used and the web site fnust be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Sen/ices, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidehtial Data.

6. Ground Mail.Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password*protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must ernpioy a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via ah open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transinit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10..SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will orily retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in vyhatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under, this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure -proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies.of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section iV, A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply wth all applicable statutes and
regulations .regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-virail, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as'a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will nriaintain any Conndential information on its systems (or its
sub-cbnlractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcoritractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster •
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
NewiHampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitjzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,

.  degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.

•  Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
-• tirrie of the.data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
<  upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
•' demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,

regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will -be jointly
evaluated by the State'.arid Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by rtieans of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/,or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a rninimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
:i.State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will t>e

. completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sut^contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Departrnent at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowiqgly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the bouridaries of the United States unless
prior express \Arritten consent is obtained frorh the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department. > •

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of. the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit mbhitorihg services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a leyel and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not lirnited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that goyerh protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate adrhinistrative. technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confideritiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.

"vRefer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
^for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
"procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process; The Contractor amII notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor rnust ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and pass^wrd-protected,

d. send emails cdrltaining Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of. persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. Last up^atd 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor initials.
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confider^tial Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this" Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is

physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g. prily authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files' containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
■such data must be encrypted at all times wtien in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section. IV above. ,

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as deterrnlned by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name arid password) must not be
shared .yvith anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of Jn accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;
2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS InfomiaOoh
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.hh.gov '

B. DHHS Security Officer;

DHHSInfprmatipnSecurityOff|ce@dhhs.nh.gpv

vs. L^t update 10/09/18 ExhibllK Contractorlnilials
DHHS Inlormailon

Security Requirements
Page 9 of 9 Date


